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2023FTHEGSERBEIBBARE (L - 7THEER 2023 is a challenging year for the industry with significant changes in
BRI M IR SRILRAIARIERTERS - BB the operating environment. Due to the rapid growth in production
ZETEHEEILIERLREREBABANBIBN > capacity and the weaker-than-expected downstream demand, the
TETISTRLE - MY TITH™ES  AEBEZ  prices of various major fluorosilicon chemical products recorded steep
BE LB ARG EHER - £/ declines, resulting in a less optimistic market view. Facing such market
MmHE P BEEE  FEAEEETEF  downturn, the Group fully utilized its operating advantage and quickly

REREHFT - adjusted its business strategy to cope with the changes. As a result,

amid severe market volatility, the Group maintained stable operation
and strong competitiveness in the industry.
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RESULTS REVIEW
I.

Prudent Operation amid Market Changes

During the period under review, due to significant market
changes the prices of various fluorosilicon chemical products
recorded a substantial decline, resulting in a profit margin
squeeze. In response to these changes, the Group’s
management quickly formulated business strategies to maintain
prudent operations, reinforce “internal strength”, reduce costs
and explore potential developments. The Group’s economies of
scale, advanced technology, well-established production chain
and outstanding management helped the Group maintain
strong competitiveness in the industry. During the year, despite
severe market pressure, the Group’s production remained
stable. Some major products achieved growth in both
production and sales volume to help uplift the Group’s market
share. During the period under review, although the Group
recorded a significant decline on revenue and profit due to
negative market factors, the Group’s business strategy of
“prudent operation for sustainable development” could help
the Group weather the industry downturn and sufficiently
prepare the Group for the potential opportunities upon industry
recovery in the future.
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Seizing market opportunities to cope with industry
downturn

During the year, despite the sluggish downstream demand,
some of the Group’s major products still recorded an increase in
sales volume, thanks to the Group’s acute market sense, which
enabled the Group to adjust its strategies quick enough to cope
with the changes in business environment. During the period
under review, some products of the Group recorded significant
changes in supply and demand. Therefore, in addition to the
existing customers and markets, the Group proactively explored
new breakthrough and growth potential by strengthening the
development and marketing of other application markets.
Through these efforts, more than 100 new market users were
developed and some product sales volume even reached record
high. Pioneering with proactive sales strategy enabled the
Group to surpass all competitions and further uplift the market
share of the Group's products.

Remarkable achievement in technological innovation

Despite the substantial decline on the financial performance for
the year, the Group continued to base on the fluorosilicon
chemical industry chain as the foundation and maintained its
investment in research and development. During the year, the
Group had 101 new product grades added with a batch of new
high-end materials entering into the market as trial samples or
at the initial stage with small supply, which contributed as a
foundation for the Group to improve its industrial strength and
competitive edge. In addition, the completion of 148 projects in
relation to new renovation and expansion, energy saving and
emissions reduction, automation upgrade and quality
enhancement, coupled with the achievement on technological
breakthroughs, contributed to cost reduction and efficiency
improvement of the Group. Besides, 81 new patents were
authorized. At present, the Group has a total of 620 patents, 22
standards were published, including 2 national standards, 2
industry standards, 1 local standard and 17 group standards. To
date, a total of 127 various standards were published by the
Group. The Group’s R&D expense during the period under
review was approximately RMB935,099,000, accounting for
6.45% of the revenue.
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Iv.

Safeguarding stable operation by safe and environmental-
friendly production

The Group has always committed to high standards of
environmental-friendly production to ensure stable operation.
During the year, the Group further enhanced its management
system for safe and environmental-friendly production, and
strengthened the objectives of such management system.
Meanwhile, the implementation of the information technology
automation projects also ensured the safe and environmental-
friendly production. As a result, the Group recorded no
occurrence of safety and environmental protection incidents
during the period under review. In addition, the Group has
further improved the recycling rate of by-products and wastes,
such as the utilization of hydrogen by-products and recycling of
wastewater, in an effort to reduce costs and increase efficiency
for the Group. During the year, several major production
companies under the Group passed the local environmental
protection grade A standard review, laying a solid foundation
for high operating efficiency of the industrial chain.

Further enhance management skill

Empower “Internal Strength” is the most effective method to
cope with the changes of operating environment. During the
year, the Group further improved its management to achieve
cost savings and risk reduction. During the period under review,
the Group’s administrative expenses and finance costs were
reduced year-on-year by 34.86% and 89.16% respectively. The
integrated corporate finance service platform, developed
through cooperation with banks, further satisified the
settlement enquiry by our suppliers and improved the Group’s
cash liquidity. Various departments within the Group conduct
regular communication to prevent corruption. We enhance anti-
corruption awareness among our cadres and employees through
education and training, reducing the potential for corruption.
The audit and compliance department strictly monitors the
implementation of all management systems to ensure corrective
measure is taken against management problems in order to
prevent the occurrence of internal control risks. In terms of
human resources structure, the Group benchmarked against
advanced enterprises to achieve further optimization. Our
production operation is becoming more reasonable. The job
rotation and contest between management personnels have
resulted in a younger and more professional team. Such efforts
have contributed to a more scientific and standardised
management of the enterprise. In terms of information
technology, the Group's self-control device reached a new
stage. With the application of various automation technologies,
the installation production has become safer and more efficient.
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PROSPECT

At present, despite the recovery seen from some product markets in
the industry, the Group still encounters significant challenges. Based
on our extensive industry experience, the Group clearly understands
how to address these challenges now. As the results, we have
developed the following business strategies for the future:

1.

Precisely planning layout of high-end fine chemicals R&D
and comprehensive by-products utilization

The management of the Group has been adhering to promote
the Group’s development by technology innovation. In the
future, the Group will provide high-end and quality products
and services for the market through technology and product
innovation to create its own proprietary product advantages
and further enhance its competitive advantages. In terms of
high-end material, the Group will increase development in
technology, high-end in-depth processing and the expansion on
product application. With regard to the by-products, the Group
will further enhance technology and process, actively promote
recyclable economy of the industrial chain, as well as
strengthening the comprehensive utilization of by-products. In
addition, the Group has taken further steps towards market-
oriented R&D, which will enable the Group’s R&D to closely
align with the market in the future. As the results,
understanding the market dynamics and customer needs, as
well as stimulating R&D incentive and innovation breakthroughs
would become easier, which should also enhance R&D
efficiency, and flexibly apply various R&D models.

Continuously improving the Group’s industrial chain’s
support to promote its relative value growth

With a well-established industrial chain, the Group has
maintained highly competitive in the industry over the years.
The Group also views the future deployment of the industrial
chain as an important strategic plan. In terms of raw materials,
the Group will strengthen the integration and improvement of
its raw material sites to ensure supply with high-quality and
low-cost. In terms of the downstream industrial chain, the
Group will ramp up such construction and development,
accelerate the construction and upgrading of high-end
products, new formulas and new processes. In terms of energy
support, the Group will optimize the layout of the industrial
park and build a modernized energy supply center with
advanced, highly-efficient, intelligent, safe and environment-
friendly facilities. In terms of safety and environmental support,
the Group will further reduce air emissions, wastes discharge
and slag discharge to ensure the production stability of the
industrial chain.
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3.

Ongoing safe and environmentally friendly production as
the greatest competitive edge

The Group’s management recognises the importance of safety
and environmental protection in production process. To be a
“steady progress” company, the ongoing improvement on the
standard of safety and environmental protection production is
essential. To uphold the vision of “zero injury, zero accident,
and zero leakage”, the Group will fully enforce the production
safety responsibility system. We will strengthen investment,
training, basic management, and emergency rescue measures
with regard to safeness. In addition, the Group will take a
comprehensive approach to further promote safety
management and intelligent digitalisation within our production
processes to achieve essential safety. This strategy aims to lower
human intervention in the production process, thereby reducing
risks, enhancing operating efficiency, and minimising processing
wastes.

Improving marketing brand image by quality products
and services

Leveraging the superior product and service quality, the Group
has maintained highly competitive in the industry and become a
top-recognized brand to downstream customers. Amidst market
downturn, the Group will further improve product quality,
establish database and set up top quality standard. In terms of
craftsmanship, the Group will strengthen development of new
craftsmanship and formulas to uplift the craftsmanship level, and
hence improve product quality with higher stability. Besides, the
Group will utilize our scientific strength to offer high-end
products and services to the market through product and
technological innovation. The Group’s management believes that
valuable products can help raise the Company’s brand image in
the market, which requires collaborative efforts from all aspects
such as technology, market, management and innovation to
achieve such synergy.
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5. Optimizing procurement standards for further cost
reduction and efficiency improvement

In view of the operating challenges ahead, the Group has
identified procurement as a key direction for cost reduction and
efficiency improvement. The Group will optimize standards for
the procurement of raw materials to adopt stricter approval
standards for suppliers, strictly implement supplier prohibitive
provisions, and establish a database on supplier status and
supervision. The Group’s Audit Department will comprehensively
supervise the implementation of procurement, and strictly
follow the regulations on document submission, bidding,
contract preparation and execution. In addition, the Group will
resolutely remove unqualified intermediary traders and increase
the proportion of direct supply from manufacturers.

In 2023, the fluorosilicon chemical industry witnessed various
difficulties, and the Group managed to survive these changes based
on its 37 years of operating experience in the industry. 2024 will be a
year full of opportunities and challenges. We will adhere to sound
business principles, maintain a sense of urgency, crisis and
responsibility; focus on the field of fluorosilicon chemical, and work
hard to forge ahead. We will put our best efforts to create significant
value, and to pay back all the long-term trust and support from our
investors.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately RMB14,493,323,000, down 27.63% over
RMB20,027,988,000 in the previous year. Gross profit margin
decreased to 16.81% (2022: 32.53%) and the operating margin was
4.49% (2022: 19.81%). The Group recorded profit before tax of
approximately RMB653,171,000 (2022:RMB5,125,055,000), and net
profit of approximately RMB611,085,000 (2022: RMB4,176,117,000),
while consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s owners was
approximately RMB707,793,000 (2022: RMB3,855,539,000). Basic
earnings per share were RMB0.32 (2022: RMB1.73).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.10
(2022: HK$0.60) per share to the shareholders whose names appear
on the shareholder’s registrars of the Company on 17 June 2024.

Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating
segments, of the Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022:

BZ20235 12831 HILEE HE202512831BILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 For the year ended 31 December 2022
g ¥ RERAR e ¥R KEEAE
Operating Operating
Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
ARETr ARETx AREFTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B FHE Fluoropolymers 4,552,407 336,766 7.40% 6,487,010 1,989,578 30.67%
Bk Organic Silicon 4,862,426 (330,512) (AN 6,648,326 463,465 6.97%
LA Refrigerants 2,871,580 310,574 (EPEPAN 4361050 1,021,356 23.42%
“S8k - BE2E  Dichloromethane, Polyvinyl
([PvC]) B Chloride ("PvVC") and
Liquid Alkali 1,176,824 248,359 21.10% 1,624,811 460,302 28.33%
Hith Others 1,030,086 85,458 8.30% 906,791 32,627 3.60%
ey Consolidated 14,493,323 650,645 (VLAY 20,027,988 3,967,328 19.81%
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Analysis of Operating Results

During the period under review, due to the downturn of the
fluorosilicon chemical industry, coupled with the increase of certain
product supply, and the weaker-than-expected downstream demand,
several key industry products recorded further price decline. Therefore,
the Group also recorded various degrees of declining results on
several major business segments.

Fluoropolymers

During the period under review, the external sales of fluoropolymers
segment was approximately RMB4,552,407,000, down 29.82%
compared with the same period of the previous year (2022:
RMB6,487,010,000), accounting for 31.41% (2022: 32.39%) of the
Group's total external sales. The segment results recorded a profit of
RMB336,766,000, down 83.07% compared with RMB1,989,578,000
in the same period of the previous year.

During the period under review, the key reason of the decline on
external sales revenue and performance was mainly attributable to
the significant price drop on the major products of the segment.
Among all, the PVDF products recorded the largest price decline,
mainly driven by the production capacity growth outweighing the
growth of its downstream demand. Although the Group recorded
production growth of some products in the segment, such quantity
increase was unable to compensate the negative impact driven by the
sliding product prices.
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The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production
of polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with
high level of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation,
high aging tolerance and chemical resistant level that is used as a
coating material and can also be further processed into high-end fine
chemicals which can be widely applied in the chemicals, construction,
electrical and electronics and automotive industries) and HFP (an
important organic fluorochemical monomer, which can be used to
produce various fine chemicals). Furthermore, the refrigerants
segment of the Group supplies R22 and R142b as the raw materials
for the production of a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine
chemicals, including FEP (modified materials of PTFE, produced with
HFP added in TFE, mainly used in the lining for wire insulation layer,
thin-walled tube, heat shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes),
FKM (Fluorine Rubber, a specialised fluorinated material, which is
mainly used in the fields of aerospace, automotives, machinery and
petro-chemistry because of its superior mechanical property, and
excellent oil, chemical and heat resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made
with R142b to produce VDF, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin,
fluorinated powder coating resin and lithium battery electrode binding
material and VDF), in which Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging.
Other fluorinated fine chemicals formed another major production
category of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Refrigerants

During the period under review, the external sales of the refrigerants
segment decreased by 34.15% to RMB2,871,580,000 from
RMB4,361,050,000 in the previous year, accounting for 19.81%
(2022: 21.77%) of the Group's total external sales. The segment
results recorded a profit of RMB310,574,000, representing an
decrease of 69.59% from a profit of RMB1,021,356,000 in the same
period of the previous year.

During the period under review, the results decline of the refrigerants
segment was primarily attributable to the price decrease of the R142b
products. Affected by the changes in demand of the PVDF industry
chain and the ramp-up of R142b production capacity by some PVDF
manufacturers, market demand in R142b shrank, causing a substantial
price decline as compared to the previous year.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2023 11
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The Group has the largest production capacity of R22 in the world.
Being the Group's backbone refrigerant products, R22 is an important
refrigerant among all kinds. Besides, R22 has been one of the key raw
materials for the production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and
other downstream fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32
are the key refrigerant mixture for other types of green refrigerants
(such as R410a) to replace R22. Currently, R410a has been the
principal replacing refrigerant which has been widely applied in
inverter air conditioners and other green home appliances. R134a is
broadly used in the coolant and air-conditioning systems in
automobiles, while R152a is another key refrigerant product of the
Group which can also be used as blowing agents, aerosols and
cleaning agents. Apart from the fact that R142b can be used as
refrigerant, temperature controller medium, and intermediates of
aviation propellant, it can also be one of the main raw materials for
the production of VDF.

Organic Silicon

During the year, the external sales of the organic silicon segment
decreased by 26.86% to RMB4,862,426,000 from
RMB6,648,326,000 in the previous year, accounting for 33.55%
(2022: 33.20%) of the Group’s total external sales. The segment
results recorded a loss of RMB330,512,000, down 171.31% from a
profit of RMB463,465,000 in the previous year.

During the period under review, the organic silicon market was
impacted by the economic environment. Weakening demand and full
capacity release of the new production across the domestic organic
silicone industry led to a short-term imbalance between supply and
demand. As a result, market competition became fierce, pushing the
product price down below the industry cost level.
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This segment mainly included the production and sales of DMC
(upstream organic silicon intermediates that are used as raw materials
to produce deep processed mid-stream and downstream silicon
products, such as silicon oils, silicon rubber and silicon resins), 107
Silicon Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively
referred to as “Silicon Rubbers”, deep processed organic silicon
rubber products, where Raw Vulcanizate is a key material for
producing Gross Rubber), and other by-products and other high-end
downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicon Qils. Named
as “Industrial MSG"”, organic silicon is widely applied in aviation,
automotive, electronic, construction and other industries, mainly in
the form of additives, treatment chemicals stabilisers, lubricants and
sealants and is a key ingredient in industrial processes. The Group
initially produces silicon monomers with silicon powder and internally
generated chloromethane and further processes them to become
silicon intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion of which the
Group produces for Silicon Rubbers and other organic silicon
products. The Group can also produce and generate other by-
products and high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica
and Silicon Oils through its production processes.

Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s external sales decreased
by 27.57% to RMB1,176,824,000 from RMB1,624,811,000 in the
previous year, accounting for 8.12% (2022: 8.11%) of the Group’s
total external sales. The segment results recorded a profit of
RMB248,359,000, down 46.04% year on year (2022: profit of
RMB460,302,000). The products of this segment consist of chemical
commodities, which are greatly affected by economic changes. During
the period under review, the segment’s products recorded a
weakening demand, putting downward pricing pressure on the
products. Since the price drop on products outweighed the cost
decline on the raw materials, the relative profit level also recorded a
decline accordingly.
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This segment included the revenue from production and sales of two
major auxiliary products (dichloromethane and liquid alkali) of
Refrigerants Segment of the Group and PVC products. Liquid alkali is
a basic chemical product from the production of methane chloride
(essential chemical for the production of refrigerants and organic
silicon products), and used in the textile, power and materials
industries. Methane chloride includes dichloromethane, which is
mainly used to produce antibiotics and as a foaming mode for
polyurethane. The Group is engaged in the production of PVC (a
widely used thermoplastic polymer applied in the construction
industry to replace traditional building materials). The production of
refrigerants products generates a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which
is one of the basic raw materials for PVC production. Therefore, the
Group's PVC production can ensure production synergies, increasing
economic value generated from a self-sufficient business chain.

Others

During the period under review, the external sales of the segment was
RMB1,030,086,000, up 13.60% as compared with RMB906,791,000
in the previous year. The segment results recorded a profit of
RMB85,458,000 (2022: RMB32,627,000), representing a year-on-year
increase of 161.92%.

This segment included the revenue from the production and sales of
other by-products of the Group’s operating segments, such as
Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid and Bromine, and real estate
business, etc.. The Group has remained cautious with its real estate
business since the engagement in 2011. According to the prevailing
industry situation, the Group has determined to gradually withdraw
from the real estate industry since early 2020. Nowadays, only very
few real estate businesses remained, and the Group has no further
plan to expand this business segment.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
increased slightly by 0.86% to RMB503,038,000 from
RMB498,767,000 of the previous year. The disproportionate change
in distribution and selling expenses relative to the change in revenue
was mainly driven by the increase in transportation and miscellaneous
cost as a result of the increase in sales volume of some products of
the Group during the period under review.
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Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses decreased
by 34.86% to RMB647,286,000 from RMB993,740,000 of the
previous year. The decrease in administrative expenses was due to the
decrease on management expense, which also included the negative
impact on employee salary from the decline on financial results.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs decreased by 89.16%
to RMB1,659,000 from RMB15,302,000 of last year. The substantial
decrease in the Group's financing costs was due to loan reduction.
The Group has no outstanding loan as at 31 December 2023.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's aggregate capital
expenditure was approximately RMB1,918,256,000 (2022:
RMB3,923,933,000). The Group’'s capital expenditure is mainly
allocated for the construction of the new production lines, renovation
of existing production lines and construction of ancillary facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group'’s financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operating cash flow. As at 31 December
2023, the Group's total equity amounted to RMB16,938,409,000,
down 8.41% as compared with that as at 31 December 2022. As at
31 December 2023, the Group’s bank balances and cash came in at
RMB2,547,297,000 (2022: RMB5,315,994,000). The decrease in the
Group’s bank balance and cash was mainly attributable to the fact
that the net cash inflow from operating activities for the current year
was insufficient to fully cover the investment cash expenditure and
dividend payment. During the year under review, the Group
generated a total of RMB1,298,816,000 (2022: RMB5,082,541,000)
net cash inflow from its operating activities. The current ratio” of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 was 1.68 (31 December 2022: 2.00).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available
bank balances and cash, the unused banking credit facilities, bank’s
support and the Group's sufficient operating cash flows, the
management is confident that the Group has adequate resources to
settle any debts and to finance its daily operating and capital
expenditures.
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Capital Structure

Apart from disclosure in the section “Employee Option Scheme” and
“Off-market Share Buy-back and Disposal and Major and Connected
Transaction” in this report, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year under review. The number of issued shares
of the Company was 2,253,689,455 as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has no borrowing balance (2022:
no borrowing balance). The gearing ratio® of the Group was -15.04%
(2022: -28.75%). The negative gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023
represents the Group is “net cash” positive (i.e. has more cash &
equivalents than its debt), which is generally viewed as a positive
signal.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had no borrowings,
therefore there was no borrowing rate. In 2022, the Group had
borrowings at floating interest rate and shareholder interest rate. The
weighted average effective interest rate on floating rate borrowings
was 3.91% per annum; and the weighted average effective interest
rate on fixed rate borrowings was 4.35% per annum.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets =— Current Liabilities
(2) Gearing Ratio = Net Debt = Total Equity

Net Debt = Total Borrowings - Bank Balances and Cash

Group Structure

During the year under review, other than the disclosure under the
section headed "Off-market Share Buy-back and Disposal and Major
and Connected Transaction” in this report, there has no material
change in the structure of the Group.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’'s bank deposits of
RMB 143,859,000 (2022: RMB131,302,000) were used as security for
bills payable and regulated security deposit from presale of properties.
According to the requirements of the PRC property industry, the
property companies are required to place regulated security deposit in
their escrow account which cannot be used until the completion of
construction and the residential mortgage loan applications for the
customers. As at 31 December 2023, the relevant bank deposits were
RMB68,134,000 (2022: RMB87,958,000).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group's functional currency is RMB, and most transactions are
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States
dollars) will be received/paid when the Group earns revenue from
overseas customers, and settles purchases of machinery and
equipment to the overseas suppliers.

To reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies, the Group normally
converts the foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt after taking
into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in the near
future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group recorded 6,977 employees in total, including 6,056 males
and 921 female as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 7,065). The Group
implemented its remuneration policy and bonus based on the
performance of the Group and its employees. The Group provided
benefits such as social insurance, employee option scheme and
pensions to ensure market competitiveness on remuneration.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible
for the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and
has the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the
members of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 64, was appointed as the chairman,
chief executive officer and executive director of the Company in July
2006. He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “"Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over
37 years of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the director
of Dongyue Refrigerants, Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue F&sS, all
being the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
Vice President of the China Institute of Private Sector, Vice President
of the China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material
Industry, Vice Chairman of the 11th China Federation of Industry and
Commerce, Vice Chairman of the 12th China Civil Chamber of
Commerce, Member of the Standing Committee of the 11th and
12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shandong
Province, Vice Chairman of the 12th and 13th Federation of Industry
and Commerce of Shandong Province and a representative of the
10th Party Congress of Shandong Province. Mr. Zhang has obtained
the honorary titles of National Outstanding Builder of Socialism in the
Non-Public Economy (Fourth Session), “100 outstanding private
entrepreneurs during the 40 years of reform and opening up”,
Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry (First
Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in the
International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and
Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine
“Capital CEQ" (" BEARA & ").
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Mr. FU Kwan, aged 66, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in July 2006. Mr. Fu is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and the president of Macro-Link Group. Mr. Fu
served as a police commissioner of Liling City, deputy secretary of the
Party Committee of the Commune, secretary of the township party
committee, deputy director of the Liling City Economic Commission,
director of the Municipal Foreign Trade Bureau and the Party
secretary, deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import
and Export Group (& TE R # H O % E), and associate leader
of social working team of province station at Liuyang City. Mr. Fu
served as the member of executive committee, standard committee of
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce, the director of
participation and deliberation of politics committee of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the deputy chairman of the
tenth All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce, and the deputy
chairman of the eleventh of China Chamber of Commerce. He also
served as the eleventh, the twelfth and the thirteenth CPPCC
member, the member of the social and legal committee of CPPCC,
and the chairman of Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce. He
was appointed as deputy chairman of the board of Central South
University and Beijing Foreign Studies University. He was selected for
several times as “Outstanding builders of socialism with Chinese
characteristics”, “Top ten Entrepreneur in China”, “China Economic
Person of the Year”, “100 outstanding private entrepreneurs at the
40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening-up”, “Persons of
China Private Sector for the 40 Years” and other honors. In addition,
Mr. Fu is the director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development
Co., Ltd. R EE B UL Ik 87 3 R AR (9 B FR 2 7), a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu is also the chairman and
executive director of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (378 & /K
B BR A A]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Fu owns a direct 4.25% and an indirect 90% interest in
Macrolink Holding, which wholly owns Macrolink International.
Macrolink International is a substantial shareholder of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited.
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Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 60, was appointed as the executive
director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Wang has worked for
the Group since September 1996 and is responsible for technology
R&D and corporate management matters. During the period, he
chaired the overall preparation works for incorporation of
fluorosilicone companies as well as organic silicon companies. He then
acted as the general manager of Dongyue Fluorosilicone, Dongyue
Organosilicon and other companies. Mr. Wang is also the chairman of
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed
on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He has over 30
years' experience for manufacture and management in the chemical
industry. He is currently the president of the Group and the director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang also received
various awards such as the nationwide outstanding chemical
engineering (£ Bt TEF B T E#&) from Petroleum and
Chemical Industry Federation (/& ji f1/t T T 2 1% &), Outstanding
Contribution Entrepreneurs (£ H & B & ¥ %) and Shandong
Outstanding Entrepreneurs (LU R & EF B KR). Mr. Wang holds a
master degree in business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 49, was appointed as the executive
director, vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in
May 2017. Mr. Zhang was the financial controller of the Group from
2006 to 2007. He has served as the financial controller and general
manager of MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. GITEB B E B R A 7)) from
February 2008 to February 2016. Mr. Zhang is also the director of
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed
on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Zhang
graduated in the Hunan University in 2003. He is also a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a registered
tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience
in accounting and finance.
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Mr. ZHANG lJian, aged 51, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in
the investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a
bachelor degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics and a Master degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang
is currently an executive director of New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited (a company listed on the HKSE) and Macrolink Capital
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the HKSE), the vice-chairman
of Keda Industrial Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange). He is also an executive director of Sichuan Hongda
Co., Ltd. (Wl Z#ZE WD B R A 7)) (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange), and Sailun Group Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and a director of Macrolink
Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd. (3 B SO (b ik % 3% & AR 1D
B R 2 7]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 42, was appointed as the executive
director of the Company in March 2024. Ms. Chung is also the
company secretary of the Company. She joined the Group as the
Company secretary since March 2015. Ms. Chung is primarily
responsible for overseeing and managing regulatory compliance
matters of the Company. Ms. Chung is a director of Hong Kong Tai Li
International Trading Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Ms. Chung has over 20 years of work experience in
accounting, corporate finance, compliance, and strategic investment.
Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Chung had worked in the audit
division and financial advisory services (M&A Transactions) of Deloitte.
Ms. Chung had also worked in the merger and acquisition team of
Hong Kong Li & Fung Group and the strategic investment team of
Simsen International Corporate Limited (a company then listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange). Ms. Chung holds a
bachelor degree of business administration, majoring in professional
accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor degree of laws from the University of London. Ms. Chung is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD, aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting
is an accountant by profession and has over 40 years of experience in
Accounting, Auditing and Management. Mr. Ting is currently a non-
executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
and an independent non-executive director of five companies listed
on the HKSE, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited,
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings Limited and China SCE
Group Holdings Limited.

Mr. MA Zhizhong, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Ma has over
30 years of teaching experience. Since July 1998, Mr. Ma has been
working at Zibo University and Shandong University of Technology as
the head of the legal office and he was appointed as a professor of
the law school of Shandong University of Technology in January 2018.
Mr. Ma is also a qualified PRC lawyer since September 1992. Mr. Ma
holds a bachelor’s degree in politics from Qufu Normal University and
a master of laws from Shandong University.

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has
over 30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicon
industries. Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar Chengrand Research
Institute of Chemical Industry as chief engineer and director of
National Organic Silicon Engineering and Technological Research
Centre and National Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision and
Inspection Centre, and the chief secretary of the Organic Silicon
Professional Committee of China Association of Fluorine and Silicon
Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang is currently the honorary president
and the chief engineer of the Expert Committee of China Association
of Fluorine and Silicon Industry. In addition, Mr. Yang is currently an
independent director of Henan Hengxing Science & Technology Co.
Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an independent
director of New Asia Man Silicon Chemistry Co., Ltd. (¥a2 38 fE{b 2
f& 17 EBR A ) and an independent director of Hubei Jianghan New
Materials Co., Ltd. CHIL)T B F R RR D R A 7).
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Senior management

Mr. LI Yuwen, aged 56, obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University. He is currently studying MBA at
Fudan University and the title of senior political scientist of professor
level. He has worked for the Group since March 2002 until now,
currently serves as the deputy president of the Group. He excels in
management, innovation and corporate culture development, and has
promoted the management reform of the Company under the
support and guidance of the Group’s management. He is the author
of Management Revolution ({ &2 #) £ 7)), etc.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group'’s principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
138 to 139.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 (six months ended 30 June
2022: Nil).

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.1
(the “Final Dividend"”) (2022: HK$0.60) per share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2023, to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company (the “Register”)
on 17 June 2024, subject to the approval of the members of the
Company at the Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM").
The Final Dividend is after excluding the applicable PRC income tax.

The dividend policy adopted by the Board is intended for the
Company to maintain adequate cash reserves to meet its operational
and capital requirements, fund its future growth and enhance
shareholder value if and when dividends are recommended subject to
applicable laws, rules and regulations and the articles of association of
the Company. According to the dividend policy, the declaration of
any dividends will depend on the following factors, including actual
and expected financial performance of the Group, the distributable
reserves of the Group, the working capital and capital expenditure
requirements of the Group, the liquidity position of the Group, the
overall economic situation, and any other factors that the Board
considers relevant. The Board has considered the relevant factors
when recommending the final dividends for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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The dividend policy shall not constitute a legal binding commitment
of the Company to pay dividends in any amount or ratio. The Board
will review this policy from time to time, and may at anytime change
this policy at its sole discretion as it deems appropriate and necessary.

The AGM of the Company will be held on 6 June 2024. A notice of
the AGM will be published and dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company in due course.

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 3 June 2024 to 6 June 2024, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all
share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m.on 31 May 2024.

The Register will be closed from 13 June 2024 to 17 June 2024, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend,
all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m. on 12 June 2024.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 142.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.
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Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMB3,848,549,000 of which HK$173,271,164 (approximately
equivalent to RMB155,608,768) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

Other than as disclosed under the sections headed “Employee Option
Scheme” and “Off-market Share Buy-back and Disposal and Major
and Connected Transaction”, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Employee Option Scheme

The Company adopted an employee option scheme (the “Employee
Option Scheme”) which shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
(10) years expiring on 26 December 2028. The purposes of the
Employee Option Scheme are (i) to recognize the contributions by
certain employees or consultants of the Group and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, the trustee will purchase
existing Shares from the market out of cash contributed by the Group
of not more than HK$1,300,000,000 in total at all material times and
hold such Shares on trust for the relevant employees or consultants of
the Group selected by the Board (the “Selected Employees”). The
Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion grant to any
Selected Employee the right to purchase the relevant Shares (the
“Option”). The Selected Employee may, when exercising the Option,
elect the number of Shares which he wishes to (i) be transferred and/
or (i) sell and receive the difference, if any, between the sale price of
the Shares and the exercise price of the Option.
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The cash dividends derived from the Shares under the Employee
Option Scheme will form part of the residual cash of the trust fund
which can be used to purchase Shares subject to instructions given to
the Trustee.

On 9 July 2021, the Board has resolved to grant Options to a total of
1,372 selected employees to purchase a total of 62,570,000 Option
Shares at an exercise price of HK$4.27 per Option Share, with an
exercise period of 5 calendar years commencing from 9 July 2021 and
expiring on 8 July 2026, both dates inclusive. Further details of the
grant of the Options are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 9 July 2021. A total of 62,570,000 Options have been fully
exercised by the selected employees.

76,707,000 Shares in the amount of HK$731,013,000 are still held by
the Trustee under the Employee Option Scheme as at 31 December
2023, in which 33,923,000 Shares in the amount of HK$200,365,000
have been purchased during the year ended 31 December 2023. No
Options have been granted under the Employee Option Scheme
during the reporting period.

Under the Employee Option Scheme, up to 31 December 2023, the
Company have contributed HK$998,187,000 in total to purchase
Shares from the market since the set up of the scheme.

The Employee Option Scheme is not a share option scheme and is not
subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Employee Option Scheme are set out in the

Company announcement dated 27 December 2018 and 28 March
2023.
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Off-market Share Buy-back and Disposal and
Major and Connected Transaction

On 23 October 2023, (i) the Company entered into the Share Buyback
Agreement with the vendors (each being a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Macrolink Holding Limited (“MLH"), a substantial shareholder of
the Company prior to the Share Buy-back completion) pursuant to
which the vendors have proposed to sell, and the Company has
proposed to buy-back for cancellation, an aggregate of 520,977,818
Shares (representing approximately 23.12% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the Share Buy-back Agreement) at
an aggregate consideration of HK$3,698,700,646 (equivalent to
RMB3,456,729,576), being approximately HK$7.1 per Buy-back
Share; and (ii) Dongyue Fluorosilicone Science and Technology Group
Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement with MLH pursuant to which Dongyue Fluorosilicone
Technology has proposed to sell, and MLH has proposed to purchase,
the respective Equity Interests in the Target Companies (collectively, (i)
Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Polymers”) , (ii)
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd. (“ Dongyue
Organosilicon”) and (iii) Shandong Dongyue Future Future Hydrogen
Energy Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Hydrogen”)) at an aggregate
consideration of RMB3,456,729,576 (equivalent to
HK$3,698,700,646, consisting RMB1,752,000,000 (with regards to
Dongyue Polymers), RMB1,539,729,576 (with regards to Dongyue
Organosilicon) and RMB165,000,000 (with regards to Dongyue
Hydrogen). After the disposal completion, Dongyue Polymers and
Dongyue Organosilicon remain subsidiaries of the Group and
Dongyue Organosilicon; and Dongyue Hydrogen remains an
associated company of the Group. The consideration for the Disposal
was determined by the parties to the Disposal with reference to the
A-shares trading price (as to Dongyue Organosilicon), and their
respective financial performance (as to Dongyue Polymers and
Dongyue Hydrogen).

In addition, MLH is indirectly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an executive
Director and a substantial Shareholder of the Company prior to the
Share Buy-back completion) , hence as associate of Mr. Fu Kwan
therefore connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing
Rules”). The Share Buy-back and the Disposal therefore also
constitutes connected transactions of the Company.
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BEDE B N &R 522023912 A18HMZA  The Share Buy-back and the Disposal have been duly passed by way

NEIBEBFRAREARERRFRETLNBEB©  of poll at the EGM of the Company held on 18 December 2023, the

B EAE TR RERRISEMER 5% conditions to the completion of the Share Buy-back and the Disposal

FRKE R 2024F3 A5HEE - have been fulfilled, and that the completion took place on 5 March
2024.

TRIHEARB () BERMHEETKR : XG()E  The following table sets out the shareholding structure of the

BENS () B B ST AR 18 K st S B BE AL D B R SAE &SRS« Company () immediately before the Share Buy-back completion; and
(ii) immediately after the Share Buy-back completion and upon
cancellation of the Buy-back Shares:

Vendors Concert Group EF-HT8%EE 529,481,909 23.49 8,504,091 0.49
MACRO-LINK International” FER 370,977,818 16.46 - -
Macrolink Overseas'™ FEREI 150,000,000 6.66 - -
Directors of Vendors and EREEREFHLA]

Vendors’ parent companies® EEY 8,504,000 037 8,504,000 0.49
Mr. Zhang Jian® KELFED 91 0.00 91 0.00

Dongyue Team Limited® Dongyue Team Limited © 258,948,451 11.49 258,948,451 14.94

Mr. Zhang Jianhong® REELE 7,147,636 0.32 7,147,636 0.41

Qixin Investment® EREREY 95,219,000 422 95,219,000 5.50

Dongyue Wealth® Dongyue Wealth® 75,626,000 3.36 75,626,000 437

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng® RHETE® 750,000 0.03 750,000 0.04

Other independent Shareholders® At B AR © 1,286,516,459 57.08  1,286,516,459 74.25

Total 2,253,689,455 100.00  1,732,711,637 100.00

5T - Notes:

1) MEMBRENERGINSREERERARBLLE - (1) The ultimate beneficial owner of MACRO-LINK International and Macrolink
Overseas is Mr. Fu.
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E ZERMBIZTARBIMBETRAERES
BE RERAY ZERNIEXABEFAMES EF
HEHF—BTHEBNIMKE - RIBFEBERGEIR
BRA STEANERTEENETEERAEEFENRD
B8 R B {E (] #5 SE 4 ©

M IE B HA - 52 2,253,689,455 % B B TR O - AR
RIS I BB ATRR D MO E MR AR - FTIRARE S - R
fREBERHTETH -

BHEEERERSHFBHNARABHAE
2023F 1M A 0B EEBRMEERERRZ 2B
B~ ANABIBEIA2023 12 A18H A #2023 4F

12ABABRITZERRENAERR

RERZ

NECAQAFBEA202492 A26 8 BB IEH
HEKBRAZAERAANG B AE2024F3 A5
AEBTKENEERERR S 2 AE -
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6)

This includes shareholding of directors (and their close relatives (as defined under
the Takeovers Code), related trusts and companies controlled by any of the
directors, their close relatives or related trusts) of the Vendors’ parent companies
(being Macrolink Industrial, MLH and Cheung Shek), namely (i) Ms. Liu Jing (a
director of the Vendors, MLH, Macrolink Industrial and Cheung Shek) who holds
5,847,000 Shares; (ii) Mr. Ma Chenshan (a director of MLH and Cheung Shek)
who holds 528,000 Shares; (iii) Ms. Xiao Wenhui (a director of MLH and Cheung
Shek) who holds 1,070,000 Shares; (iv) Ms. Zhong Ping (the spouse of Mr. Feng
Jianjun, a director of MLH and Cheung Shek) who holds 15,000 Shares; (v) Ms. Fu
Shuangshuang (daughter of Mr. Fu and a director of MLH) who holds 250,000
Shares; (vi) Mr. Wu Xiangdong (close relative of Mr. Fu) who holds 789,000
Shares; and (vii) Ms. Wang Yi (a director of MACRO-LINK International and
Macrolink Industrial) who holds 5,000 Shares. Mr. Zhang Jian is an executive
Director and is a member of the Vendors Concert Group.

Dongyue Team Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Jianhong.

Each of Mr. Zhang Jianhong and Mr. Zhang Zhefeng is an executive Director, who
does not have a material interest in the Transactions which is different from the
interests of all other Shareholders and is not a member of nor acting in concert
with the Vendors Concert Group.

As at the date of completion, Qixin Investment which holds 95,219,000 Shares
and Dongyue Wealth which holds 75,626,000 Shares, are parties that have agreed
to exercise the voting power of their respective shareholding interests in the
Company in alignment with Mr. Zhang Jianhong. Each of Qixin Investment and
Dongyue Wealth does not have a material interest in the Transactions which is
different from the interests of all other Shareholders and is not acting in concert
with the Vendors Concert Group.

These include 76,707,000 Shares held by Hong Kong Tai Li International Trading
Company Limited, being the trustee of the employee share scheme of the
Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company whose directors are
employees of the Group. Under the employee share scheme, such Shares were
purchased by the trustee on the Stock Exchange to be held for the benefit of the
employees of the Group and have not been granted to any employees, Directors
or any member of the Vendors Concert Group as at the date of the completion.
Under the rules of the employee share scheme, the trustee is not entitled to
exercise any voting rights in the Shares held by it on trust for the employees.

Save for the 2,253,689,455 Shares in issue, the Company has no other options,
convertible securities, warrants or derivatives in respect of the Shares in issue as at
the date of completion.

Details of the Share Buyback and Disposal transaction are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 30 November 2023 in relation to
the Share Buyback and the Disposal, the announcement of the
Company dated 18 December 2023 in relation to the poll results of
the EGM held on 18 December 2023, the announcement of the
Company dated 26 February 2024 in relation to the status of
satisfaction of the conditions and the announcement of the Company
dated 5 March 2024 in relation to the completion of the Share Buy-
back and Disposal.
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BE—RBREGREHFRDFABHKIE Allocation of the Net Proceeds from Placing of
HEN DO New Shares under the General Mandate

() REAEEPVDF(—ERIEL MIH BELEESR 2,000,000 1,436,636 563364 2025%12A31R
ARARMREEZH  REBREE X RERENZ A
BAFIH) REFRME (BIR1420/5 40E) MESS
Enhancing the Group’s production capacity of PVDF (a type of 31 December 2025
fluoropolymer that is climate resistant and highly machinable
with excellent mechanical properties, which can be used as
weather-resistant coating materials, adhesives for lithium
batteries and photovoltaic backplanes) and its raw material

(being R142b collant)
() REFEEPE(-BREANEEEE BE MELR 800,000 628,405 171595 20255124318
it 2mam 2 aNEA F) RERMH (BIR22/2 41H)
MEH
Enhancing the Group’s production capacity of PTFE (a synthetic 31 December 2025

fluoropolymer with high level of resistance to temperature
changes, electrical insulation, and aging and chemical
resistant) and its raw material (being R22 coolant)

© BRAEER-REEESE 510,000 510,000 0 -

Replenishing the general working capital of the Group
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan (resigned on 27 March 2024)
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Wang Weidong (President)
Mr. Zhang Jian (resigned on 27 March 2024)
Ms. Chung Tak Lai (Company Secretary)

(appointed on 27 March 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Ma Zhizhong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Wang Weidong, Mr. Yang
Xiaoyong and Ms. Chung Tak Lai (the newly appointed director) will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance, to which
the Company, its fellow subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Employee Option
Scheme” and “Off-market Share Buy-back and Disposal and Major
and Connected Transaction” in this report, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, their respective spouse or minor children to acquire benefit
by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 23.
Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to
the duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the
results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 42 to 61.

Environmental, Social and Governance practice

Details of the environmental, social and governance practice of the
Company are set out on pages 62 to 130.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2023 33



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(a)

ESRFIETHRAERRG HBEROR
ERENEERLA

7 2023F 128318 ARBIEERTE
THRABRBEESEMNHEANARQA L
Higsorm (& AEFRBEERN ([FH
MERE &G EXVER) MR - R G5
MERBETHEEREES RS EHE XV
BT NESDEAMEARRRE BB
FreyiEess ok B (B IEIRIEE H M E 156
BRERTEHE G AEENERE AR -
SIRIBEBRF LB EGEO FE 3525 BRER
ZEmnEsc Mgz xE HBE L
MEITAEZETESFRZDEESTR ([12
SFR) BHNEARR RE BB FTHE
HIORBMT ¢

EENA
Name of Director

REREE
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BERXLE

Mr. Fu Kwan

RERE
Mr. Zhang Jian

SR KA
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

EEEE
Nature of interest

oS 2l
Corporate interest®
Bk
Beneficial interest

ERER?
Corporate interest?

BEmEn
Beneficial interest

st s
EmEn

Beneficial interest

1 RIBEHIE  R2024F3 A58 0 ARFIE MK
REZEMBRARMEBRBIEZRERAAN
520,977,818 &35 7% {7 [E1 8 + E R 150,000,000
fi% 3 & Macrolink Overseas & 370,977,818 i% 2 &
FTEBER - TEBRITRER AR AELERE
Pl FBHER MBI ERBERERZIZRE

ERERS |- e

Disclosure of interests

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

R RAABER G EE
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

HEBRTREEIL
% of issued
share capital

258,948,451 (L) 11.49 (L)
7,147,636 (L) 0.32 (L)
520,977,818 (L) 23.12 (L)
91 (L) 0.00 (L)
750,000 (L) 0.03 (L)
* Subsequent to the reporting period, on 5 March 2024, the Company has

completed the off-market Share Buyback of 520,977,818 Shares from
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Macrolink Holding Limited, in which
150,000,000 Shares from Macrolink Overseas and 370,977,818 Shares
from Macrolink International. Macrolink Holding Limited is indirectly
controlled by Mr. Fu. Details are set out in the section headed “Off-market
Share Buyback and Disposal and Major and Connected Transaction”.
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(1) BEEFHFRBEGL BRRERLERE
Dongyue Team Limited &) & ZB4# 25 + #U5R 55 4 1%
1% A7 Dongyue Team Limited #3578 #) 258,948,451
Pt (L) S e

(2) 5% 5 I 1D % A& 150,000,000 % A% 17 (L) Bt Macrolink
Overseas (MTEZEBBE RN 2 EMBRR) HER
A+ 370,977,818 & A% 17 (L) B R ¥ E B B BR B
ERE MyEBBARANGNEHELE2ER
BoMEMBEOANERLEREZERSE - MAE
BIERABRAREELED A HEEF3.4% Kk
2.83% 1S o IO RADRIBBELERY X
B+ HEEAS59.76% K 33.46% 2

B EXFTEE SN R2023F12A31H @ AR
AENMNEERETBTRABRESS AN E
ABERA QB EERAEEE (TERES
N EFEEMIE XV ES) B R% (5 - B R EREE
PEAEAREES RSO EXVIEET ME
SO WAEMEARB R EBM MM ESRIAR
(BREBREESRBEKRNEEHETEREIERIR
BHEBRHNEZRAR)  HIREZSHREBE K
% 352 IR SN Z G Pt B R MRS SA R -
SRBIZETRIAMEG AR R R BB FTR

SL AN
HIAE ©

(b) FERRRHEMATRERSG HEROK
EREENEERARR

F2023F 128318 MARRESERE
BITRABAA - THOAL (WIEARRAH
EELTFETHAE) REARRINARMD HAE
BRR D P B iR SR IR IR 7B 5 R B E K11
FIBHEBEFTEENECMARBIEES
M ERPIEXVIBE2RE3ID BIEXAE
MARRIEENEZIAER

Notes:

Q! Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
258,948,451 Shares (L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2) These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 370,977,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

(3) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the then
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the HKSE.

(b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests and
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company, the following persons
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Name of Shareholder

Macrolink Overseas

e AN
Macrolink International

e
Macrolink Industrial

FTEE BRI
Macrolink Holding

£A
Cheung Shek

BHXEZL
Ms. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited

EmEE
Nature of interest

Bt
Beneficial interest’

T
EmEm

Beneficial interest’
DR
Corporate interest’

DR
Corporate interest’

DR
Corporate interest’

DR
Corporate interest’

DR
Corporate interest’

sl ot
EmEn

Beneficial interest?

o RIREHIE  R2024F3 A58 ARFIE MK
REZ2EANBRARIMERIZERERAAM
520,977,818 f& 355N i% 14 [E1 85 - E # 150,000,000
fi% 2 & Macrolink Overseas }2 370,977,818 1% & &
TEMBIER - STERITRAR QR HE L ERE
e FRBRHER MBI ERBERERZZRE
EREER S| —fiR -

B AE -

1. %5 B9 # A 150,000,000 A% B 19 (L) 85 Macrolink
Overseas (FTEBBEBRNEEMBRAR) HER
A+ 370,977,818 & A% 17 (L) Bl R ¥ B B BR B
ERE My EBBARNETEHELE2ERE
B o NMEBRBTERNERITREERSEG  MIE
IR AR RARBELEEDFIEHF93.4% &
283% c IHh RAEDBIABELEEREXEX
T EEEE59.76% [ 33.46% S ©

2. REBHFRPEGY BRERBRREERE
Dongyue Team Limited 8 100% # &3 - 9% %% 4 #%
%A 7 Dongyue Team Limited #3575 £ 258,948,451
&R (L) 5 e

Notes:

IR R ARBA R 3 BB
Number of shares
or underlying Shares

HEBTREABSL
% of issued
share capital

150,000,000 (L) 6.66 (L)
370,977,818 (L) 16.46 (L)
150,000,000 (L)* 6.66 (L)
520,977,818 (L)’ 23.12 (L)
520,977,818 (L) 23.12 (L)
520,977,818 (L)’ 23.12 (L)
520,977,818 (L) 23.12 (L)
258,948,451 (L) 11.49 (L)

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 5 March 2024, the Company has
completed the off-market Share Buyback of 520,977,818 Shares from
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Macrolink Holding Limited, in which
150,000,000 Shares from Macrolink Overseas and 370,977,818 Shares
from Macrolink International. Macrolink Holding Limited is indirectly
controlled by Mr. Fu. Details are set out in the section headed " Off-market
Share Buyback and Disposal and Major and Connected Transaction”.

These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 370,977,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in

Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
258,948,451 Shares (L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

L: Long Position
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() Interests in other members of the Group as at 31

AR December 2023
EERNELRE
BRITRE
PN ) N ZHBARNEERR BB EEME EMEXRBF DL
% of issued share
capital/registered
Name of the Name of substantial shareholder capital of

Company'’s subsidiary

NEERECERICTHERAF
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine
Chemicals Co., Ltd.

TREEFBEARANA
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd.

of such subsidiary

TR R EFE BRI AR AR
Chifeng Zhongxing Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

TrIE R B SR AR QA

Chifeng Zhongxing Information

Nature of interest such subsidiary

Technology Co., Ltd.

IR R MR R AR A A
Shandong Times New Material
Technology Co.,Ltd.

B ESFTEEEIN MARRZEEREZITHA
BFTH - 2023F12 A31H  BIETEEMA
T (WHEARANEETKEIETHAE) REARQ
ARG IAEERD T HEERBEEFRBAE KN E
XVEZE 2 %830 G BRA R TR AR
oA R KEEREEREN R EE
AIHER TRAEEEMEMKEAGIRRARE L
HER AR ARTEE10% 3 A B o

SRAREMEEEN  REAREEAREEH
AR B Sl AL AR EL PR B % ) B4 B BSCR S AT T LB
BABREBELMERGL -

B A EERRERA A
Jinan Shicheng Silicone
Technology Co.,Ltd.

NG 49
Corporate
NG 20
Corporate
NGT 35
Corporate

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2023, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company) had any interest or a short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of the Group.

Saved as disclose in this report, there was no other contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year and
up to the date of this report.
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TEHEBREF

AERBARETEHERLEFPERENBELE
EBEPLT

BE
— A ER 6.45%
— AR ER (EHETHE) 14.93%
HE
— &RREF 1.71%
— AREF (AHTE 7.13%
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HEEBWRFABHFLEMRA (T EWHRAD H
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ROEIERERT SR EEMEER S| —FiF -

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors of
the Company was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 6.45%
— five largest suppliers combined 14.93%
Sales
— the largest customer 1.71%
— five largest customers combined 7.13%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has entered
into connected transaction that is subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and Independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 and 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing Rules”). More details
are set out under the section headed “Off-market Share Buy-back and
Disposal and Major and Connected Transaction” of this report.
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Continuing Connected transaction

Details of the continuing connected transactions conducted by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 not falling under
Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

2023 FNHABERS FELR 023 FBHREH

Continuing connected transactions for the year 2023 Annual Cap 2023 Actual

(AR¥BET) (AR®BET)

(RMB million) (RMB million)

HRESEETRVHRERER Sale and purchase of raw materials and product 370 215
RERERS (1) and provision of ancillary services with (HEFELR)
Dongyue Hydrogen (Note 1) (Sale annual cap)

226 104
(BEFELR)
(Purchase annual cap)

MEBEREEMBERLA Financial services master agreement for provision of 320 310
REGFTRBREFTREMSEBERY  deposit services and loan services by Marco-link (BEREA
TihE((EESRRERE] Holding Group Finance Company Limited (the 202245A1281
(F3E2) "Renewed FS Agreement”) (Note 2) BRERREHR)
(under the Supplemental
FS Agreement dated
12 May 2022)

MaE1:  M2022F 128288 AR GIEEL2ERB AT R Note 1:  On 28 December 2022, Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and Technology Group

ERERBEEARAR ((REAERE]  AH
R RAKRHEWBAR  BILRRERLEEMB
BipARAR (TRERAE]) T T CRM B RRF
BEEERBGE) Bt RESRENBERENEAR

AEORAEEREEERERMEREERY (H
FENEE LR A AR 106,503,0007T) + HEE
EEMEEZA  Ri)AREEERBTERME
MERREERY (BEHANBEE EROAARE
70,366,0007T) F HAKEEEFELE 2R BEE
WMEAZE 202345 A31 1L -

M2023F6 A2 REARBEMFEREAE L
(EBERMHRBRBEBEERBGZRI EFREE
REELEER LY  B2023F6A1HEE
2023F 12 A3MHER  BEBAEE ERAOAA
R#263,573,0007C  HEHRBE FROAARE
155,945,000 7T °

AXRPHEFE LREABEFE LRA LRRER
AHE LR Z A

RESERRAANBEAL - Bt - RELTH
BIE 4AERRE « 7T LM B R R T B EAEZR
FYARBEETHRGER T AR BN ERE
RP - BARARZMFREIIN A R2023F6 H2
HEYRE -

Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology”, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries, and Shandong
Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Hydrogen”)
entered into the Raw Materials and Services Sale and Purchase Framework
Agreement, pursuant to which Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology and its
subsidiaries have agreed to (i) supply the Dongyue Raw Materials and Ancillary
Services to Dongyue Hydrogen (with a sales cap of approximately
RMB106,503,000 during the term of the agreement) for its production and
operations and (ii) purchase the Hydrogen Raw Materials and Products and
Ancillary Services from Dongyue Hydrogen (with a purchase cap of
approximately RMB70,366,000 during the term of the agreement) for the
Group's production and operations for a term up to 31 May 2023.

On 2 June 2023, Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology and Dongyue Hydrogen
entered into the Renewed Raw Materials and Services S&P Framework
Agreement Il which was agreed that the supply and purchase transaction
arrangement was extended for a term commencing from 1 June 2023 and
expiring on 31 December 2023, with a sales cap of approximately
RMB263,573,000 during the term of the agreement and a purchase cap of
approximately RMB155,945,000 during the term of the agreement.

The annual sales cap and annual purchase cap in this table are the sum of the
caps agreed in the above two agreements.

Dongyue Hydrogen is a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
entering into of the Raw Materials and Services Sales and Purchase Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement dated 2 June 2023.
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Note 2: On 12 May 2022, the Company and the Macro-link Finance entered into the

Supplemental Agreement to amend the existing Renewed Financial Services
Master Agreement, pursuant to which the term of the agreement was extended
to expire on 21 July 2024, with the annual cap of RMB320,000,000.

Marco-link Finance is a connected person of the Company, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Marco-link Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
approximately 23.12% of the issued share capital of the Company. In addition,
Marco-link Holdings Limited is indirectly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an executive
Director). Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 12 May 2022.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company and the auditor has
confirmed the requirements set out in rule 14A.56 in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions.

Related party transactions

The details of the related party transaction during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in the note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 33(a) and 33(c) to the
consolidated financial statements are also the connected transactions
(including the continuing connected transactions) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules which have been complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Further details of the connected transactions (including the continuing
connected transactions) are set out in the section “Connected
transactions” of this report.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float of the
issued shares of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Tax relief and exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s
securities.

Permitted indemnity provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided
that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 26 March 2024
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and
maximizing returns to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), while at the same time fulfilling their corporate
responsibilities. To this end, we strive to promote and uphold the
highest standard of corporate governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the
“Code”) during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer, the details of which have been
disclosed in the relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board’s Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of
the business of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, except that (i) Ms. Chung Tak Lai was appointed as an
executive director on 27 March 2024; and (i) Mr. Fu Kwan and Mr.
Zhang Jian has resigned as an executive director on 27 March 2024,
there was no change in the structure of the Board, which currently
comprises seven Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan (resigned on 27 March 2024)
Mr. Wang Weidong (President)
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhang Jian (resigned on 27 March 2024)
Ms. Chung Tak Lai (Company Secretary)

(appointed on 27 March 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. Ma Zhizhong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” section on pages 18 to
23 of this annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board. At
least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that all the
INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2023 43



TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

REBEFE EFecHHITRARERER
BEA R BRI R - WRHA ML EARKEF
ERHPHEEARCEE R EH2E MK
BN MBRERRS B - EEBERES
BN - NEEFE  HBTOREEEEH
—RERBFEAE ((RFBFAG)) L—RBER
FrlRg ((BRRESAE]) RRBBREESI
EERNMERRS SESHREFEEH
BERBFAGRBRFHIAEHIFERER T
AN ETARBAUKERERS  BHhBNE
ERABHEENEEDNEREENEMARAART
IABRTE -

FR BREFHFEFEEH BRRAFRER
BRFRRENERETINT

During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, business operations,
financial, off-market share buy-back and disposal transaction, capital,
employee option scheme and remuneration. During the year under
review, four Board meetings, an annual general meeting (“AGM")
and an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") in relation to the off-
market share buy-back and disposal were held. The attendance of
each Director at the Board meetings, the AGM and the EGM is set out
as follows. In addition, certain matters relating to entering of the
continuing connected transaction, announcements of profit warning
and inside information were dealt with by written resolutions of the
directors.

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, an AGM and an EGM is set out as follows:

BITES: EDs:

SREBREAE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 4/4 v v/
HEEE Mr. Fu Kwan 4/4 X X
FHREE Mr. Wang Weidong 4/4 X v
SR & S Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 4/4 v/ v
RIS A Mr. Zhang Jian 4/4 v X
BYFBITES: INEDs:

TRBRAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 4/4 v/ v/
HEEB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 4/4 v v
BERLEE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 4/4 X v
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has dealt with
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual and
interim results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate
governance, capital, financial, off-market share buy-back and disposal
transaction, investment, employee option scheme and remuneration.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group to
the senior management under the supervision of the Board. In
addition, on 15 December 2023, the Chairman held the discussion
with all the INEDs without the presence of other EDs to exchange
views on matters concerning the business development and internal
control of the Group.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required by
business needs. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings (or
reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least
3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them
from potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they
discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors are
provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. During the year, the Company organized for the
Directors an in-house training on the Listing Rules.
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BIEARFTFENDS EENOEFADEST According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
TORBEEEER T EAIE received the following training on continuous professional
development during the year under review:

BITESE: EDs:

RERFE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
BELLE Mr. Fu Kwan v
FHREE Mr. Wang weidong v/
RE LA Mr. Zhang Zhefeng v/
RIS Mr. Zhang Jian v/
BYFBITES: INEDs:

TREBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
HBRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
BEBRLE Mr. Ma Zhizhong v/
EEELEERPNER Directors’ responsibilities in corporate

governance

SERHINEFSIZENCEEANEEMRILT)  The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for

BENET - Bl CE¥ERZEEAE (EHP  maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,

BE)EBEARANDEEABRREERIUKLA  the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among others,

NERBETTRMARE N EEIEE - reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company’s compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

FLZHBERARECEEARAZEE] —HF  More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
HBAERE A - headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the Director(s) is expected to have
expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company and
to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making process of
the Company.

Except Mr. Ma Zhizhong, directors of the Company did not entered
into service contracts with the Group but subject to rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Company’s articles association. Mr.
Ma Zhizhong entered into the letter of appointment with the
Company for a terms of two years commencing from 11 March 2023.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”),
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same position provides the Group with stronger and
more consistent leadership and allows for more effective planning.
Further, the Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power, which has been closely monitored by the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board
has full confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that the current
arrangement is beneficial to the business prospect of the Group.
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Gender diversity at board level

Appendix 14) of the Code stipulates that the board should achieve
gender diversity no later than 31 December 2024. The Board has
achieved achieve the board gender diversity by appointment at least
one female director on the board on 27 March 2024.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company’s and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee). To further enhance independence, all the committees
(except the Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of
INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee to consider
the remuneration for Directors and senior management of the
Company. The remuneration committee comprises Mr. Yang
Xiaoyong (Chairman) and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen who are
independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Zhang Jianhong who is
an executive Director.
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HZE2023F12A31ALFE HFMEELEE  During the year ended 31 December 2023, one meeting of the

T—REg#E- Remuneration Committee was held.
FR-SERENLEEARINOT During the year, the attendance of each member is set out as follow:

ZEEgKE Committee member:

BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
TRB&LE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
RERFE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v

SERIETEHZE2023F12A31BIEMBEE®  During the meetings the remuneration of the EDs and the Group's

HTEERAEESEEEABMHB - LI senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2023

ZEEREEFRIEMTESERALESEE  were approved. In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the

BABMFHH  AEEEFHMEFEEEREEER  remuneration for the Directors, the Group’s senior management and

EFTEHERT A © the Group's remuneration related matters and the amendments to
the employee option scheme.

BEEEAS GERARRIES)NEE20234F12  The remuneration of the members of the senior management (who
A3MBILEENHMEERIET - are not the directors of the Company) by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

8,500,001 % 9,000,000 8,500,001 to 9,000,000 1
9,000,001 % 10,000,000 9,000,001 to 10,000,000 -

RIE MRS SBATHENBBESEHM  Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five

NMEM xS HIEE N —SEBEEHN T AHRRK  highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to

MIEE11 212 0 Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements.
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EREEE Audit committee

KRB ZEREESN2007F11 A16 BIZHB £ The audit committee of the Company was established on 16

MARAIKY - R 2 BZEZEEMRT RBLAE  November 2007 in accordance with the Listing Rules. The existing

(£F) BEBAERSELRLEMANK - ZEE  audit committee comprises Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman),

RERRBUIIEMITES - Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ma Zhizhong, all being independent non-
executive Directors.

EREZEEN2024F3821BEEREEME ©  The audit committee met with the management on 21 March 2024,

BRI AEBRMZ S EARERITFT®AIE  to review the accounting standards and practices adopted by the

TR HREEBEE (RIEYIR2FEgHE  Group and to discuss matters regarding internal control and financial

A ASEE#HZE2023F12A31HIEFEZ2F  reporting including the review of the Group’s annual results for the

¥EBEEHER) - year ended 31 December 2023 before proposing them to the Board
for approval.

HE2023F12A3MAILFE  EZXEELEE  The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
TZRg% SKEMHEBROT : December 2023 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

ZEEXE Committee member:

TRELEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 3/3
BEELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 3/3
BERLEE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 3/3

RABIINEZBA L AEEREEERAENREGE  The external auditors of the Company and the related management
FBEEGE - of the Group also attended these meetings.
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2023, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set
out as follows:

o perform pre-audit meetings in respect of the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023;

o discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the
annual/interim reports, accounts and the related results
announcements, before recommending them to the Board for
approval;

o approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2022; and

o review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

On 11 December 2023, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit
meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2023. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with
management on 21 March 2024 to review the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding
internal control and financial reporting including the review of the
Group's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023 before
proposing to the Board for approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
were appointed as the members of the nomination committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2023 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

BREEER
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEXE Committee member:
SRR A Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
TRERAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
HEEB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v

At ZEERENm T ESeNAKEESEE -
TRttt MEBESGEREBEREZEUHMER - HES
ﬁﬁf@?ﬁﬁﬁﬂi RERBAFRE FEEESIH
EFSEMZBCRERMMNT A E B IR HEER
FEERRE T B IENITESHIBLIE -

During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, the diversity of the Board, the re-election of
the directors at AGM, the recommendation of the measurable
objectives that the Board should adopt for implementing the Policy as
well as reviewed the independence of the INEDs.
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In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is
set out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

1. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree
annually measurable objectives for implementing diversity
on the Board and recommend to the Board for adoption.

2. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a
diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and
gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

1. The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
Corporate Governance Report, on the Board's
composition under diversified perspectives, and monitor
the implementation of the Policy.

2. A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives will be
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Review of the Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as
appropriate, and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.
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The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during
the year ended 31 December 2023:

. Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

o ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the measurable objectives by
which the Board had included both male and female candidates with
overseas academic, research or working experience in other industries
in the selection of Directors. The Board has achieved the board gender
diversity by appointment at least one female director on the board on
27 March 2024, in compliance with the Appendix 14J) of the Code
and Rule 13.92.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee with
written terms of reference on 21 March 2013 to be responsible for
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the relevant disclosure in the report
on corporate governance code and other related matters. Mr. Zhang
Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the corporate governance
committee and Mr. Wang Weidong were appointed as the members
of the corporate governance committee.
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TEELZECREBEFEENETT —RE# > The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the

ERENERBEREINNAT year under review. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

ZEEXE Committee member:

SRR A Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/

FTHRLEE Mr. Wang Weidong v/

REZE2023F 12 A31HIEFBEERTHEZE  During the meeting held in the financial year ended 31 December
FEKENwAEHNTBBARRIETEEE 2023, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to the
SATEIZ TFAMEX R ARG NEEERRENLE  Company's compliance with code provisions of the CG code and the
REEH - Company's policies and practises on corporate governance.

RREEZES Risk Management Committee

AAFIR2015F8A1I3HKYRBABREEZLZEE The Company established a risk management committee with written

VIV EEBERE BRI ARFREBEE - A terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk

EEEI R HAREEE  WIRHEZ o T R#E%L  management and internal control of the Company and other related

SERZTARKRERZESETRMGEBLAER  matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the

BEREERZAERAREEZESENKE - chairman of the risk management committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
and Mr. Ma Zhizhong were appointed as the members of the risk
management committee.

EREEZEENEBEEREANEITTMNEHE The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the year
BEREMHBERETIAT under review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

ZEEKE Committee member:

TRBRAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
HEEB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
BRERLAE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 2/2

PEZE2023F12A31BIEFBEEEITHEZE  During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December

P BEREMRSESSHER I KEERN T 2023, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to the

BEARDRIRNIE LB EBEMREEHISNE  Company’s internal control measures and policies and its

EEAMAERE RS (BB AAARESR) o implementation, and the internal control report (prepared by the
independent consulting firm), before recommending them to the
Board for approval.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows. The external
auditors are responsible to form an independent opinion, based on
the audit, on the financial statements prepared by the Directors and
report the opinion solely to the members of the Company as a body
and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has
supervised the management’s design, implementation and monitoring
of risk management and internal control systems. The Board
confirmed that it is responsible for establishing risk management and
internal control systems for the Group and will continue to monitor
the system and ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and its
principal subsidiaries at least once a year.

The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering all
important monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic,
financial, operational, compliance monitoring and whistleblowing

policy.

The Company has set up internal audit function. The Company has
also conducted procedures of risk management, which mainly include:

1) identify risk and form risk list;

2)  Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;
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3)  Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

4)  Develop risk management manuals for risk management,
identify the responsibilities for the management, Board of
Directors, Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee
in risk management, and continuously monitor risk
management;

5)  The management has reported to the Audit Committee and
Risk Management Committee on the review and assessment of
risk management, major risk factors and related response
measures; and

6)  The management has established a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Company
including but not limited to customers, suppliers and agents, to
raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity with the audit/risk
management committee about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Company. The Company has also
established policy and system that promote and support anti-
corruption laws and regulations.

However, risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business
goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no
significant misrepresentation or loss.

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for
handling and distributing inside information:

o The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle
is that the information should be immediately published when
the Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is
made, unless such inside information falls under the Safe
Harbour Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

. In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the “Recent
Economic Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of
Listed Issuers” issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

. Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.
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The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the year under review and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems.

External auditor’'s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total remuneration for the
audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$2,800,000 (approximately RMB2,515,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total remuneration for the
permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$1,150,000 (approximately
RMB1,033,000) which is for (i) the review of the interim financial
report of the Group for the six months period ended 30 June 2023
and (i) the provision of “letter from auditors on the profit forecast” in
the circular of the Company dated 30 November 2023.

The re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having been
made specific enquiry, the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Relevant Period.
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Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene extraordinary
general meetings ( “EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
(the "EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general
meetings can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is
presently situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119, Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently
situated at Unit 21, 26/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The EGM Requisitionists must state in
their requisition the businesses of the EGM to be transacted and such
requisition must be signed by all the EGM Requisitionists.

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition
is in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to
convene the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered
Shareholders in accordance with all the relevant statutory
requirements. According to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within
two months after the deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one
days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene the EGM, the EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by them as a result of
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by
the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 21, 26/F,
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong.
The request will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

o At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

o At least 21 clear days’' notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an
ordinary or special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a
Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company'’s website www.dongyuechem.com.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Unit 21, 26/F, Tower 1

Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Email: carriechung@dongyuechem.com or carrie_dy@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.
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Investor relations

Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

o the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; and

o updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company'’s website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the
Group; and

o Investor can raise comments to the Board through our investor
relations consultant or the Company Secretary whose contact
details are disclosed in this report and the Company’s website.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.

Change in the constitutional documents of the
Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 26 March 2024
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About the report

This report is a true reflection of how Dongyue Group has actively
fulfilled its economic, social and environmental responsibilities and in
addition, has achieved comprehensive, coordinated and sustainable
development. Statements concerning future business plans,
development strategies, and any other future endeavors herein do not
constitute a substantive commitment of the Company to investors.

. Time frame

The report covers from 1 January to 31 December 2023, while
partial contents are beyond the above time frame.

J Publication cycle

ESG report of Dongyue Group Limited is an annual report and
will be published on annual basis.

o Scope of report

The report covers the headquarters of Dongyue Group Limited
and its subsidiaries including: Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and
Technology Group Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants
Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.,Shandong
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Huaxia
Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak
Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co.,
Ltd., Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Wenhe Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Union
Property Co., Ltd., Huangtai Dongyue International Trade Co.,
Ltd., Hong Kong Trulene International Trade Co., Ltd.,
Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiajie
Xinye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., and Zibo Herun
Shuiwu Company Limited.
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Basis of preparation

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and with reference to the GRI
Sustainability Reporting Standards (GRI Standards) issued by the
Global Sustainability Standards Board (GSSB), the Corporate
Environmental Reporting Guidelines of Shandong Province and
relevant requirements on sustainable development reporting
and publishing drafted by the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission.

Description of References

For ease of presentation, “Dongyue Group Limited” is expressed
as “Dongyue Group”, “the Group” and “the Company” in the
report.

Explanations on Information

Historical information cited in the report is the final statistical
information. In case of any discrepancy between financial
information and annual report, the latter shall prevail. Unless
otherwise stated, Renminbi is used in the report as functional
currency.

Availability of Report

The report is prepared in Chinese and English, which can be
downloaded electronically from:

The website of HKSE http://sc.hkex.com.hk

The website of Dongyue Group Limited
http://www.dongyuechem.com/
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Board Statement

The purpose of this statement is to explain the governance and
supervision responsibilities of the Board of the Dongyue Group with
respect to ESG related work.

As the highest decision-making body for ESG matters, the Board of
Dongyue Group adheres to the philosophy of sustainable
development, continuously improves ESG governance mechanisms,
participates in consideration and decision-making of major ESG issues,
and promotes the integration of ESG concept into the daily operation
and management. Dongyue Group always believes that sound
corporate governance and effective risk management are crucial for
achieving long-term sustainability. In pursuit of sustainable
development, the Group continues to strengthen its emphasis on and
investment in environmental protection, social responsibility and good
governance, striving to closely integrate corporate growth with social
benefits and environmental protection, thereby promoting the healthy
development of the industry and facilitating environmental protection,
and thus jointly creating greater value for the society.

This report discloses in detail the progress and effectiveness of the
ESG work of the Company in 2023, and was submitted to the Board
for consideration and approval on 26 March 2024.
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ESG Management

Dongyue Group commits to continuously improving ESG
management process and has established a set of
comprehensive ESG management framework to promote
sustainable development of its business. Meanwhile, the Group
maintains on-going effective communication with parties,
including customers, consumers, employees, investors and
supply chain partners, and responds to their requests and
concerns in an active manner, therefore continuously improving
the efficiency of ESG governance.

1.1

ESG management system

Dongyue Group continues to improve its ESG management
system to ensure the healthy development of the business
and achieve sustainable growth. We have established an
ESG management system which is led by the Board,
organized by a working group and executed by relevant
functional divisions, and clarifies the work responsibilities at
each level, so as to effectively manage non-financial risks
such as environmental, social and corporate governance,

and promote the professionalization, systematization and
standardization of the Group’s sustainable development
work.

REE

Decision-making

NRAEFEL2HENSEEXERFHENTRZIAR
HERRE HERERAREETHEERSES
The Board of the Company reviewed and decided on major social responsibility
matters, including formulating relevant strategies and guidelines and performing
special reviews on the annual ESG report.

B4 AR R B R 7 $ HO fI E

HEE

Organization

NEEREEBERERBZIVEMIENM  BEHABRFTESGERIIE REERE
FERE G REAWME  ESGAEMIEITINE  HBFREEIESS -

The Company established a special task group in the investor relations department for
coordinating ESG management related tasks on a daily basis, including the preparation
of the annual ESG report, collection of ESG performance indicators and organization

of training and promotion.

BiTRE

Execution

RABZBERFIRD FARAESHESGHEENEOEE  THRXEHEERE
B BRERNESED - ARBEESG $HE§/E§UE’U%H%§&ET/§@ °

Respective functional departments and subsidiaries of the Company were responsible
for the centralized management of ESG issues, and regular reports of relevant
management initiatives, performance indicators and best practices and organizing all
types of ESG activities.

CREEEESGEERZ

Figure: The ESG Management System of Dongyue Group
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1.2

Communication with Stakeholders

Dongyue Group always regards the expectations and
needs of stakeholders as one of the key elements of the
Company'’s sustainable development, and attaches great
importance to communication and cooperation with
stakeholders. The Company actively explores and expand
multiple communication channels, responds to the
expectations and requests of stakeholders in a timely
manner, fully understands the impact of its operation on
stakeholders, and continuously optimizes the effectiveness
of stakeholders’ engagement.

®REEEFREEGTBERS

Table: The Stakeholder Communication Mechanism of Dongyue Group

Fl=EREA
Stakeholders

BUFREEHE .

Government and regulators o

B=R .
Shareholders .

[ ]
BEFRAEBM .
Customers and partners .

HEEER

laws and regulations

Promoting local economic development
Driving local employment

Production safety

BRRAZERTR
Expectations and requirements Ways of communication and response
ERCEERIRBE RERER L = A
R HE 3 7 1 B B R e EERE
EEIM T R e  HBER
TEREE e IEEDL
Implementing the national policies, o Filings

Offering advice and suggestions
Special subject report
Inspection & supervision

U 25 [B] 7 NS AN
BRES . EEEELR
Returns on investment . i E 5

Compliance operation

Company announcement
Special subject report
Field investigation

HOERK s BEHKAR
HEEE s BERSE
BEEm RS o XA
HBITEER o JAMATE

Fulfilling the contractual obligations in
accordance with the law

Integrity operation

Quality products and services
Promoting industry development

Business communication
Customer feedback
Exchange & discussion
Negotiation & cooperation
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FZEBEA
Stakeholders

BE

Environment

8T
Employees

PTERAR
Community and the public

HEERER
Expectations and requirements

BRI

B BE IR B

R RE

FE SRR L

KERERE

Emission compliance

Energy conservation and emission
reduction

Protecting the ecology
Addressing climate change issues
Water resources management

Mo 4 &

BERER

B A2 A

xR

Rights and interests protection
Occupational health

Salaries and benefits

Career development

HENRIERE
DENGEHE
=R RFEH

Improving the community environment

Participating in public welfare
undertakings
Open and transparent information

BEREETX

Ways of communication and response

o TFIER

o R

) A RE

e  HBXEE

. Work report

o Filing and submission

o Investigation & inspection
o Policy monitoring

e BIRRKES

o KRN

e RIEBYA

° Workers' congress

o Collective consultation

° Democratic communication
platform

o QAU

. RELE
. EHER

o Company website
. Company announcement
. Interview & communication
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1.3

hEEENEE

Moderately Material Issues

1.3 Materiality analysis

With reference to the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guidelines under Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, Dongyue Group
understands the concerns, expectations and demands of
stakeholders on the sustainable development of the
Company through the collection of questionnaires,
business review conclusions and ESG work effectiveness
benchmarking. Based on the existing national policies and
the focus of ESG related opportunities and risks for listed
companies, the Group identifies and determines the
material ESG issues related to stakeholders and the
Company, in a bid to ensure accurate and comprehensive
disclosure of issues concerned by the Company internally
and the stakeholders. In 2023, there were no material
updates on the Company’s material issues as compared
with that of 2022.

SEEENEE
Highly Material Issues

BEERTE
Green Product R&D
REEE
Production Safety
EREREEE
Product and Service Quality
o P A BRI
H g Sustainable Supply Chain Production Capacity
e Enhancement and
2 echnology Innovation
s Technology Innovat
g2 o
g BEZIEELRE  DETERECER
@ 2 Data Security and Promotion of the Development
m2 Privacy Protection of New Business Models in the Industry
PR ° ° BlEAREE
= g Integrity and
= s - Compliance Operat
W= B TSR AR gy ComPlence Operation
IEESEATNGD () Intellectual Property
WREERERS Renewable Energy Rights Protection
Business Ethics and AR [}
Anti-corruption  Responding fo climate change
TEER
T Corporate Governance
Managementof encrgy  BERMER
. and utilization of resources  Waste Management
EAEE @
Wastewater Management Y RIRAE
" ARTRER Environmental
KEREE @) @ Atmosphere Pollution Compliance
Water resource management Management
AT RE| R
P Talent Attraction and Development
HEEEEeE
Community Communication
and Engagement
RF 25 05 2% B
RESEMEE
Lowly Material Issues |
HREEENERE
Materiality to Dongyue Group
R fin 24 BiakE
Environmental Issues  © SocialIssues Governance ssues

RESE2023 FESGE AR ABIER
Figure: 2023 ESG Materiality Matrix of Dongyue Group
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Sound and Healthy Operation

Keeping in compliance, Dongyue Group adheres to integrity
management and strictly controls product quality with a focus
on enhancing customer service experience, strengthens
sustainable supply chain management and improves the level of
compliance management so as to lay a foundation for building
a global brand.

2.1

Commitment to Integrity and Compliance

Dongyue Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations, such as the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Supervision Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery, the Group has formulated internal
business rules and regulations documents covering all
subsidiaries to continually optimize compliance
management system, such as Dongyue Group Risk
Management Measure, Dongyue Group Discipline
Inspection and Monitoring System and Dongyue Group
Regulations on Anti-corruption System. In 2023, the
Group issued the “Dongyue Group Disciplinary Provisions
for Non-compliance with Rules and Regulations” to
further promote substantive compliance, with zero-
tolerance attitude towards unfair competition, corruption,
fraud and other misconduct, putting efforts into creating
a fair and transparent working environment.

Dongyue Group promotes the Group’s compliance
management in an orderly manner to ensure the
compliance of business operations. In 2023, the Group
completed compliance investigations in four businesses,
namely procurement, repair and maintenance,
engineering infrastructure and sales and transportation,
focusing on risks in export control and economic sanction,
network and data security, protection of intellectual
property rights and business secrets, anti-monopoly and
anti-corruption. The Group concluded 7 risk investigation
reports with 85 recommendations for risk identification
and rectification. At the same time, the Group assessed
the effectiveness of the Group’s compliance management
system, the regularity of the procurement process and the
risks related to corruption and commercial bribery,
concluding 63 improvement recommendations, which
provided strong support for the further improvement of
the Group’s compliance governance system.
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2.2

Dongyue Group has also launched legal compliance
awareness campaigns to enhance the compliance
awareness of management, employees and other
stakeholders through law training, specialised
enhancement and legal consultation, etc. In 2023,
Dongyue Group organised 78 law popularization and
compliance publicity campaigns at the Group level,
covering common legal risks and basic knowledge of
company'’s operation in compliance.

In response to potential operational risks such as labour
disputes, the Group organised the management of each
company to carry out focused and specialised learning,
and set up a dispute prevention, control and conciliation
team to conduct training and learning on labour disputes
treatments regularly, so as to enhance the Group'’s risk
prevention and control. At the same time, we actively
responded to the call of local courts, established the
Dongyue “E + Smart Court” jointly to provide legal
advisory services to park employees and community
residents, maintaining good relations with all sectors of
the community.

Comprehensive Quality Assurance

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the relevant laws
and regulations such as the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and conducts strict standard
on the execution of a number of management measures
such as Quality System Management Manual, Quality
Management System, Quality Inspection Management
System to strengthen quality control throughout the entire
life cycle of equipment procurement, production and
manufacturing, quality inspection, product delivery.

Standardized Quality Control

As one of the first 100 pilot enterprises with good
standard in China, Dongyue Group persists in leading high
quality with high standards and implements standardized
management of the entire product life cycle in the
operation process. Besides, Dongyue Group enhances the
standardization of product management through
information construction with the aim of minimizing
abnormalities in the operation process and operation
behavior and ensuring product quality.
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The Group has established a comprehensive Quality,
Health, Safety, and Environment (QHSE) management
system, and set up a list of whole flow management
elements, including 20 primary management elements
such as management units and responsibilities,
compliance management, facility and equipment
management, operation management, occupational
health, and environmental management, as well as 68
secondary elements such as quality assurance, quality
inspection, identification, and traceability. Professional
element management duties are assigned to various units,
and specialists are deployed up to conduct element
inspection, implementation, and rectification acceptance.

In 2023, the Group conducted internal and external
reviews of its quality management system to ensure that
the existing quality management system complies with
relevant standards and the actual operation of the Group.
During the internal review, we identified 101
opportunities points for professional elements such as
quality inspection, identification and traceability, product
protection, and non-conforming product control, as well
as common elements such as compliance management,
human resources, and information exchange, and carried
out optimization and rectification, with a rectification rate
of 100%. During the external review, Shandong Dongyue
Refrigerants Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co.,
Ltd., Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Material Co., Ltd.,
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., and
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd.
passed quality, environment, occupational health and
safety, and energy management system audit conducted
by the third-party, and 161 opportunity points are
identified, with a 100% rectification rate.
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The Group also actively participated in industry quality
system certification. In 2023, Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou
New Material Co., Ltd. has obtained the IATF 16949:2016
Automotive Industry Quality System Certification.

Informatization management

Dongyue Group continuously improves the informatization
in quality management processes, and conducts
informatization control from multiple aspects such as raw
material quality management, product quality
management, quality target management, and quality risk
warning. The Group has established a process alarm
information management platform. Based on the
establishment of alarm classification, grouping, and
partition display, combined with Hazard and Operability
Analysis (HAZOP) and Risk Matrix Analysis, the alarm
priority is determined to achieve synchronous early
warning between the management system and DCS
system. At the same time, multi-dimensional analysis of
process alarms is carried out through indicators such as
alarm frequency, alarm duration, and alarm type, and
performance evaluation is conducted based on the
analysis results to orderly improve the informatization of
quality management.
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Name of Subsidiary

WERRERD FMEERAT

Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.

WREBHARMHFRAF

Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Material
Co., Ltd.

WERREREMEERAR

Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.

IWRREZSHRER QA

Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants Co., Ltd.

Product quality inspection

Dongyue Group strictly complies with national, industry,
and enterprise quality inspection standards and
requirements, strictly implements the quality inspection
process, formulates the “Quality Inspection Management
System”, which clarifies the inspection process and
department responsibilities for raw material inspection,
central control inspection, and finished product inspection,
and requires subsidiaries to develop quality inspection
management system, which clarifies the inspection
methods and judgment basis for various raw materials
and finished products, so as to ensure the quality of the
supplied products. In 2023, the highest grade percentage
of the Group's subsidiaries exceeded 97%, and there was
no active or passive product recalls due to product quality
issues. Among them, Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New
Material Co., Ltd.’s FEP has been awarded the title of
“Good Product in Shandong”, and FEP and organosilicon
silicone oil have been awarded the title of “Famous Brand
Products in Shandong “.

Table: The share of top product quality grades of
subsidiaries of Dongyue Group in 2023

20214 20225 2023 5§
RE&RMEL KR BIEL RE R BIMGE
2021 2022 2023

Highest grade Highest grade Highest grade
percentage percentage percentage

98.61% 98.68% 99.24%

97.83% 98.49% 97.08%

100% 100%

100% 100%
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Quality culture construction

Dongyue Group continuously strengthens the construction
of quality culture, builds its own internal trainer team for
internal quality training, and through various forms such
as special training and themed publicity months,
continuously strengthens the quality risk awareness and
prevention ability of employees, and improves the quality
management of the Group. In 2023, the Group has
conducted 11 special trainings for quality inspection and
control, covering multiple topics such as root cause
analysis of abnormal management, internal quality audit
and system training, standardization drafting and
management training, to promote the construction of the
Group’s quality culture with a total of more than 7,000
participants, with an employee participation rate of
91.1%.

Case: Dongyue Group Carrying out Quality Month
Activities

In September 2023, in order to systematically enhance the
awareness of quality management and risk prevention
among employees, Dongyue Group carried out the All
Staff Quality Month activity. A special quality workshop
was held for the main quality managers of each subsidiary,
and an online quality learning activity was organized for
all employees of each subsidiary. The training content
included the promotion of the use of quality tools,
organization of technical research on quality issues, and
promotion of the study of best practice cases for quality
issues. More than 7,000 employees participated in this
Quality Month activity, which comprehensively
strengthened the awareness of employees about quality
and quality work, and improved the quality expertise of
the entire group.
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2.4

Enhancing Service Experience

Dongyue Group insists on catering customer’s needs,
listening to their requirements and expectation, providing
customer with reasonable solutions and improving
standards of service provided to them.

The Group has well-established customer service
management system in place. The Group impletemented
the Dongyue Group Sales Management Regulations,
regulated the service behaviors of employees in each
section covering the whole sales process of pre-sale, in-
sale, after-sale to improve service standards and
customer'’s satisfaction. Meanwhile, in accordance with
the Customer Feedback Information Management System,
the Group provided structured response to products’
after-sales services, customer complaints, business
disputes to fully guarantee the quality of customer
services. In 2023, Dongyue Group and its subsidiaries
received 12 complaints from customers. We actively
resolve customers’ complaints by taking the initiative to
contact customers, provding technique instruction and
seeking legal consultation, etc. Our complaint resolution
rate is 100%.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of
user privacy and information and data security, and strictly
complies with the Data Security Law of the People’s
Republic of China. The Group has formulated internal
system namely, the “Information Automation Work
Management System of Dongyue Group”, continued to
strengthen the mechanism for the management of user
information security and comprehensively controlled and
prevented the risk of customer information security. In
2023, the Group had no incidents of customer privacy
leakage.

Enhanced Responsible Procurements

Dongyue Group has formulated the Supplier Management
System of Dongyue Group, Procurement Process Control
of Dongyue Group and Product Quality Tracking and
Investigation Feedback System of Dongyue Group,
establishing a comprehensive supplier management
mechanism with entire life cycle, formatting a synergy in
supply chain procurement through the three lines of
defense of supplier admission, auditing and inspection to
improve the quality of suppliers.
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Table: The supplier management mechanism with entire life cycle

HEBEA

Supplier admission

BYHEEEAEFIER  RBRR(UEREATE)EEER R -SRI
BEERUIRHTEERALER  BEMHEREERN FAEKE HEFEE=R
BEHE BEEFHEE BERI10%MHEREASES - 2023F - %l%ﬁ%lkfﬂ
FERG 186K  EMAEMI62K EHR24K  MAHERLE13.53% -

The Group sets up electronic files for supplier admission and verifies the relevant
qualification information online and provides a compliance survey form in accordance
with the relevant requirements of the Supplier Admission System, and then retains the
electronic file subject to the approval by the Supplier Management Department, Audit
Department and the Director of Suppliers, so as to realise the 100% coverage of the
supplier admission. In 2023, the Group introduced 186 new suppliers, of which 162
were manufacturers and 24 were traders, accounting for 13.53% of the total number
of suppliers.

HEBEEX

Supplier auditing

BV MHEREKS  RANMERERINEE  CREYVHEREE  BEARE
FHEFN BEREEREEZREER EXHHEES B RS BREE
EXETHBERZ  TRIZAANHEBRHANYENESE  JBBR  £AB
MEETHESRM - 2023F  SERFEITERL/NEAIERESEHI62K - Hf
HEM28K  BEHM134FK  BHEHL1£29.2% [F{KE19.98% °

The Group establishes supplier optimisation mechanism and achieves whole process
control of suppliers’ production by sorting out suppliers’ business registration
information, matching information from material team and conducting on-site
investigation and visits. The Group conducts evaluation focusing on the quality,
delivery date, service and price, and communicates with each company on site about
the quality, arrival and usage of the raw materials and goods purchased on a regular
basis. In 2023, the Group terminated partnership with 162 non-compliant, small and
alternative traders, of which 28 were manufacturers and 134 were traders, with the
proportion of traders reducing from 29.2% to 19.98%.

HEFER

Supplier inspection

ekBET 68 LREFMBFITH202B3FEEEIHEFTALT  EHERHE
B RITRESHER N HBEEE TERNESIHER TR 2023F &
SLAMEERSK  REAHERESEREKE -

The Group completed 2023 annual investigation to distributors and suppliers in
cooperation with the Group’s audit department, compliance department and
disciplinary department. The investigation focused on their warehouses, peer
performance and other supply capabilities, and eliminated the entry of unqualified
traders without warehouses into the platform. In 2023, the Group inspected a total of
82 suppliers, which provided grounds for the Group’s integration and optimsing of
various suppliers.
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In daily production activities, we monitor and
communicate with suppliers in real time to ensure
compliance of the whole production process of suppliers.
According to the Supplier Admission System of the Group,
suppliers engaged in special business shall undergo
compulsory certification such as transportation, operation
and industrial production licensing of hazardous
chemicals, and cannot participate in the platform system
guotation after the expiry of any qualification certificate.
Meanwhile, we emphasize timely communication and
publicity of relevant system and management changes to
suppliers, establish a complaint tracing mechanism, and
timely identify and solve security risks. In 2023, the Group
has approved 1,374 qualified suppliers, 542 suppliers
certified by quality control system (ISO 9000), 330
suppliers certified by environmental management system
(ISO 14000) and 324 suppliers certified by occupational
health and safety management system.

HEELES M
Geographical Distribution of Suppliers
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Figure: Distribution of Dongyue Group’s suppliers by region
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The Group launched the clean procurement initiative and
encouraged all suppliers to sign the Sunshine Cooperation
Commitment, promising to put an end to improper
bidding, non-public business dealings, payment of private
expenses and other illegal activities. As of 2023, over
1,297 of the Group’s 1,374 qualified suppliers have sign
commitments, accounting for 94.4%.

Innovation Development

Driven by professional R&D system and talent team, Dongyue
Group contributes to the technological innovation of the
industry by constantly improving the scientific and technological
innovation system, strengthening the management of
intellectual property rights, accelerating the transformation of
innovation achievements and promoting the research and
development of multi-category and high-quality products. In
2023, the Company invested RMB935 million in R&D.

3.1 Research and Development System Innovation

Dongyue Group continues to improve the scientific and
technological innovation system and consolidates the
foundation of scientific and technological innovation.
Dongyue Group creates sound innovation ecology and
encourages all the staff to make inventions and
innovations, so as to facilitate advanced product and
technology. The Group formulated Incentive Scheme for
Technological Innovation in Dongyue Group and Patent
Innovation and Award System to clarify the scientific and
technological innovation incentive plans for employees. In
addition, the Group actively participates in the selection of
national and provincial scientific research talents, cultivates
and discovers outstanding scientific research talents.
During the year, one person from Shandong Huaxia
Shenzhou New Materials Company Limited was selected
to be one of the talents sponsored by the “National
Special Support Plan for High-level Personnel (B 5% & /8
IWAF BBk 2 #5551 2))", one person each from Shandong
Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Company Limited and
one employee from Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co.,
Ltd. was selected to be one of the talents of the “Taishan
Industry Leading Talent (Z=IUEZSEE AA)". As of the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a total of 770
scientific and technological R&D personnel, of which
55.5% obtained PhD and master degree.
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RESEEERAFERZ RIEHR 1T In the stage of product innovation, Dongyue Group pays
MERENRE  FFEEAMENE more attention to application and commercialization while
0 o S EE A E T s A E considering theory and experiment. The Group has
EMEEABELECNERREDR formed a management system for the whole process of
EEEBRBR  WRNEMmMEREK product development from application and market
RO EWLERIER A - research and development to product production and

commercialization to ensure superb quality and successful
commercial use of the final results of new product

development.
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Figure: Flowchart of Scientific Research Innovation Transformation Application
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During the year, Dongyue Group continued to adhere to
the innovative concept of “extreme technology, extreme
resource utilization and extreme benefit”, deepened the
industrial technology layout of “new energy, new
environmental protection and new infrastructure”, and
achieved a series of significant results.

New Energy:

o Lithium battery electrolyte additive products: In
response to the national call for “dual carbon”, the
Group deeply cultivates the field of lithium battery
electrolyte additive products, and promotes the
development of electric vehicles, energy storage
systems and other new energy industries. During
the year, the Group’s lithium difluorooxalate
phosphate (LIDFOP) and ethoxy pentafluoro
cyclotriphosphazene (PFPN) products continued to
carry out independent process optimization, which
further reduced the cost while achieving stable
product quality, laying a good foundation for the
next large-scale production.

New Environmental Protection:

. Polyteflon (PTFE) dust removal and denitration
integrated filter bag: The Group is committed to
continuously improving the global environment,
exploring a new path of waste incineration flue gas
treatment, and enhancing China’s independent
innovation ability in the field of environmental
protection. Waste incineration not only produces
fume, but also discharges harmful gases such as
dioxins and nitrogen oxides, which poses a severe
threat to the environment and human health. In
2023, we carried out the key technology
breakthrough project of dust removal filtration and
harmful gas catalytic cracking integration in the
process of waste incineration, breaking foreign
technical barriers and filling the technical gap of
domestic dust removal filtration and dioxin catalytic
cracking integrated products.
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New Infrastructure:

Annual output of 20 tons of electronic grade
trifluoromethane project: The Group practised the
principle of circular economy and explores the
possibility of high-value transformation of by-
products. Trifluoromethane is one of the by-
products produced in the process of producing
difluoromethane, which generates greenhouse
effect. In 2023, the Group implemented an annual
output of 20 tons of electronic grade
trifluoromethane, which will produce electronic
grade trifluoromethane with industrial grade 99.9%
pure trifluoromethane as raw material for secondary
application in the semiconductor industry.

In addition, the Group actively carried out scientific
research “Two Research” campaign, mainly
including action plan for the development of high-
end fine chemicals and action plan for energy
conservation and emission reduction by-products
recycling and comprehensive utilization. Among
them, the action plan for energy conservation and
emission reduction by-products recycling and
comprehensive utilization took the conversion of
hydrochloric acid as the entry point in the
production process, so as to realize the efficient
conversion and recycling and comprehensive
utilization of by-products. In 2023, the Group
carried out a number of by-product recycling and
comprehensive utilization projects, such as
“hydrochloric acid emission reduction project”,
“difluoroethane high boiling substance recovery and
utilization”, “preparation of chlorine from hydrogen
chloride”, “reuse high boiling silicone oil and low
molecular”, which effectively reduced the
generation of by-product hydrochloric acid and
other by-products, as well as realized their effective
conversion and utilization.
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Intellectual Property Rights Protection

Dongyue Group strictly abides by the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Trademark Law of the
People’'s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, pays attention to the protection of patents,
trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets and other intellectual
property rights, and is committed to properly protecting
its own intellectual property rights while not infringing the
achievements of others, so as to reduce the risk of
infringement. The Group has built a sound intellectual
property management structure, formulated the
Intellectual Property Rights Management System of
Dongyue Group, and formed a clear, comprehensive,
practical, standardized and efficient intellectual property
management system and mechanism.

The Group attached great importance to the risk
management and control of intellectual property rights,
and has established an intellectual property risk
monitoring and management system covering all
subsidiaries of the Group and across the whole process of
the Company’s core business. In September 2023, the
Group comprehensively carried out the investigation on
intellectual property rights and business secret risks,
covering six companies in the park of Dongyue Group.
The inspection included computer management system,
information about secret-related personnel, R&D projects
and data management and storage, etc. All the
investigation and rectification items have been rectifying
within one month after the inspection.

The Group actively carried out patent application work to
ensure that every technological innovation is getting fully
protected. During the reporting period, the Group
obtained a total of 119 patents. As of the end of 2023,
the Group owned 658 valid patents (representing a year-
on-year increase of 25.33%), of which 78 were utility
model patents, 22 were Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT)
patents and 558 were invention patents.
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3.4

In order to improve employees’ awareness and standard
of intellectual property management, we regularly carried
out training on intellectual property management system
and knowledge. In 2023, we organized 4 training sessions
on intellectual property empowerment at the group level,
including training on intellectual property rights for new
staff, basic training on copyright, FTO (Free to Operate)
investigation and FTO writing methods, and skills in using
patent databases. The training covers new staff,
intellectual property management personnel, and scientific
research personnel of the Company, etc., with a total of
more than 140 participants.

Promoting Industry Development

Leveraging on technological innovation cooperation,
Dongyue Group brings into play its own leading force in
establishing an efficient operational system of collaborative
innovation across the value chain. In addition, we actively
engage in cooperation and academic communication with
universities and research institutes to enhance our
potential to innovate and promote high quality
development in the industry.

As of the end of the reporting period, Dongyue Group had
established joint laboratories with 24 universities and
research institutes, including Shandong University, Sichuan
University, Dalian Institute of Chemical Physics, Shanghai
Institute of Organic Chemistry, etc.. More than 60
cooperative projects were carried out by us. In 2023,
Dongyue Group collaborated with the Dalian Institute of
Chemical Physics, Chinese Academy of Sciences, on research
and development project of “Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) -
Amorphous Polyarylether Ketone Wear-resistant and Self-
lubricating Composite”. Additionally, it partnered with
Tianjin Polytechnic University to conduct research on high-
performance fluorine-containing fibers. Both collaborations
achieved remarkable research outcomes. In addition, the
Group actively facilitated academic exchanges and provided
industrial internship opportunities for students. During the
year, we welcomed 30 outstanding students from Tsinghua
University to engage in chemical practice activities within the
Group.
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Dongyue Group played an active role in leading and
participating in the establishment of industry standards.
Collaborating with industry experts and peers, we jointly
develop a series of scientific, reasonable and forward-
looking industry standards. These standards effectively
regulate the production and operation of the enterprises
and provide strong support and guarantee for the healthy
development of the industry. As of the end of the
reporting period, the Group had completed 160 standard
projects. In 2023, the Group issued 16 standards,
including 2 national standards, 2 industry standards, 1
regional standard and 11 group standards.

In addition, the Group actively organized and participated
in various industry exchange activities to enhance the
communication and cooperation with peers, aiming to
jointly promote the prosperous development of the
industry. On 15 November 2023, we successfully held
Dongyue Group 2024 Industry Chain Cooperation Annual
Meeting. More than 800 attendees, including domestic
dual-carbon field experts, scholars, and the Group’s
partners, were invited. The annual meeting served as a
platform to showcase Dongyue Group’s low-carbon
achievements, facilitate discussions on new low-carbon
products, technologies and services, and analyse the
opportunities and challenges presented by the evolving
landscape of dual-carbon initiatives. The annual meeting
facilitated thorough communication and idea exchange
between Dongyue Group and its partners, injecting
momentum into the low-carbon development of the
industry chain.
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Safety Operation

With the original intention of establishing the concept of safety
development, Dongyue Group continues to improve its safety
management system and comprehensively promotes the
prevention and control of safety risks in daily operation. The
Group also focus on employees’ safety and occupational health
protection and carries out safety culture promotion to ensure
production safety of the enterprise and the healthy development
of the employees.

4.1

Safety Management System

Dongyue Group remains committed to the development
concept of “safety and environmental protection is the
top value of Dongyue”. It adheres to the internal health
and safety management measures such as Risk
Classification and Management and Control Program (&
B o A E R HIAR 7)), Accident Management and
Control Program ({(E = 4 B 2= 5|32 £)), Potential
Hazard Screening and Management Control Program ({[&
BHEE R IEEHIFE ), also, we newly developed the
Contractors Safety Management Measures ({78 /& % 2
& IR X)) to establish a sound health and safety
management system. Dongyue Group has established a
Safety Management Committee, with the Group's safety
director responsible for overseeing the Production Safety
Committee’s operations to ensure the effective operation
of the safety management system. The committee adopts
the dual-director system, with the Chairman and President
serving as director, the vice director was served by the
director of the General Operation Office, and the
Production Safety Committee includes the General
Managers of the Group’s branches and subsidiaries,
together with the Director of the Group’s General
Operation Office and the Group’s Safety Director.
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In 2023, with the guidance of central policy documents
and third-party institutes, the Group reviewed and
updated its Safety Expense Withdrawal and Utilization
Management System, Competence Center Management
System, Emergency Response and Corresponding Control
Procedures, Risk Classification Management and Control
System and Potential Hazard Screening System. These
efforts identified the obvious and common problems of
the system, improved the relevant standards outlined
within the system, and established annual KPIs and target
tasks to ensure the efficiency of the health and safety
management system. As of the end of 2023, dual-
prevention mechanism for information operations of
Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants Co., Ltd., Shandong
Dongyue Polymer Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Huaxia
Shenzhou New Material Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Fluorine&Silicon Material Co., Ltd. and Shandong
Dongyue Silicon Material Co., Ltd. exhibited excellent
quality, all of these entities obtained certification of ISO
quality management system, environmental management
system, occupational health and safety management
system and energy management system.
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4.2

Security Risk Prevention and Control

Dongyue Group prioritizes the principle of “safety first,
prevention as the main” in its production and operation,
we insists on safety emergency drills, regular health and
safety management and conducts daily inspection to
identify potential safety hazards. These measures
comprehensively enhance the awareness and standard of
safety risk prevention of the Group.

o Safety Production
Dongyue Group places a high value on safe production
and operation, with safety production management at
its core to ensure effective safety management system
by refining safety responsibilities. The Group requires
that all staff, regardless of department or position,
implement a production safety responsibility system
and sign a Safety Target Responsibility Letter and
enhance their safety awareness of staff through topics
-specific training, regular promotion and assessment of
the responsibility system. This ensures that safety
management work is carried out effectively. In 2023,
the Group invested RMB67.216 million in safety
production, no graded safety production accidents
was occurred. There were 1,705 hours lost due to
work-related injuries, representing a further decline
compared to 2022.

Seven professional competence centers have been
established by the Group to take responsibility for
promoting health and safety risk screening in their
professional fields. These competence centers
operated in network organization, consisting
occupational safety, process safety, occupational
health, environmental protection, equipment,
electronic instruments, fire protection and other
professional groups. Each professional group holds
monthly seminars to discuss KPI targets and annual
priorities, coordinates professional resources to solve
all kinds of difficult issues and promotes the
refinement, promotion and implementation of best
practices and solutions. In 2023, our professional
competence centers summarized over 30 best
practices and addressed professional challenges via
targeted training and coaching. These challenges
included performance management, implementation
of the safety contracting and assurance responsibility
system for major hazardous sources, process
information and alarm & interlock management. Our
efforts significantly enhanced the safety management
level of the Group.
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The Group continued to carry out information
governance of health and management and focus
on promoting the information construction of major
hazardous sources, responsibility system
performance, special operations, personnel
identification, functional inspection, Al intelligent
video analysis, complete elements of safety and
emergency response module. Meanwhile, the Group
cooperated with SUPCON TECHNOLOGY to establish
a safety information platform to increase the support
of safety production while complying with the
regulatory requirements.

Emergency Dirills

Dongyue Group has continuously improved the
emergency plan system for all kinds of accident
scenarios, carries out special emergency drills and
practical training to enhance the staff's emergency
awareness and emergency capability construction in
workplace and comprehensively improve the
emergency management and response standards. In
2023, the Group conducted 393 safety and
emergency drills, including 120 fire drills, with over
7,000 participants.

To prevent power outages caused bysevere weather,
the Group developed Dongyue Power Grid
Emergency Plan for Severe Weather and also
conducted timely inspections on operational indexes
and parameters of Dongyue Power Grid to ensure
that the emergencies are addressed in a timely
manner, thus eliminating potential hazards at source
and protecting operation safety of Dongyue Power
Grid. In December 2023, the electric power
department organised an emergency drill for power
interruptions. The dispatching department, the
maintenance department of polymer electric
instrument and other departments of the Group to
carry out emergency drill for power interruptions
were required to perform their duties, conduct
emergency mobilization and mobilize emergency
response teams in case of emergency. It also
required them to respond quickly to the danger, set
up control mesures, and remove the hazard in a
timely and effective manner.
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Hidden Danger Screening

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the national
Supervision and Management Regulations on the
Implementation of the Main Responsibility for the
Safety Use by Special Equipment Users, and has
formulated the Supervision and Management
Regulations on the Use of Special Equipment based
on the Group’s actual condition, so as to establish
and improve the system of risk detection of special
equipment. The Group carries out regular safety
hazard investigation and equipment maintenance
for special business and equipment with high safety
risks, which supports to reduce the incidence of
hidden safety hazards to a controllable level. In
2023, the completion rate for the Group's regular
inspection of special equipment reached 100%.

At the same time, we have implemented
maintenance plan for regular equipment, prepared
overhaul specifications, and provided safety and
quality requirements for the overhaul of boilers,
high-voltage distribution rooms, transformers,
switchgear, overhead lines and others, further
standardizing the safety requirements for the
personnel and equipment in the overhaul work. In
2023, the Group successively completed eight
planned overhauls for the boilers, in which it
strengthened the control of four tubes anti-abrasion
and anti-explosion to ensure the safe operation of
the boilers. The Group has realized zero leakage in
the four tubes of the boilers for two consecutive
years, ensuring the security and stability of the
external steam supply of the power plants.

Park Safety

Dongyue Group took management measures of the
Group's Security and Guarding Workflow and the
Code of Conduct for Security Management at the
Gate, to further clarify the responsibilities of the
security personnels for security prevention. The
Group also organized professional skill tests for
security personnel, with a view to improve the
security management level of security personnel in
the park and build a safe park. In 2023, the Group
was continuously concerned about traffic
management, maintained safety facilities and
removed potential security hazards, with no major
security issues or traffic safety incidents occurring in
the Park.
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4.3

o Contractor Safety

The Group has formulated Contractor Safety
Management Measures. Through methods such as
signing of safety responsibility agreements, onsite
safety publicity, manual on-site supervision and the
establishment of a contractor safety education
account, the Group ensured contractor’s health and
safety compliance in the whole cycle of admission,
construction, direct operation, project acceptance,
etc., and prevented contractor safety accidents. In
2023, there was no serious accidents or above
involving contractors of the Company.

Occupational Health Protection

Dongyue Group issued the Physical Examination System
and the Occupational Disease Hazard Identification and
Evaluation Management System, updated the
Occupational Health Management Control Procedures
and the Emergency Medicine Management System, and
continued to implement the Occupational Disease Hazard
Prevention and Control Responsibility Management
System. Additionally, the Group updated the
corresponding duties of each department based on the
organizational structure of the health and safety
management to comprehensively safeguard the health
and safety of its employees in its business operation
activities.

In September 2023, under the guidance of China
Chemical Safety Association, 12 professional internal
auditors for occupational health of the Group conducted
occupational health and safety internal audits for
subsidiaries, including system construction, occupational
health archives, identification of laws and regulations, site
management, wearing of personal protective equipment
and other aspects, and found 65 hidden risks. As of the
end of this reporting period, all corrections have been
completed. At the same time, we commissioned a third-
party professional company to test all positions involving
occupational hazard factors, with the results all lower
than the national hazard factor standards.
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The Group has been highly concerned about the
occupational health of contractors. In 2023, the Group
carried out the inspection of the contractor’s health
examination records, the wearing and distribution of
personal protective equipment and the inspection of heat
prevention and cooling measures. 21 issues were
identified in total and rectified in the same month.
Meanwhile, the Group organized practical training of CPR
for contractors and on-site emergency response training
with a total of 2,518 participants, strengthening
contractors’ understanding of on-site occupational hazard
factors and emergency self-rescue and mutual rescue
methods.

Safety Culture Promotion

Dongyue Group has actively carried out safety training at
all levels, continuously updated and improved the forms
and contents of health and safety training, in order to
constantly enhance the safety awareness and self-
protection ability of the employees. In 2023, the Group
carried out a total of 27 group-level safety trainings
covering the management of explosion-proof zones and
emergency response, job safety responsibility system,
dual-prevention mechanism, and special operation
management, etc., including 7 trainings for new
employees with more than 4,600 participants. Each
subordinate unit organized more than 90 company-level
trainings during the year, involving frontline production
workers, safety management personnel, technology and
equipment professionals across the Group. The contents
of the trainings included safety management knowledge
such as basic knowledge of major sources of danger,
negative list of production safety behaviors, dual-
prevention mechanism, comprehensive emergency
response plan, guardian’s duties and responsibilities, and
middle- and high-level leadership enhancement, as well as
professional knowledge of occupational health and safety,
fire safety, process safety and equipment safety, in order
to comprehensively improve the Company’s safety
management level.
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Performance in 2023

Table: Employee Occupational Safety Training

ER By 2023 F BB
Indicators Unit Data for 2023
BT ABZ 2 EERINEE NN 314
Training hours for all staff on production safety hour/people
REBRE D SREBAS (BERAL) AN VN 25.1
By employment  Senior management (Directors and above) hour/people
grade FEEEAS (KEXE) ANSTON 28.1
Middle management (Managers) hour/people
EHET (X2ERAE  Z2EEMBFEEL  LTRET) MEA 40.1
Ordinary employees (Safety management personnel, Safety  hour/people
Operations Certification Personnel, Ordinary employees)
BT AR EERIIRE R 17.3
Number of safety production training sessions per employee time
BB ARE D SREBAE (RERIAL) N 15
By employment  Senior management (Directors and above) time
grade FEEEAES (KEXE) W 18
Middle management (Managers) time
ERET (R2ERBAE LREXNMEFEL EBWEI) X 19
Ordinary employees (Safety management personnel, Safety — time

Operations Certification Personnel, Ordinary employees)

REo|E

RESEBGESITAEREIFEER
MELE BaetRBAELENE R
g NER D BEIR R ERERE - TR
RE - ATEEROOBNRBRFBEE -
REE  REKERERRAZAET

51 EHRESt

REEERGE2E(ERGT)RIEE
b8 5% F0 A B [ Ak 2 18 R ik P F0 | 8% 8K
BiZ ' EAIRIRE B R Bk
WX BTCFD (The Task Force on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures -
RIRNEEYSE S WELIFHE) B -
FREERESECRREENHBE
B -EERHDEBEBHRREITH A
TRERBSEARITENTE  HAlHE
DITE FRIER R EES - KRR
[BL B )E B - A LA A BRI E BT
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5.

Green Leading

Dongyue Group actively advocates and undertakes the
responsibility of environmental sustainable development and
integrates green development into all aspects of its operation by
continuously reducing the consumption of energy and resource
as well as promoting circular economy to create a resource-
saving and environment-friendly enterprise. During the year,
Dongyue Group has invested RMB400 million in environmental
protection.

5.1 Responding to Climate Change

Dongyue Group has actively responded to the climate
change initiatives of the Paris Agreement and China’s
strategic targets of “Carbon Peak” and “Carbon
Neutrality” by identifying risks and opportunities related
to climate change and disclosing information related to
the Group’s climate change risk management with
reference to the recommendations of The Task Force on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures. The Group has also
given due consideration to the impact of national climate
action and energy transition trends on the industry. By
identifying and analyzing its own climate risks and
opportunities, the Group has developed a climate risk list,
on the basis of which the Group has formulated targeted
countermeasures to enhance the Company’s adaptation
and resilience to climate change.
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Table: Climate Change-Related Risks and Responses

RIRELEBRER

Types of climate change risks

B R BRER

Transition risks  Policy risks

mEER

P

Description

BERRERBEMIES T BLEERE
BELEREEBRRL G HEXR
THETE ERETIH REEM

REPRE TESER BERREM
EHAE R B R B 2 AR AR R 1B e 4%

BRRBY  HPUHEERNLHZE -

With the introduction of national targets of
Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality and
climate-related policies such as increasing
the proportion of renewable energy use,
higher requirements have been put forward
for enterprises to practice green
production, build green factories, and
reduce the carbon footprint of their
products. Fostering a new trend of clean
and low-carbon industries has become a
necessary way to comply with the trend of
green development and promote
sustainable development.

B RW% S BT R H e R IR E
TRENERMRRHER REEEE
PAA LSRR E K & i T BRI
- RIMREEEHERT PR ¥
EREFHRAIMSEEMNME -

i ¥ag iy

Response measures

BRI RIREHRR ZEEREER
2 BHREREIERHMARZHH
HMBECEINEML ERHWEER
BHRHEEEN -

SEME ﬁ@wé MAERERE
PR BEREEMHS -
Dongyue Group pays close attention to
the changes in policies and regulations
related to climate and carbon trading,
actively undertakes the responsibility of
being one of the “first power generation
enterprises included in the pilot carbon
trading scheme” and enhances the
ability to manage greenhouse gas
emissions.

The Group promotes green operations
by strengthening control requirements
of product energy consumption and
enriching the supply of green products.

MEHEREE M FENET B
BITEASFEETRTHIR AR ER
BRERR  BREMREE -

MINBLREREERS REAUB
ERBRENNER THEEREE
NG FEE - FRERBER -

BImIGHERMITRS A ME
M ERE T B R MR B EIRE M

ﬁﬂ
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Types of climate change risks

Market risks

Reputational
risks
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ik

Description

Customers and the market pay utmost
attention on the Company’s performance
in responding to climate changes and the
carbon footprint of its products. If Dongyue
Group overlooks the increase in emissions
and the carbon footprint of its products, it
may lose potential customers, and thus
negatively affecting investors' estimation of
the market value of the Company.

BEENDREES (REEP - BI KA
EMRR) EHREECHERTER
HFOHEEBRTHEREE HAREER
BERETERNER -BEZEZRR &
ARAE BN - DEIEBEIN TE -
With the increasing awareness of
stakeholders (including customers,
employees, investors and shareholders) for
climate change, the requirements on
corporates to fulfill their social
responsibilities and in disclosures is stricter.
If such requirements were unmet, the
capital cost may increase and the value of
the Company may decline.

FE 4 it

Response measures

Paying more attention to technologies
of low-carbon operation and
continuously improving the technology
and equipment through industry
cooperation and communication for
better performance in environment, so
as to achieve low-carbon production.

Paying attention to renewable energy
power trading and promoting the
marketing of renewable energy power,
continuously enriching green power
trading, thereby to reduce carbon
emissions.

Focusing on market demand and
industry trends to develop green and
low-carbon products that meet the
needs of stakeholders.

BERARREECEREI(E MK
MERETNER THREHEBE

B UHERAGEERELEE -

Carrying out works actively in response
to climate change, strengthening
communication with stakeholders as
well as disclosing relevant information
regularly and continuously improving
the quality of information disclosure.
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Types of climate change risks

Bmmﬂ
Physical Risks

=HERRR

Acute physical
risks

Chronic physical
risks
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Description
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The global warming increases the instability
of climate system. For example, the
increasing frequency and intensity of
extreme weather, such as rainstorms,
hurricanes, sandstorms, freezing and
extreme heat and cold, have impact on the
operating continuity of the Group. Besides,
the operating costs further increased due
to higher expenses incurred in responding
to extreme weather conditions.

RIEZEoIBNEERREEFAEILN
Bk %2 BFELAE - WWERERA
ECEHKELEELENTERRE
RATE EMEBELXARET - 0
KEBRE  HLRBAHEN R
BEREMAE)  FERAELRTMEN

RIS - B EERR -

Chronic risks arising from climate change
include persistent high temperatures,
drought and sea level rise. Such risks may
affect the Group's production and
operation bases and other infrastructures,
which may lead to higher operating costs
(such as higher utility costs, increased
cooling and heating expenses, more
equipment wear and tear, etc.), and thus
affecting the operating stability of the
Company, ending in sustained economic
losses.

B
BERR
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Response measures

FERARERERBRENERBE M
WL SITERSBRTREETE
BoREEEMIEET] -

Evaluating the impact of weather risks
such as rainstorms on business continuity,
developing emergency plans and
conducting drills as scheduled to enhance
the capability in emergency response and
disaster resistance.

MERETHBEEAEE BESR
ARHETHRAURENKRESE -

HEREMEERERE MEEELSD
e o

Strengthening measures on preventing
heat stroke and cooling for employees
to avoid potential harm to their health
caused thereby.

Strengthening maintenance of
equipment and production safety
measures.

Based on business insights and situation analysis, the
Group had identified the following development
opportunities in relation to climate change and actively

explored the feasibility in operating, so as to be a doer in
the fighting against climate change.
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ERERANME

Efficiency of resource use

RELERBRE -HIERHE o

o RELRELKR

Improving the efficiency of e

production equipment, reducing
resource consumption, and lowering
corporate operating costs

HEEETREIEFE - Bk BIESEME o

BRABNRMBCEER  &’B
BERERME

Promote technological improvement

projects for energy conservation,
water conservation, and high-value
recycling of by-products to improve
the efficiency of resource use

REMERTHOEE | [HH ] BERE
B EEREELCKE  REEERF
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REEBEFRAR ZZ2-=5FR

Table: Opportunities of and Response to climate

change

BETR R

Energy source

ERARREBT BBREZ
BEEH A5 AL B R ALIRRA
Introducing and developing new
energy technologies in the existing
energy mix through the procurement
of green power, etc.

EEEEEPRECABTRER -
E—FMERABERRNELE
R

Exploring the use of clean energy in
production and further expanding
the usage of renewable energy and
production technologies

EmMRE

Product and service

TEBRERENRRINZEE
Bl - B TERERFATE
Keep focusing on green and low
carbon technologies of “new
environmental protection” to
promote the industry to reduce
environmental impacts

In order to better respond to China’s goal of “carbon
peak and carbon neutrality” and cope with challenges
from climate change, Dongyue Group has strengthened
its greenhouse gas emission management, aiming to
reduce carbon emissions and climate change risks in the

course of its operations.
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Table: emission of greenhouse gas of Dongyue

Group in recent three years

X REEELE=FIRZEREBHK
=P
BERE
Greenhouse gases
#HE— Scope 1
HBE— Scope 2
BERBYEMRE (H) Emissions of greenhouse gases

Bl R ERBHME

()

(tons)

Greenhouse gas emission per
RMB10,000 of operating
income (tons/RMB 10,000 of
operating income)

L/ BTTEERAN)

20214 2022 4F 2023 &

2021 2022 2023

1,686,437.12  1,449,811.39 BEWALRTYXVE

1,566,950.00  1,080,718.50 WS PYFIEWE

3,253,387.12  2,530,529.89 WWRELERLINIY)
2.05 1.26

Notes:

BREBBREBERREEEFRYE
WREE -

BEREHEKRE (BB1)RARERER
AR OR0d) BB - A M REREWEE
BMEFREEABERSMARATR
2020F 3 BB 2 Cnfa B IR R - 1L g
RERAME) 2(Hitr =  BEHEBEY
FEIZESRIES|) ©

BERENE (B52) KaINEE NN
FER - RIBEERREDBHEO(EERE
REHRZERARBREEREERME
(2022 FETH) ) K BXT B R A% L 5 P
Z B2 (IPCC) T % #2006 FF IPCC B K 8
EREVRIERAHEITRE -

The scope of data collection is the scope of the consolidated
financial statements in the annual report of Dongyue Group.

The emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 1) were from transport
vehicles and the consumption of fuel (petrol). The emission factors
of petrol and transport vehicles refer to the “Appendix II: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” in “How to Prepare an ESG
Report” issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
March 2020.

The emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 2) were from
consumption of purchased electricity. It is accounted for in
accordance with the Guidelines on Accounting Methodology and
Reporting of Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Power
Generation Facilities (2022 Revised Edition) issued by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the PRC and the 2006 IPCC
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories published by
the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
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5.2 Environmental management system

Dongyue Group complies with relevant laws and
regulations. According to the requirements of laws and
regulations, including the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Environmental
Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Administrative Measures for the Environmental
Information Disclosure of Enterprises, and requirements
for standardized management of “Four Standards
Integration”" system, the Group continued to improve its
environmental management system. During the year,
Dongyue Group revised and published 9 environmental
management systems in total, including the Environmental
Protection Responsibility Management System, the
Environmental Monitoring Management System, the
Environmental Factor Identification and Evaluation Control
Procedures, the Rules for the Implementation of
Environmental Management of Construction Projects and
the Sewage Discharge Permission Management System,
which helps to guide and standardize the environmental
management in its daily operations.

In order to strengthen the independent management
ability of its subsidiaries in environmental protection,
Dongyue Group has established an assessment
mechanism for environmental protection management
system. At the beginning of each month, the Group
publishes a monthly checklist and requires each subsidiary
to conduct self-inspection according to the content of the
checklist. In the middle of the month, each subsidiary is
required to report the problems found in the self-
inspection together with the corresponding rectification
plan to the Group’s Environmental Protection Department
for inspection. Problems filed by the subsidiaries will be
exempted from the Group’s comprehensive inspection. In
the late month, the Group organizes a comprehensive
inspection to assess the environmental management of
subsidiaries of the Group in an all-round manner and
gives higher scores to subsidiaries that have completed
the rectification work on schedule, with a view to
encouraging the subsidiaries to actively implement the
environmental rectification measures and improve their
environmental performance.

Four Standards Integration: consisting of 1ISO 9001 quality management system,
ISO 14001 environmental management system, ISO 45001 occupational health
and safety management system and ISO 5001 energy management system.
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Reviewing and supervision serve to guarantee the
improvement of environmental management system and
means of environmental management. Dongyue Group
regularly initiates and accepts internal and external
environmental reviews and various special inspections,
and requires solving issues identified within required
period. In terms of internal audit, the Group organized
internal inspector to carry out cross-review of
environmental management in July, involving a total of 9
primary elements and 14 secondary elements of 17
workshops in total, with 69 issues identified. All
rectifications thereof were completed. In terms of external
audit, the Group accepted over 100 environmental
inspections and investigations at national, provincial,
municipal and county levels throughout the year in respect
of VOC in summer and autumn, soil and groundwater,
declaration and acceptance of Class A enterprise,
hazardous waste management, emergency emission
reduction, on-line monitoring, ozone depleting substances
(ODS) with no non-compliance found.

In order to help employees understand the impact of their
work activities on the environment and raise their
awareness of environmental protection, the Group
organizes regular environmental training sessions for
senior management, professional managers and front-line
operators in the workshops, covering topics such as
environmental compliance, energy saving and the three
types of waste management, etc. After the training, we
conduct online or offline examinations for the participants
to consolidate their knowledge of environmental
management. In 2023, a total of 12 environmental
training sessions were organized at the Group level.
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5.3 Enhancing Energy Efficiency

Dongyue Group strictly follows the Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, continues to optimize the Group’s energy
management system, and adheres to the refined
management goal of “focusing on improvement in the
first year, catching up with advanced practices in the
second year, and achieving first-class performance in the
third year”, takes various measures to strengthen the
energy management, and comprehensively improves the
efficiency of energy utilization. In 2023, we have fully
achieved the comprehensive energy consumption targets
for various products and actively formulated energy
consumption targets for the next year. In 2024, Dongyue
Group plans to achieve the target of not exceeding 0.278
tons of standard coal per unit product of Shandong
Dongyue Refrigerants Co., Ltd, 0.86 tons of standard coal
per unit product of Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd,
0.205 tons of standard coal per unit product of Shandong
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., and 0.805 tons
of standard coal per unit product of Shandong Huaxia
Shenzhou New Materials Company Limited.

In response to the national policies promoting the
development of clean energy and the strategic adjustment
of the national energy structure to support China’s goal
of “carbon peak and carbon neutrality”, Dongyue Group
actively promoted the use of clean energy. In 2023, the
Group purchased 394 million kWh of new energy power
in market-based transactions, including 171 million kWh
of photovoltaic power and 223 million kWh of wind
power, accounting for 19% of the traded power, a year-
on-year increase of 35.7%. In addition, Dongyue Group
installed photovoltaic panels in the park of Shandong
Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd., with a total
annual power generation capacity of approximately
180,000 kWh.

Dongyue Group actively advocates the concepts of green
environmental protection and energy saving in its daily
production and office work, promotes green office and
low-carbon production initiatives to enhance employees’
environmental awareness and reduce resource
consumption. In the office area, we prioritize the use of
energy-saving equipment and rationally regulate the
usage time of air-conditioning, lighting and other devices;
during employee travel, we set rated fuel consumption
and rationally allocate routes to reduce vehicle fuel
consumption.
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& RESEEAL=FREABR Table: The Energy Usage in the Past Three Years of
Dongyue Group

ERER 2021 FHMEE 202FHFEE BPLPEESCES |
Consumptionin  Consumption in  MeE T e1 N )]
Use type 2021 2022 2023
SNEE (FRE) Purchased electricity (kwh) 1,618,750,000  1,895,000,000 S Ey/F1E R
BRERAEE Electricity consumption for clean
(FE®) energy (KWh) 145,795,320 336,100,000 394,800,000
BEZEE (BW) Total coal consumption (10,000
tons) 70.48 67.70 79.97
BEE(TRR) Generating capacity (kWh) 378,536,000 531,488,750 629,920,700
RKAEE(BRE) Steam production volume
(1) (self-used volume) (tons) 1,580,924 3,207,918 5,286,736
ol () Gasoline (liter) 27,508 15,543 19,631
%0m (71) Diesel (liter) 9,649 13,447 15,153
AR (LK) Natural gas (cubic meter) 22,750,421 23,063,216 29,145,696
BEROH A 20214 2022 &
Energy consumption 2021 2022
fRE R RE (IR - Total energy consumption (tons
BIEMRE  E - standard coal, including coal,
RAR Al electricity, natural gas,
Seh) gasoline, diesel) 732,704.86 788,521.74 852,923.30
BLEBRARER Total energy consumption per
(MEIREE - RMB 10,000 of output value
BIEME - E (tons standard coal, including
RAR -~ A coal, electricity, natural gas,
ek BITEME) gasoline, diesel/RMB10,000
of output value) 0.46 0.39
G Note:
(1) AR BARE Cm - £ - RIERAR) (1 For unit conversion factors of non-renewable fuels (gasoline, diesel,
NENEREFLEREEARARIMA LNG), please refer to “Appendix II: Environmental Key Performance
FR A E 72020 6 3 A FI) 8 2 (Al £ E IR Indicators Report” of “How to Prepare an Environmental, Social
BB REABRE) Z(Mtr= - IRE and Governance Report” published by The Stock Exchange of
HAREBIEZERES)  WERPEAR Hong Kong Limited in March 2020, and the “General Principles for
HABERERMAEZ BER2020F Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption” published
9A29 A FIE 2R e aEFERTHBA) © by the National Development and Reform Commission of the

People’s Republic of China on 29 September 2020.
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Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the
conservation and management of water resources and
strictly follows relevant laws and regulations such as the
Water Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Action Plan for Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution, etc., and strengthens the
management of water conservation throughout the entire
process of water intake and use. In 2023, the Company
has not experienced any problems in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose.

The Group has set the target of achieving a water recovery
rate of not less than 40% by 2025. During the production
and operation process, the Group regularly optimizes
water supply and water use equipment, undertakes
various technical renovation projects for water
conservation, water resource recovery, and recycling, and
prevents the occurrence of running, seeping, dripping,
and leaking through regular equipment maintenance and
other work. In 2023, the total water consumption of
Dongyue Group was over 15,140,000 tons, with a water
resource reuse rate of 97.97%, an indirect cooling water
circulation rate of 99.52%, a process water reuse rate of
55.91%, a steam condensate water reuse rate of 88.19%,
and a reclaimed water reuse rate of 60.74%, all of which
have met the relevant indicators.

Table: The Water Consumption of Dongyue Group in
the Past Three Years

RAKER 20214 2022 F 2023 F
Water consumption indicators 2021 2022 2023
FEK BHRKE (HE) 13,300,000 14,740,196 14,794,251
Water consumption Total water consumption (tons)

FREE W/ BrexhA) 8.39 7.36 10.21

Water consumption intensity
(tons/RMB10,000 operating
income)
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5.5

Reduction of Pollutant Emissions

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the
management of wastewater, waste gas and waste
materials, and adheres to the management policy of
resource recycling and comprehensive utilization to reduce
the three types of waste pollution. The Group strictly
follows the relevant laws and regulations on various
pollutants, and has set a target to achieve ultra-low
emission of the three types of waste by 2025, with a
continuous compliance rate of 100%. The Company
continues to improve its internal three types of waste
management system to reduce the emission of pollutants
in production and operation and enhance the recycling of
resources. During the reporting period, the Group has not
experienced any external environmental pollution incidents
or major environmental penalties.

o Exhaust gas management

Dongyue Group strictly follows the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Regional
Comprehensive Emission Standards for Air Pollutants
(DB37/2376-2019) and other laws and regulations,
conducting classified monitoring and treatment of
various types of exhaust gas generated in each
production process. The Group equips its R&D and
production sites with corresponding ventilation
facilities, strengthens source control of exhaust gas
pollutants and encourages the implementation of
alternative processes.
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The Group has built an online management system
for wastewater and exhaust gas, achieving real-time
synchronization of data between the Group’s
subsidiaries and the municipal authorities to ensure
the accuracy and timeliness of waste water and
exhaust gas data. The system conducts a
comprehensive summary analysis of real-time
emissions, exceedance data, and data quality,
automatically generating monthly analysis reports to
provide strong data support for the Group's
environmental management. In 2023, we upgraded
and renovated the online management system for
wastewater and exhaust gas, adding a function for
early warning for anomaly pollutant emissions,
monitoring and warning of pollutant anomaly
emissions in real time. Additionally, we have
embedded a data quality risk prevention and control
system for pollution source online monitoring in the
system, which can promptly detect abnormal
conditions such as exceeding the standard,
exceeding the total amount, constant value, zero
value, etc. In case of data abnormality, the system
can promptly alert relevant personnel through text
messages, voice broadcasting, etc. to ensure timely
response and handling of environmental protection
work.

Table: Exhaust gas Emissions of Dongyue

B Group in the Past Three Years

HHMESR 2021 FHERE 2022 FHEE 2023 FHHE
Emissions in Emissions in Emissions in

Type of emissions 2021 2022 2023

—Sthr () Sulfur dioxide (tons) 130.00 146.72 135.10

Ae () Nitrogen oxides (tons) 228.01 294.12 330.64

EE, e () Soot/dust (tons) 14.64 18.11 27.43

BERIEE#Y () Volatile organic

compounds (tons) 107.71 112.75 189.66
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Wastewater Management

Dongyue Group has strictly complied with the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, the Action Plan for
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, and
other relevant laws and regulations, established the
“Wastewater Discharge Assessment Management
Regulations”, the “Pollution Discharge Permit
Management System”, the “Soil and Groundwater
Pollution Prevention Management System”, and
other wastewater treatment and discharge
management systems, and monitored and managed
the major drainage links in the process of
production. The Group has established and
improved the drainage network to ensure that
wastewater is discharged into the municipal
network on the premise that the water quality
parameters are in compliance with the regulations,
and strictly prohibits direct discharge of wastewater
into surface water bodies.

The Group follows the principle of “rainwater and
sewage diversion; clean water and wastewater
diversion” in classifying and collecting draining
water. During the year, the Group sorted out the
“Management System for Opening Rainwater
Valves” and put up a poster of relevant introduction
of the system at each drainage outlet of rainwater.
We used both textual explanations and flow charts
to clarify the operating procedures of rainwater
valves, and provided corresponding guidance to
field staff to ensure that rainwater and sewage
diversion are managed in a compliant manner.
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k REEEE=FBEKHEK Table: The Wastewater Discharge of Dongyue

=D Group in the Past Three Years
ERNER 2021 FHERE 2022 FHEME BRPIPEEE:906
The types of emissions Emission in 2021  Emission in 2022 {EuIE LR WL PE]
Bk REKHERR 4B 2 (1) 4,761,142 3,875,779 4,272,622
Wastewater Total discharge of wastewater
(tons)
CODHEME (W) 72.70 56.40
COD emissions (tons)
[AFEME () 1.71 1.54
Ammonia nitrogen emissions
(tons)
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Solid Waste Management

Dongyue Group carries out strict classification
management of solid waste by classifying solid
waste into hazardous waste and general waste
according to the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste
Pollution, the Standard for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Waste Storage, the Measures for the
Transfer of Hazardous Wastes, and other relevant
provisions. In addition, the Company has issued the
Regulations on Solid Waste Management and other
waste management and disposal systems to actively
explore resource utilisation of solid waste while
ensuring that solid waste is disposed of in
compliance with regulations.

Hazardous waste generated from Dongyue Group
primarily includes R152a waste catalyst, waste
molecular sieve, SCR denitration waste catalyst,
incinerator fly ash, and waste oil. For hazardous
waste, we strictly handle the transfer record of solid
waste and entrust third-party disposal organizations
with hazardous waste operation qualification to
collect, transport and dispose of the waste. For the
general solid waste, the Group entrusts the
environmental sanitation department to remove it
regularly, ensuring that all the solid waste is
disposed of in compliance with regulations. In
addition, we have completed the full substitution of
perfluorooctanoic acid, a restricted and phased-out
substance, in accordance with the requirements of
the Action Plan for the Treatment of New Pollutants.



R HERERWRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEABEBEDGS FE
RXEER UBBELEET
BRERERAREIZEE (LS
FRBPEWMEEN - 2023F T
+¥F -EBTBERARRSEE
Rk EE R R #I2023F FFF
WRREHZLBEBRARR
BEYEE=ERL56% LR
EEMAMMEER QGRS
45% LR B EREMBER
RNAEPHD26% °

AEE SEZREENEZR
BEEEREEERES(ERR
ETEEAR RREHEDH
ERfEBENELE BABREK
BREHBREE  BBENF
BENEREAER REEL LA
- BRMEESEERE - B
Al BERGD EBERAIE
ERBEEEEARERENS
BRERmETEE BRHE
EHE2HEBEAMEKER &
B m U ETRARBIED
WEE ~ DA IR -

BT MERERMONEERRK
SEHEERESILERRENE
BERETTHANKRE X
ZERFBIRREEINEAES
M ARZ DR IE - B IE LR
e EERDFRRNSE R
REABRHEE  REM
THRARERNEYEEERE
B RABMIEREETMR
FREREERRERHBRENINER
fex#8 -

The Group took improving the comprehensive
utilization ratio of solid waste as its goal, and
reduced waste emission through upgrading of
production processes and optimisation of solid
waste treatment technologies. In the second half of
2023, the Group’s subsidiaries achieved significant
results in waste reduction, with a 56% reduction in
the amount of solid waste disposed of by Shandong
Dongyue Refrigerants Co., Ltd., a 45% reduction by
Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co.,
Ltd., and a 26% reduction by Shandong Dongyue
Fluorine & Silicon Material Co., Ltd. compared to
the first half of 2023.

During the year, the Group upgraded its solid waste
information system across the board in accordance
with the requirements of the whole-process
management of hazardous waste. The system is
capable of automatically obtaining key data on the
production, inbound, outbound, and transfer of
hazardous waste and automatically generating a
detailed account of hazardous waste, which covers
all aspects of the production, inbound, outbound,
transfer, and disposal of hazardous waste. At
present, the solid waste system has been linked to
various environmental management and monitoring
facilities and automatic collection terminals within
the enterprise to achieve comprehensive integration
and integrated presentation of data, thus enabling
the Group to efficiently collect, analyse and utilise
environmental data.

To meet the Group’s internal management needs,
the Group has conducted exhaustive classification
for the waste management matters of the solid
waste information system, which mainly includes
two core modules, namely “Environmental
Protection Overview” and “Daily Billboard”.
Through these modules, the executives of the Group
and its subsidiaries and environmental protection
personnel can comprehensively and rapidly
understand the overall situation of the Company’s
current waste management, which can provide
strong information support for the normal operation
of the Company and environmental compliance
management.
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MEEER
ERYER
Type of emissions
BEaE () Desulphurization gypsum
(tons)
BRERRE () Ash and slag of power
plant (tons)
HE BRI (W) Domestic waste (tons)
A B3 (WE) Office waste (tons)
BEAJ (HE) Acetylene sludge
(tons)
—MREEYESE  Total general wastes
485 (E) (tons)

—MREEZEWES  Intensity of general
BEWM BT wastes (tons/
L ON) RMB10,000 of

operating income)

Table: The Disposals of General Wastes of
Dongyue Group in the Past Three Years

2021 FREE 002FREE 2023FREE
Disposals in 2021 DIl |1WI07¥A  Disposals in 2023
15,443.02 0 14,232.02
188,886.62 243,890.90 268,367.46
105.75 248.20 245.00

12.00 4.28 4.30

273,028.84 181,814.82 130,581.00

204,447.39 244,143.38 413,429.78

0.13 0.12

B 2023 REAREELRKEGE
R BEARBREAEE - &
RERME -

* RESBERERVER

EEEEENREERR
BEEYES
Types of hazardous wastes
fErEmERE () HWO06
Transfer volume of hazardous  HWO08
wastes (tons) HW09
HW11
HW50
HW18
HW45
HW29
HW49

Note: In 2023, the desulfurization gypsum of the fluoro-silicon
power plant of Dongyue Group has not been completely
converted into gypsum for construction, and therefore, the
amount of disposal has increased.

Table: Transfer of Hazardous Wastes of
Dongyue Group to Qualified Institutions for
Disposal

001 FREE 0025REE 2023FREE
Disposals in 2021 Disposals in 2022 BRI LLE R WL PE]

1,807.04 2,223.85 2,103.89
135.94 189.08 120.02
0 29.82 0

368.12 1,649.42 2,596.04
1,098.98 443.27 391.83
495.03 414.59 6,993.68

19,597.36 28,815.75 35,261.42
174.94 59.88 11.14
1,802.71 3,160.23 1,762.61

0 2023F  AREER KB MR
REBTTARREEMEY &
HHWISR R EREEREBE
LN
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Note: In 2023, due to the increase of output and the increase of
incinerators to voluntarily dispose of other wastes in
compliance with regulations, HW18 recorded significant
increase in the incineration of wastes.
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All-win Harmony

Dongyue Group places the well-being of its employees and
society at the core of its corporate development and takes
practical actions to fulfill its corporate mission. The Group
strictly protects the legitimate rights and interests of employees,
promotes their career development, continuously strengthens
employee care, and endeavors to create a harmonious, upward,
and warm working atmosphere. At the same time, we readily
undertake social responsibilities and actively participate in public
welfare undertakings, contributing to the construction of a
better society.

6.1

Protecting Labour Rights and Interests

Attaching great importance to the rights and interests of
employees, Dongyue Group is committed to creating a
vibrant, respectful, and growing working environment
that will attract more excellent talents to join us. In strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as the
Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Company signs labor contracts with its employees
according to the laws and has always adhered to the
principle of equal and non-discriminatory employment,
treating employees of different genders, geographical
regions, races, and religions in a fair and just manner. At
the same time, the Company has formulated internal
policies such as the Regulations on the Recruitment of
Employees of Dongyue Group and the Guidance Measures
on the Employment of Labor Dispatch (Outsourcing) of
Dongyue Group to continuously improve the Company’s
diversified workforce and fully protect the legitimate rights
and interests of its employees. During the reporting
period, Dongyue Group did not experience any
employment discrimination, forced labor or child labor,
and the collective bargaining agreement covered 100% of
its employees.
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The Company continues to deepen the Dongyue E+ Smart
Court construction, which contributes to the protection of
the rights and interests of its employees. In 2023, the
Dongyue E+ Smart Court provided legal consultation more
than 20 times and mediated 3 disputes in total, which
was highly recognized by the Supreme People’s Court of
Shandong Province. The Company has also innovatively
set up a labor dispute coordination and joint handling
team, which is composed of the person in charge of the
Legal Affairs Department and the Personnel Section of the
Group, and the director of each Integrated Management
Department and Personnel Section of companies within
the Group, thus effectively improving the Group’s ability
and efficiency in handling labour disputes, and the
Group's legal risk prevention and control system has been
further improved.

By establishing a comprehensive recruitment system, the
Company proactively undertake the social responsibility
for talent recruitment and cultivation, and has constructed
a harmonious and stable labour relationship and created
diversified workplaces by means of internal transfers,
internal promotions and external recruitments. In 2023,
the Company recruited a total of 64 undergraduates, 88
masters, 6 doctors and 2 professionals. As of the end of
the reporting period, the Company had a total of 6,977
employees, all from Mainland China and entering into
labour contracts with the Group. The loss of employees
was 465.
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Table: The Employee Structure of Dongyue Group in 2023

RUEFETHWETAH
Total Number of Employees by Gender

921
—

N\ 6,056
m 88T ZET
Male employees Female employees
RERBINETAH

Total Number of Employees by Age

148
N\ 1,880
l /

2173

N—2776
31-40/E 5%
Aged between 31-40

= 50/ L
Aged over 50

B 30/ERAT
Aged under 30

= 41-50 5%
Aged between 41-50

RERBAINETAR
Total Number of Employees by Grade

104 — 1200

5673
m BN IA LR CSEEy TWET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
REEEINETAY

Total Number of Employees by Household Registration

mHEEMPEET

Staff with local

household registration

of Zibo

570 /4

N\ 6,405

mgSNET
Overseas

SMBFEERT
Staff without local
household registration
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Table: Employee Turnover Rate of Dongyue Group in 2023

RUBBSETRALLR RERESETIRALLR
Employee Turnover Rate by Gender Employee Turnover Rate by Grade
0
10.00% 10.00% /86%
8.47%
8.00% 8.00%
6.39%
6.00% 6.00%
4.00% 4.00%
0
200% 200%  gogs
0.00% 0.00% - -
HE8T ZET MERUA L EBEE TRET
58T ZET BB AR HIREE m EEET
Male employees Female employees Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
RERESBETIRALE
Employee Turnover Rate by Age
20.00%
17.66%

15.00%
10.00%

5.00% 321% 7%

1.84%
- e IR

30/@px  31-40 41-50 50/
AT A A AL

= 30BN T 31-40/E5%
Aged under 30 Aged between 31-40
= 41-50[E 5% = S0EBRMA L

Aged between 41-50  Aged over 50
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6.2 BHEIRE 6.2 Promoting Staff Development
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Dongyue Group strictly abides by the “Vocational
Education Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
other laws and regulations, and has established a
diversified employee development and training system
that is both practical and forward-looking to promote
employee growth. In 2023, the Company created a
diversified career promotion path with fairness and justice
by formulating the “Management Measures for the
Selection of Elites in Respective Positions of Dongyue
Group”, coupled with the relevant management systems
such as the “Management Measures for the Promotion of
Cadre Staff of Dongyue Group”, the “Management
Measures for the Assessment of Newly Promoted Cadre
Staff of Dongyue Group during the Probationary Period”
and the "Management Scheme for Training and
Assessment of Newly Promoted Cadre Staff of Dongyue
Group” introduced before, to meet the needs of
employees at all stages of development.

The Group keeps learning from its industry peers and
leading enterprises. In 2023, the Group optimised its
talent structure and standardise the management of talent
reserves through improving the “Guidelines for Human
Resources Reform of Dongyue Group” and the
“Complementary Incentive Scheme for Human Resources
Reform of the Group”, coupled with the “Management
Measures for Cadre Development and Talent Reserves of
the Group” and the “Management Measures for the
Talent Introduction and Recommendation Incentives of
Dongyue Group”, to establish internal talent flow
channels and facilitate employee growth. In addition, in
order to further strengthen our talent reserves, we have
formulated the “Implementation Plan for the Training of
Fresh Graduates in 2023", which requires all new
employees to work in the first-line workshops, giving full
play to the advantages of the teacher-apprentice
mechanism in the training of newcomers, so as to test
and stimulate the growth potential of individuals.
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The Group continues to strengthen its employee training
efforts by providing a wide variety of training programmes
for employees to establish a well-running training channel.
In 2023, the Group adopted a combined online and
offline mode to design courses on 20 topics, including
technology, safety, environmental protection and
equipment, while also fully utilising the online education
platform to effectively promote the training and
assessment work of the Group's subsidiaries as well as the
skills upgrading of its employees. At the same time, the
Group enhanced the liveliness, practicality and forward-
looking nature of the courses by further improving the in-
house trainer team building, perfecting the in-house
trainers’ incentive system, organising experience sharing
and exchanges among outstanding in-house trainers and
updating the criteria for evaluating the effectiveness of
the courses conducted by the in-house trainers. During
the reporting period, the Group organised four in-house
trainer empowerment training sessions, and the Group’s
in-house trainers taught more than 130 courses,
representing 80% of the Group’s annual training and
becoming the key driver of the Group’s training reform.

As at the end of 2023, the Company organised 198
Group-level training sessions throughout the year,
covering 32 topics, of which 10 sessions of annual
professional guru training were launched in collaboration
with various professional skills departments. The Group'’s
online education platform newly established 119
professional courses and 302 internal courses, arranged
190 learning programmes, and organised 274 specialised
examinations, covering 77,058 participants.
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Table: Staff Training at Dongyue Group

BEMRB S HNZEEAR

Number of Trained Employees By Gender

921 BN

= 6,056

m 58T ZET
Male employees Female employees

ZM BI85 KA Z AR
Average training hours By Gender

100.00

85 8

80.00
60.00
40.00
20.00

0.00

=BT ZET
Male employees Female employees

RESEAEIINZIEEAR
Number of Trained Employees By Employment Type

104 N
' Ve 1,200

5673

m BB A B EE TWET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees

RESEREINALZINEY
Average training hours By Employment Type

100.00

88
82 85

80.00
60.00
40.00
20.00

0.00

BEEN A E =B EE mE@RET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
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Percentage of Training By Gender

0
13.20 /o\

mSET ZET
Male employees Female employees

BB B 23 AN R B

Total Training Hours By Gender

78,285 —~

mSET ZET
Male employees Female employees
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N\ 86.80%

593,045

RESRABINZIEIL
Percentage of Training By Employment Type

0
1.49% —~ )
' Ve 17.20%
N\ 8131%
BB RIA L IR EE EWET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees

RESERB S NI/ NEFE
Total Training Hours By Employment Type

Y 8,840

' 102,000
482,205 —,

BRI B EE LTMET
Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
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6.3

Caring for Employees’ Life

Adhering to the people-oriented development philosophy,
Dongyue Group continuously improves the Company’s
compensation and benefit system and the construction of
communication and feedback channels. The Group
provides a wide range of employee care and actively
protects the physical and mental health of its employees,
which greatly enhances the cohesion of the Company and
the satisfaction of its employees, as well as reinforces the
relationship between the Company and its employees.

Remuneration and Benefits

Dongyue Group continues to improve employee
compensation and benefit protection system. By strictly
complying with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other laws and regulations, Dongyue Group
pays basic pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance, and housing provident fund for its
employees in a timely manner, and ensures that its
employees are entitled to sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and other statutory holidays in accordance
with the law. In addition, the Group also provides benefits
such as annual leave, holiday allowances and free meals
to reward employees for their dedication to the Company
and to strengthen their belonging to the Company. In
2023, the Company organised 2 surveys on the salaries
and policies of peer companies to ensure competitiveness
in the industry.

Employee Communication

Dongyue Group understands the importance of
communication with its employees and attaches great
importance to the opinions and views of each employee.
The Company focuses on building an open and
transparent communication platform, encouraging
employees to share their ideas and opinions through
organising surveys, seminars and other activities, while
providing active feedback on issues raised by employees
to ensure that the views of employees are fully understood
and attached enough importance. In 2023, the Company
organised 7 seminars on production, maintenance,
research, technology, management, equipment and other
professional aspects, and conducted more than 20
communications and exchanges in the form of surveys,
activities and meetings, as well as 3 face-to-face
exchanges with the General Manager.
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Employee Care

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, and has established a basic welfare protection
system covering basic pension insurance, basic medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing
provident fund, etc. In addition, the Group also provides
employees with benefits such as annual leave, holiday
allowances and free meals to enhance their satisfaction
and sense of belonging. Meanwhile, the Group supports
its employees in achieving a balance between life and
work, and pays attention to their physical and mental
health as well as their living conditions. In 2023, the
Group organised the autumn sports meeting to provide a
variety of competitive and fun activities, further enriching
the spare time of its employees.

Dongyue Group is committed to maintaining a warm and
mutually-supportive corporate culture, especially for female
employees and employees with disabilities. The Group has
instructed its subsidiaries to set up “Mothers’ Cottage” to
meet the breastfeeding needs of some female employees.
Moreover, to celebrate the International Women'’s Day (8
March), the Group organised a reporting meeting on the
Group’s outstanding female employees and a special
seminar on the care for female employees, where 10 red-
banner pace-setter were commended, and the director of
Huantai Maternal and Child Health Hospital, the associate
research fellow of the China Studies Centre of Fudan
University and the founder of the Home Education Research
Institute of Yunjia Jiaoyu were invited to conduct two
seminars on women's physical and mental health
respectively, with a view to enhance the happiness and
sense of belonging of the Group’s female staff. In addition,
during the reporting period, the Company paid visits to 22
staff members in difficulty and provided each of them with
caring materials to enhance the cohesion of the Company.
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6.4

Contributing to the Social Development

Adhering to the philosophy of “building hometown,
repaying the society, serving the country, repaying the
party”, Dongyue Group continuously strengthens the
investment and construction of charity funds, fully
leveraging its own strength to drive employees to
participate in social welfare activities and jointly build a
harmonious society.

Charity Funds

Dongyue Group continues to ramp up its investment and
development of the five charity funds in the field of staff-
caring, education, elderly respecting, scholarship, and
healthcare. It actively participates in social public welfare
projects, promotes social harmony and integration
through practical actions, and contributes to the
improvement of people’s well-being. In 2023, the Group
donated a total of RMB1,966,800 for social welfare
projects, fully demonstrating its responsibility.
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® REEEBLAESERBE

HeAB
Name

REELES
Dongyue Staff-caring Fund

REHEES

Dongyue Education Fund

REBEEES

Dongyue Elder Respecting
Fund

RERSBES
Dongyue Scholarship Fund

REGMEBEEAS

Dongyue Healthcare Fund

REEEERAT ZB-=FFR

FX AL B

Year of
establishment
2005 4

2005

2000 4F

2000

2007

2007

2000 4F
2000

20174

2017

Table Overview of the Five Dongyue Group Charity
Funds

HERAE
Target and purpose

RARERES THETHRE -
It is designed to support the Group’s staff in financial
difficulties.

AREB A AR EHBEREREOBMANESEEKEN
B BFAUEFELERBRI00BET -

It aims to reward teachers and students with outstanding
performance in local education, and donates over RMB1
million annually for the development of education.

AReFEREMEILETORNA L2 EE AEN200TE
NEERHRL

It is designed to provide an allowance of RMB200 each year to
elders aged over 70 in Tangshan Town.

RARBEEAR IWRETARERMHEBNERENEFTET -
It is designed to reward the students of Tsinghua University
and Shandong University of Technology with outstanding
academic achievements.

AREHRESRARER BaEEHERER EER
TERE=RKERBHR  NERSEMERKT -

It is designed to provide financial support to three hospitals,
namely Huantai County People’s Hospital, Huantai County
Women's and Children’s Healthcare Center, and Huantai
County Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital, effectively
improving local healthcare standards.
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Supporting the Education Industry

Dongyue Group continues to support the education
industry, injecting inexhaustible momentum into the
development of education industry. The Group has
established the “Dongyue Education Award Fund” to
commend and reward outstanding teachers and students,
and has supported the development of education in
Huantai County for 19 consecutive years. In 2023, the
total amount of rewards and donations from Dongyue
Education Award Fund reached RMB1.49 million,
effectively driving the steady improvement of education
and teaching quality, and establishing a good corporate
image.

Contributing to the Community

Dongyue Group continues to carry out social welfare
actions, encouraging employees to participate in various
public welfare activities and contribute their own strength
to society. For a long time, Dongyue Group has been
enthusiastic about public welfare projects and regularly
organized its employees to donate blood without
compensation. On 30 June 2023, under the organization
of the Company, a total of 75 employees made donation
of blood without compensation, with a total of 29,600
milliliters of blood donated, fully demonstrating the
responsibility and commitment of a contemporary
enterprise to convey hope and warmth.
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Stock Exchange ESG INDEX
RS

Details

A.Environment

Aspect A1: Type of emissions
General Disclosure

BRBERMBEREHN  MKRIMOEES BERBEZEZYNELSTNOBRMNEST

HEREMR

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste

A1.1

Al.4

A1.5

A1.6

BEnm e KRR B R

The types of emissions and respective emissions information

BE (SE-) kpREE (SBEZ) RERBAEYNE (U E) k(11
BRA)TE (WAGESSEM - BIERMETE

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions in
tons and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)

ELAEZSREYHES UEAE) R (MER)BE (WMABESEL -
BIERMETE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

PEAEZREEYHEE UEAE) X (WER)BE (WMINGESEM -
BIERMETHE)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

FRETSZ BRI 2 B AR S A E 25E L B AR PR ERER A 20 B2

Emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

BREBENEZEEMN AL WA ZAREB R R RERELR
1R PTERER Y 25 5%

How hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
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HEZ®
Corresponding
Chapters

BT RBER
FES Rz 21t
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
Responding to
Climate Change
BT RBER
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions

FEH RARE L

Responding to
Climate Change

L5 R

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
TS B RR

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
BT RN
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
B R

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
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EHEA2:
EREA
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B tE
Details
Aspect A2:

Use of Resources
General Disclosure

BRERER(BEEIR - KREMBRME) KB

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

RENE SN EE R HBEER(WE  [ooh) @2 ATHETR
Rt 8) MBE (MABESE - §ARMAHE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)
in total (kWh) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
REKERTE (MABEEEN  BERMETE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

PRETSL R BEIRE A A as B 1R R i B E & B IR T SR ARV 2 58

Energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

SKBGER AR L] B A ERE - KARFET VM AKEME BER BETE
L 5 IR PTEREX ) 20 B

Whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

N mPTABRMEMEE (LB E) R (WER) BEESMEE
Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tons) and, where
appropriate, with reference to per unit produced

HEZ®
Corresponding
Chapters

RERBE
BIERAKER
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management

=R X

Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
BlLAKER
Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
REaRME
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
ELAKER

Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
N2

Not applicable
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BE 15

Indicators Details

ETA3: Aspect A3:

BRENRKXMARER Environment and Natural Resources
— AR EE General Disclosure

BAERRHRRERRABERERBEAZENHER

Policies on minimizing the Company’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources

A3.1 EBARBHRRERAERNEAZERERREEEHETENITTE

The significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage them

124 HE&£EERAT —B-=FF§

HEZ®
Corresponding
Chapters

JE 5 Sk b
RIFEERER
SN LV ES
BEAKER

WA IERBEL
Responding to
Climate Change
Environmental
Management System
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
Optimization of Water
Utilization
Management
Reduction of Pollutant
Emissions

FE¥T RIRE b
REEERA
RERBE
BIERAKER
W5 RN
Responding to
Climate Change
Environmental
Management System
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
Optimization of Water
Utilization
Management
Reduction of Pollutant
Emissions
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g B3 HEZ®
Corresponding
Indicators Details Chapters
ETHAL: Aspect A4:
RiE#L Climate Change
—RRIREE General Disclosure
BRINEHER LA GHARELATENEARKBEETENRR JE 5 Sk b
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have Responding to
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer Climate Change
A4.1 BRI HBITAEEFENEARKEHEEE - REHTE YT RIRE (L
Significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may Responding to
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them Climate Change
B.itE B. Social
BB E(E Aspect B1: Employment
—MREE General Disclosure
BRAFN LR BIEREA  TIERE - R TERE  Zat REBEARAME RIEL T HR
BRENE AEETHEE
(@ BEE: K
(b)) ETHBETAGEARTENEBERZLRINER
Information on: Protecting Labour
(@)  the policies, and Rights and Interests
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer Caring for
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest Employees’ Life
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
B1.1 RIER - ERER (e BB - FRERN MRS S HEBER RIES T
Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g. full-time or part-time), Protecting Labour
age group and geographical region Rights and Interests
B1.2 MR FheER MR E 5 HEBIRK L X RIZS T s
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region Protecting Labour

Rights and Interests
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BE 15

Indicators Details

[ETB2 : Aspect B2:
BEHEZE Health and Safety

—RRIREE General Disclosure
FHRHLZEIEREMREREHCBELEEN
(@ BR- K
(b) ETFTHBTABERTENEBEERIRINER
Information on:
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards
B2.1 BE=F (BREERFE)FFRAITHRHAB R X
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year

B2.2 HIBEEAIERR
Lost days due to work injury

B2.3 PR R 2R 2 245 - U NRBEERIT RERTTA

Occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored
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HESH

Corresponding

Chapters

ZEEIRER

B RRIE

Safety Management

System

Occupational Health

Protection

2 B g by 1%
Security Risk
Prevention and
Control

7 5 B\ b 1%
Security Risk
Prevention and
Control

72 5 B fg b 1%
BEEERE
22 bR
Security Risk
Prevention and
Control

Occupational Health

Protection
Safety Culture
Promotion
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BE 15

Indicators Details

JETB3 : Aspect B3:

BREREI Development and Training
— MR E General Disclosure

FHEERAEERITIIEBRE MMM REEREER - HulIEIES -
o BIEBEEI  ATeEAEENBOHNIIBRIE
Policies on improving employee’s knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by the employer.

B3.1 BUERRESEMN (WSRERE TREEEF) FPNXIEEETS
b
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle management)

B3.2 BRIUERINEEERE D  BREETHIINFHIRH
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category

[ETE B4 : Aspect B4:

% T A Labor Standard
— MR E General Disclosure
BB IEE Toah 55 THY

(@ BE: &

(b) ETFTHBETABERTENEBEEZLRINER
Information on:
(@)  the policies, and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor
B4.1 B BB IE HI ey 15 bE LA R B T KGR #I4 T
Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labor

B4.2 EBRRERBAEBRBREBIARRN SR

Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

HEZ®
Corresponding
Chapters

BHhET#RE

Promoting Staff
Development

BHhETH#ERE

Promoting Staff
Development
BhBE TR
Promoting Staff
Development

RIS THE=

Protecting Labour
Rights and Interests

RIEL Tz
Protecting Labour
Rights and Interests
RIES T iz
Protecting Labour
Rights and Interests
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g B3 HEZEH
Corresponding
Indicators Details Chapters
JETBS : Aspect B5:
HrEHEEE Supply Chain Management
—RRIREE General Disclosure
EIRH R IRIE I g AR B st B RS
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain Enhanced Responsible
Procurements
B5.1 iR E S HEREE i BEERAE
Number of suppliers by geographical region Enhanced Responsible
Procurements
B5.2 Ml EEERHERNES  MERTEREMNNHERSE URE st B RS
BB EIT R ER TR
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers Enhanced Responsible
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and Procurements
monitored
B5.3 A BB HEESERHORE R RARAEN - A REBRT b B RS
RERFE
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along Enhanced Responsible
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored Procurements
B5.4 M BRE BRI R (R 2 2 BIRIRE oo R ARFS VB D] - ARIEE#HT i BEERAE

NERTE

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Enhanced Responsible
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are Procurements
implemented and monitored.
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g B3 HEZ®
Corresponding
Indicators Details Chapters
JETEB6 : Aspect B6:
EmER Product Responsibility
—RRIREE General Disclosure
FAFMRHERNRENERERZS - BS REREBLEEARBRITEN THEERE
(@ BER: Rk R RT B8R
(b) ETFTHBTABERTENEBEERIRINER
Information on: Comprehensive
(@)  the policies; and Quality Assurance
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer Enhancing Service
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products Experience
and services provided and methods of redress
B6.1 EEACEXEMAHETELZ2EEFEMMARNKNEOL 2HEERE
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and Comprehensive
health reasons Quality Assurance
B6.2 BREMPNERMRBRFHE AREE A RITART5 8858
Number of products and services related complaints received and how they Enhancing Service
are dealt with Experience
B6.3 e B g R IE B E B BB B REMBERE
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual Intellectual Property
property rights Rights Protection
B6.4 it 81 E B AR K E m @ AR e THEHEERE
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures Comprehensive
Quality Assurance
B6.5 HAUE B E BB RERLERE - URAEBRTRERTE RIRTE 8%
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Enhancing Service
implemented and monitored Experience

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2023

129



RE - HERERRE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

g B3 HEZ®
Corresponding
Indicators Details Chapters
ETB7 : Aspect B7:
RES Anti-corruption
—RRIREE General Disclosure
BRALTILRRER - MR - BGFROEREM ¢ BEHEER
(@ BE: R
(b) ETFTHBTABERTENEBEERIRINER
Information on: Commitment to
(@)  the policies; and Integrity and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer Compliance
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
B7.1 REBRPBAHBETASIEBERET D EENETHFARMNEE LK BRMEAR
EAEES
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against Commitment to
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of Integrity and
the cases Compliance
B7.2 Prasta e RBRWIRET - U RBBENITRERFE BEFHEER
Preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are Commitment to
implemented and monitored Integrity and
Compliance
B7.3 HilmMEEREIRHARESE BEHESR
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff Commitment to
Integrity and
Compliance
JETBS : Aspect B8:
HERE Community investment
—RRIREE General Disclosure
FRLHEBE2ERTREEMELETENERREEZBEDEE BE BN RBER Bt gERE
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the Contributing to the
issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities interests Social Development
B8.1 HEIERSE(NHE RESEHE SIFK BFE X 85) Rt @ %R
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labor Contributing to the
needs, health, culture, sport) Social Development
B8.2 EZIHBMBAER (NS ENEFRHE) Bt gERE
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area Contributing to the

Social Development

130 HE£EARAR —B-=FF§



38 3 B BT R S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

elite
< partners

BREEERRATEZEERR
(RASHBTMH A BRAA)

=r
=

EECETFIBERIEMEREEREGRA
AIERA) REMBAR (HEIEL£E]D AN
RAEVBmE P RENR2023F 1243188
BEVBRAREBEZHLEFENGABRR
HM2mBARE KBRS HREGEEES
MER  UREEUBHRENT  BREEXNER
BEER -

RE GRAVKRRE EREER SRR
(BT EAESE]) BHRE T BR
Al (BB BREEN)D) EERAFHR
HEEEM2023F12 4318 26 VBN
o RERBEZBLFEZGAMERERE
EHREREBEAZEGAYBRREERBREB(A
AHEPDHEBRREZL ARE -

!

= aagaray
=R
e
=
==
o %

N

F

ERNER

ELEORBEBEGHMAG([HESHMAE])
B e BAETEY ([FEBNER] ETE
B BEEZFERTAENEABEARS %
PR A EAREMBEBRRAENRE]I MO HIE
E— PR REFBGHAMAGRMN[FEER
gitmER T (A  BFBIR &%
C WERETRIBTEMEREE - EFHE
BEEEIGEE MEENENERE FRESFE
YRR -

To the Shareholders of Dongyue Group Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 138 to 261, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (”IFRSs"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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HREFESEHERETENEENE  RAELHHE
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

HREETER

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB1,568,806,000 and
provision for impairment of approximately RMB4,298,000.

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days for trade
receivables. Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of different customers,
ageing of the trade receivables, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and ongoing
trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses (“ECL") for the impairment assessment.

We identified trade receivables as a key audit matter due to
the measurement of ECL requires significant estimates and
judgements, including determination of whether there is
significant increase in credit risk, use of models and
assumptions in determination of probability of default,
incorporation of forward-looking information.

132 HE£EARAT —B-=FF§

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENBITNMEERRENSEE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2023 included:

— Understanding the management’s estimation on the

allowance for credit losses on trade receivables, and
the key controls that the Group has implemented to
manage and monitor the credit risk of the trade
receivables;

—  Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the

trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 to the
underlying financial records and subsequent
settlements;

— Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborating explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on
trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence with
the customers; and

— Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology, examining the key data inputs on a
sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness,
and challenging the assumptions, including both
historical and forward-looking information, used to
determine the ECL.
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Key audit matter
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those
charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

135

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2023



18 3 B BT R S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

— HEERAKEKZSEMNREEE
HAER - REBEMEDRNESRE  BEL
CHEERFENBRAEHENERTHEE M -
femr e EHs BEEENFELERED
ELXEARE MRESER/FEEARTD
BEM AL EEZBMBREFIRBRE
REIBGEMBRERPOMEBEEE =X
SERENRETR RIESEEENE

cBEMEWEERNZBENRE B P
BUSEVERTBRE - R RRFHEABR
RSy ERETHRSELE -

— FERGMBHRROERIRIA BB
EAT BRERE UREEHBHREE
BRERRIEER S RFER -

— B BEEEREESELIINMBKER
EERXR BENERTERE UWEHEKA
BHRERBELRER BTSAREEEHD
FEcEBRAT - EEABTERERE
2HEME -

ESFHEHERAERBT (AP ERE) SENENR
CBREZEREREFER  BREFEE
AR A8 R H P R B B0 (] EKERFE ©

EENTAERERRER FABTZCNEEH
BUMMABEEER  WREEBBBEAES
BRASERETSTE L MNMEBEENEM
R UREEANBERT - BEREERIRE
& HE M ERELETTE) ©

136 HE£EARAT —B-=FF§

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yip Kai Yin with Practising Certificate number
P07854.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 23, YF Life Tower,
33 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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HZE2023F 12 A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Bt &E
Notes
e Revenue 6
$HE A Cost of sales
EH Gross profit
HARARE M FIER Other income and other net gains and losses 7
SIEREERXE Distribution and selling expenses
TR B R 2 Administrative and other expenses
RAETE BB E 28/ Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 17
OIS AL J PN Research and development cost
BAFEFTAER Fair value changes on financial assets at
([ RrFEFAERD 2 fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
CREEAFEZE
ok el A—/NCIE S Share of results of associates
BhE AR Finance costs 8
B 354 A g 7 Profit before taxation
Frig R Income tax expense 9
F R F Profit for the year 10
HEHmemEBEETSEN Other comprehensive loss item that will not be
DEEBEMIER reclassified to profit or loss:

BATEFARMEEY S
(MRAFEFAEMEE
Wt ) 2 IRATAZ
/N

ATEE

Fair value changes on equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI")

FREEKEAER

Total comprehensive income for the year

TN EEFARRF -
— RAREEEA
— FEER R R m

Profit for the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests
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2023 &
2023
AR® T
RMB’000

14,493,323
(12,057,192)

2,436,131

269,157
(503,038)
(647,286)

(935,099)

34,965
(1,659)

653,171
(42,086)

611,085

(15,449)

595,636

707,793
(96,708)

611,085

2022 4
2022
AREF T
RMB’000

20,027,988
(13,513,617)

6,514,371
229,006
(498,767)
(993,740)
1,212,290
(1,310,535)

(37,669)
25,401
(15,302)

5,125,055
(948,938)

4,176,117

(5,830)

4,170,287

3,855,539
320,578

4,176,117
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPRE

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 F
2023
AR®T
RMB’000

TH&FEEFANEZEKZE  Total comprehensive income for the year

BEE attributable to:
— RRBEE A — Owners of the Company 692,344 3,849,709
— FEIER AR R — Non-controlling interests (96,708) 320,578
595,636 4,170,287
HFRET Earnings per share
— HAREE(ARE) — Basic and diluted (RMB) 13
LR A 2 a2 FE BERE P B 5 — 1 B RE - The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2023 139




e B AR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72023412 H31H
As at 31 December 2023

B 5
Notes

BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
L/ E T Y Property, plant and equipment 15
CREEE Right-of-use-assets 16
BEEWE MEkREZ Deposits paid for purchase of property,

[EENE & Plant and equipment
REE R 2= Interest in associates 17
mEEE Intangible assets 18
BAFEFAEMEERE  Equity instruments at FVTOCI

ZBRATA 20
IR E E Deferred tax assets 21
EES Goodwill 22
REEE Current assets
BE Inventories 23
TEHERB 2 M= Properties for sale 24
B 5 & E b fE W SR IE Trade and other receivables 25
DM ITER Pledged bank deposits 26
WITHEBR LIRS Bank balances and cash 26
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 R EH A BN RIE Trade and other payables 27
MEBE Tax liabilities
HEBRE Lease liabilities 28
RIEYA Deferred income 29
REBEEFE Net Current Assets
REERTBHER Total Assets less Current Liabilities
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2023 &
2023
AR® T
RMB’000

12,193,145
866,630

222,722
469,130
17,345

103,174
129,339
299,024

14,300,509

1,546,407
917,316
2,493,357
143,859
2,547,297

7,648,236

4,500,284
11,449
5,198
42,858

4,559,789

3,088,447

17,388,956

2022 4
2022
AREF T
RMB’000

11,531,543
923,163

409,027
88,034
23,815

152,849
85,877
299,024

13,513,332

1,441,712
1,202,341
3,040,268

131,302
5,315,994

11,131,617

5,409,088
75,167
4,894
83,813

5,572,962

5,558,655

19,071,987



e AR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72023412 H31H
As at 31 December 2023

2023 & 2022
2023 2022
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
e EQUITY
EAREE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 212,196 212,196
G Reserves 14,582,025 15,869,822
RRRHAE AEGER Equity attributable to the owners of the
Company 14,794,221 16,082,018
I 12 AR A R A Non-controlling interests 2,144,188 2,411,459
4R Total equity 16,938,409 18,493,477
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
EEFIRAE Deferred tax liabilities 129,481 251,921
HEEE Lease liabilities 26,851 38,740
PEIEIA Deferred income 294,215 287,849
450,547 578,510

17,388,956 19,071,987

FE138E 261 A AV B MERKCEETESH 2024  The consolidated financial statements on pages 138 to 261 were
F3A26 U AERRETEE  WH T ALK  approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

#=E March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by
REZ R g
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
EF BF
Director Director
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mEEREBR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2023F 12 A31HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

EGE N 1
Attributable to owners of the Company
BATE
AR EaR
2E%EZ EE  REHY FER
BE&  REE  BATIA  AfEE  BRIRE  R2BE  BHERE  FRRG  REEW Mt RRER 88
Share
held for
Equity Statutory  employee Non-
Share Share  instruments Merger Capital Safety surplus option Retained controlling
capital premium  at FvTOCI reserve reserve reserve reserve scheme earnings  Sub-total interests Total

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETR ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Note 30) (Note a) (Note b) (Note ) (Note d) (Note ) (Note ) (Note 35)

(z30) (Fizta) (FizEb) (BizEc) (FizEd) (Fizte) (W) (HE35)

R02%1A18 At 1 January 2022 212,338 3,952,498 (1,674,624) (32,210) 195,790 5,289 1,583,712 (270,503) 9,151,291 13,123,581 2,515,042 15,638,623
FRER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 3,855,539 3,855,539 320,578 476,117
BRATEFALMZERE  Fair value loss on equity instruments
ZBATEZATERBE  atfvToC - - (5,830 - - - - - - (5,830 - (5,830
FRRERZEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (5,830 - - - - - 3,855,539 3,849,709 320,578 4,170,287
T Transfer - - - - - 954 366,630 - (366,630) 954 " 1,065
ERBRETEAT Purchase of shares under employee
BERG option scheme - - - - - - - (204347 - (204347 - o34
FERBERER Capital contribution from
& non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 3,500 3,500
IR R RS Acquisition of additional interests in a
LIl subsidiary from non-controling
fEMER interests - - - - - - - - (45,875) (45,875) (62,671)  (108,546)
B8 RiF MR 1D Share repurchased and cancelled (142) (16,633) - - - - - - - (16,775) - (16,775)
ERE Dividends paid - - - - - - - - (625,229) (625,229) - (625,229)
AEEHBAR Dividends paid by
BIRFHERE subsidiaries of the Group - - - - - - - - - - (365,101) (365,101)
R2022%125318 At 31 December 2022 and 1
%2023%1A1A January 2023 3,935,865  (1,680,454) 1,950,342 (474,850) 11,969,096 16,082,018 2,411,459 18,493,477
FREF Profit for the year - - - - 707,793 707,793 (96,708) 611,085
BATEFALM2ERE  Fair value loss on equity instruments
ZBATEZATERE  atFvToC (15,449) (15,449) (15,449)
FRRERZEE Total comprehensive income for the
year (15,449) - 707,793 692,344 (96,708) 595,636
EE Transfer - 683,819 (683,819) 4 381
ERBREEAT Purchase of shares under employee
BERHR option scheme (240,893) - (24089) (240,893)
BRRE Dividends paid - (1,19%,613)  (1,196,613) (1,196,613)
TEEMBLA Dividends paid by
BIRAERE subsidiaries of the Group (55,055) (55,055)
Ehialints Other comprehensive
Bk income carried forward
to retained eamings 1,569,329 (1,569,329)
FEERERRER Acquisition of additional interests in a
WEENTB AR MESMES  subsidiary from non-controlling
interests (542,909) (542,909) (115,615) (658,524)
R2023E128318 At 31 December 2023 PAVALL 3,935,865 (126,574) (32,210) 195,790 6,517 2,634,161 (715,743) 8684219 14,794,221 2,144,188 16,938,409
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mEEREBR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

7 2 2 2 B 2% B O O 5 — DO -
s 4 (B

RIEFREFSDEE (EER])  ARBEMRMEER
ADEGRARFIMEE  HEEEZERDIRBEZ AR
ARBBAENEEEERBEBHBREDINHOE

BAFEFARL G2 ER SR T AR

BAFEFAEMGEZERENRATARGEREN RS
HARRBEER BRELENFIORFTAH 2B FEFA
Hih2EWaE 2 RATREZ ATVERFHFEE -

BB
EOHREBRER 2006 F R 2 REEH -
AN o

R2007F 118168 - AARIEERMAEZADEITER
E{E0.13E 7L 2 &A% 275,000,000 % © MZZHEE LR
BEBEZEZAMMAEAEERETRA—GHEE R
B » ##:%4,000,000,000 % F R EE0NB T2 H LB
B% - 0% IR AN 48 = 400,000,000 7T © 72007 €11 A
15 B - [A137 A §% 3 %17 275,000,000 % & A% H (£ 0.1 74
TZHL B - BESEEREBITHRNEEZNE
BETARANEE -

A F S 1 R FHE AR R R MR BB B SME 2 S B A A
RiE@mzR5  FEEEZBETE SEEERRA
RIS -

72 (#HE

REBPEARAME ((FE)WEBERERZEEE
EEERARRMIETESR ARBZETHEKE
RAIBANRELTZBERICBRIFERKRAZ05%E
ARTRE - FHE R E2MES - ZHBUAIEERER
FEERZELEERERBEZH  BWERMAXIEE -
WREERFAESE -

EERBFHE

RIBFPERFDEREBARNAMERAR  ARFAHE
M A RIAREERRES B @ R E 2 Bk
M10% 2 S BBEALERBRHE

EERBRRBARREZ M0 BEEEHREIEE
NEMEAS0% 2 28 BIBAE—FDE - REP
BRABE ATRHAEHENBERMBERHE  Ent
ERREEEREERA -

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes:
(a) Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of
the Company is distributable to the owners of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

(b) Equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve

The equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period.

(0) Merger reserve
Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.
(d) Capital reserve

On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000
previously issued ordinary share of US$0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary
shares were cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as of
that date. On the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to
HK$400,000,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were then issued
to the shareholders existing on 15 November 2007. The excess of the repurchased
amount over the nominal amount of new shares issued was credited directly to
the capital reserve.

The acquisition of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and the
corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against capital
reserve.

(e) Safety reserve

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), some of
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to set aside an amount of safety reserve
at progressive rates from 0.5% to 4% of the total revenue from the sales of
hazardous chemical. The reserve can be utilised for the spending in improvements
and maintenances of work safety on the Group’s daily operations, which are
considered expenses in nature and charged to the profit and loss as incurred.

(f) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the relevant Articles of
Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to appropriate
amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance
reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation is
not required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve
may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and business
operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.
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AERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2023F 12 A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE12B3MBLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 2022
2023 2022
i AR¥ TR ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REZTHMEHALSRE Cash flows from operating activities
B % A& Profit before taxation 653,171 5,125,055
FEIEA - Adjustments for:
RMEXA Finance costs 1,659 17,558
RITHFFF BUA Bank deposits interest income (89,509) (80,255)
IRIEU A IR Realisation of deferred income (79,878) (36,936)
H b fEURFRIE (B, RiE (Reversal)/impairment of other receivables (1,754) 28,368
B S REWE (BE),/HiE (Reversal)/impairment of trade receivables (2,590) 4,628
mE WERSERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,185,879 904,313
RN GRE] Impairment of goodwill = 37,526
B AR Amortisation of intangible assets 7,726 16,220
ERESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 20,694 29,714
WRFE Write-down of inventories 174,668 182,126
HEMHE  MBERERBEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 59,001 21,233
W HERSERE Impairment on property, plant and equipment 49,100 -
HE— MR RR M Gain on disposal of an associate (1,212,290)
HERATEFTAZERZEZE  Loss on disposal of financial asset at FVTOC|
BMEEREIR -
BRATERAERZ Fair value changes on financial asset at FVTPL
ERMEEATEE 37,669
DME—HEEERR ZER Share of results of an associate (34,965) (25,401)
HERTLEE Disposal of intangible asset - -
HEB Y KLE Operating cash flows before movements in
Reng working capital 1,709,534 5,049,528
FECRD),/HEm (Decrease)/increase in inventories (279,363) (21,324)
B 5 I H b e Wk B > Decrease in trade and other receivables 551,255 123,673
EHE R 2 MR D Decrease in properties for sale 285,025 390,166
L5 N E R 8 OBl ) /300 (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (730,357) 540,415
REFREMELRERD Decrease in deposits from pre-sale of properties (241,784) (101,731)
EFEY A S AN Increase in deferred income 45,289 91,573
EMBRE Cash generated from operations 1,583,938 6,072,300
BERATER RIEMH Income tax and withholding tax paid (207,988) (989,759)
RETEHFBRESFE Net cash generated from operating activities 1,375,950 5,082,541
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RERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2023F 12 A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

REZHMBREAE
BEVE #BEREHE
HEMF - BERRBAIEHA
XN EREEE
HEEREEENEVEE
PS5

BEEVEE

EWFIE

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment

Payment for right-of-use assets

Proceeds from disposals of right-of-use assets and
intangible assets

Purchase of intangible assets

Interest received

HEZAFEFAEMBE2EUEZZ Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments

BT AR 50R

at FVTOC|

W AT E AR M 2T 2 Payment for the acquisition of equity instruments

BRATRZ K
EERRITEFAN KA
& — R & A BB TS TR
W BB & R P 5RO
HEMBLRRERNFE
WEMEARREREFE
B — R L AR S

at FVTOCI
Payment from pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of an associate
Payment from acquisition of associates
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries
Dividend received from an associate

REZBMAREFHR

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REZHMBRERE
EEEE

B 8RR ER TR ERD
PR

ERHE

EEHERR

BERRE
EMFFER R RS N 28
PESTIGER ST ¢ il

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
Payments on purchase of shares under
employee option scheme
Interest paid
Repayment of lease liabilities
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary from

DAY MER non-controlling interests
R R ERT A Capital contribution from non-controlling interest
(el §8 N At SE R 1 32 A Payment on repurchase and cancellation of shares
REZDIAREFE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

ReRERALER (D)
BFEE

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

FURSKRERASER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR
FREEREFREEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
I Represented by:
IRITHEBR LIRS Bank balances and cash

2023 &
2023

ARBTR

RMB’000

(1,911,244)
190,296

40,694
(1,269)
89,509

39,203

15,648
(12,557)
(352,846)

11,364
(618,178)

6,715

(2,634,000)

(240,893)
(1,659)
(16,427)
(1,196,613)
(55,055)

(1,510,647)

(2,768,697)

5,315,994

2,547,297

BZ12A31BLEE

Year ended 31 December

2022 4
2022
ARETT
RMB’000

(3,845,563)
60,829
(69,692)

(8,678)
80,255

238,400
(6,500)

(1,691)
933,871

(295,279)
7,633

(2,906,415)

(624,100)

(108,546)
3,500
(16,775)

(1,962,684)

213,442

5,102,552

5,315,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1 —RER

RESEARAE ([ARQAE]) K 200647
R24BRHAEHEIMRIAXRRER
AR H M EEARAP.O. Box 31119,
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands ° R A & # A% {9 B 2007 12 A 10 A
BREBBHMEXIABRARIER LM -

ARABB—REERRAR - AR A RE
WEAR (ABIAEE]) TEHERE -
DEREERY TME B LA
Mo FLE - BR % (TPVC ) K A
NE A o

HAEMBRERARRAZWEEBARE
(TAR®B D251 -

2 FERIBIRE B Sk & 2 B (1 Bl RS Bt
BHRELER ) BRI A

REAEEREHER BRI EHRELER 2
(EHE:S

RAFE AEERRRGAVHHRERE
REB T BBEREFEANEES ((BR
S EAEE S ) AEM N A LB 20235
1 A1 B FI%R 2 5 B 9 6 4 R 2 B B
BmE N2 TR RAERT A

BB ®REER  RERAD
F£179%
EE e EREes SitEitNES

CHES

B ERE 125 BE-RXHELNE
CHES ERAEABNE

FERR IR

B &5 ERIE 1258 BRBKE —F
CHES ZEER

B SERIE 15 SHBRRE
CHES

RAFEEBBERY SRS ER 2T E
AIRERTAEAREERAFELBEFE
M BRRRKRBR LZEHRGEE Y
BHRERABIWBEERALBEATE -
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General Information

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O.
Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale of
polymers, organic silicon, refrigerants and dichloromethane,
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and liquid alkali and others.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Application of amendments to international
financial reporting standards (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The application of the new and amendments to IFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
position and performance for the current and prior year and/or
on the disclosures set out in these condensed consolidated
financial statements.



E MR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 EREREKHREER (EREE 2 Application of amendments to international

BHMEER ] BT ) financial reporting standards (“IFRSs")
(Continued)
EHEMAEERER ZEREKREERN 2 Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
CHES
RTIBEHR 2 &Rz
FEHBEMR:

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after:

B B B s i 5 ZE RN 25 10 5 I BB REEBEBENRXNEEDLE LM A RBFE
GEHERFE 2898 (1BETAN) ZEENENTEE

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Effective date
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture to be determined

BRI BmEEE 165 (18] A) SEREEMHEHEEE 202441 A1 H

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024

R ERIE 19 (1BET ) BESEAMNBLIERDIAREE 2024%1 A1 H
ZEE S RMAREET (20204F)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2024

Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BIRR g et 2RISR 158 (1BET ) MR ERIERE B E 20241 B1H
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
R et AR B 7 5% I BIRR B 7 HERERE T B 20241 A1 H
HEAERE 75 (BFTA)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
Re st ERIZE 21 5% (BFTA) Bz Al Rt 20251818
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
EFEHERAMARREY B HmE LR 25 The directors anticipate that the application of all new and
A BRI RETTARAR B RETGHEE amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
M mRERERLE - consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.

BERETHRGE
B RRKE

BAMBRESDREEEG LRSS
B BB SRR - 25N &
ANBRRREEABARSRERAT
BH EHRBIRE B A RIEPIRE 2 8
-

BARBREDRESRALERY
S BT AR & SRR A FER AR
2% R AFEH AR 2 ERSHE - E
ERA-BERAERRESZREZA
FIEEH -

NPEERAERRTSE2REREKRF
REZPHE-REEARRAERE—HA
BEEAXNZER TwxBBREEEEA
BRI AMEREMGETEEL G -
ME2EENFERNEEEXRETEE
HeEREEXRENREH  AAKER
MAEERABNATERSGEEZSR
B ZEGEAVBRERPIETER IR
BERZNAFEDRLEEETE  EER
[0 % B 75 R 5 R R 58 2 5% AR 19 2 15 R OE
HEMNARND N RO Z B BRI
BELAF16FRBEANEERS - UK
HAFEARSMEMT AL IR FEN
TE - BEMBIR G AR 2REFEANT
BN FELBEREEEI6REERE
H(E AR B (ERR SN ©
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Summary of material accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by International Accounting Standards Board. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that are
measured at fair value through profit or loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income at the end of each
reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3. EXREBHHBERE®)

BERRKE (E)

Bosh R EBE B R AT @B
ERDAT @ BB AT HEIZE N
REEHAEHERATEFEQNESY -
WRAE-E S_ERE-BHLATE
R T -

F-EBERABRENAEASNAEREE
HBEERRTST CREARE) HRES
H B _EBABREABRTE —EHA
BREEHNRENIIN  EEXBETH
BERAHEZBERGHNBAE: RE=E
BWAEBEHEEEXRENTAERBAE-

BERGREREINWOT -

REEE

HAEMBRREBEARAMBARARFTRE
MBARZEINEBNYBERR - EAR
BIEBIA TR - BN EB G :

— BEFRRETED

— FIRERBEHERKRETHNEEDE
JARER: &

— ARNEREBNIZEHDOR-
MEBEMBERBER LA =EZEFHERZ

—HEHZELRES  AEESERFMG
HEREFRKRED °

Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

—  has power over the investee;

— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

— has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amounts by which of the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets, and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the

attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

—  the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of IFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

— the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

— any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

— an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the
end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

—  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable; and

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental
rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as at
the commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

—  the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

— the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants of
which the primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
the current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings in the course of construction in progress for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassified to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities. When a group entity transacts
with an associate of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straightline basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effective of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to relevant cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.



E MR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

EXASTHEHME @)

BNy
<
&

FEREHmE A HREKAER] SR FE
HBIREDIBR o BCASRA INAEF 05 E -
AR FEREFENBIHEERMA G
FHTERARAR BOE T 8 E P IS B ROBKAS

FHERBZWE

FHERBZRIMERIFLERG A
EMESERRDEE LKA R A&
BEETBRIEEIR KABE AN
MERMERBERAN - MERERABRE
BERAK REASESIBREACZ
fEERANRFAEREELE 2 BREHKA -
ETHEMUTORABERHEEEREG
BERAEANEEETHERLAELEN
FIBEBRA - HEZEREEMKRATIR
FA I 15 E ©

EEMENTREEREFELER R ZME -

TMITH

EASEERURIAANKGXNITINTT
B BRcREENERAB -FAUE
RAABARNKEZEREEDREERR
HIRBRER LR IR - UERTABA
ki E AN TS B E KB HI AT RFRA
RNEEZEREERBAILE -

Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties for sale and properties under
development for sale are classified as current assets and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
both the prepaid lease payments for land and development
costs for the properties. Development costs of properties
comprise construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised
according to the Group’s accounting policy and directly
attributable costs incurred during the development period.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale. Cost of each unit in each
phase of development is determined using the weighted
average method.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

— the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

— the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below) invest income are
included in the “other income” line item.

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.



E MR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.

EXSTHEHME @)

¢RI AEE)
TEEEZ B EETE (BE)

(ii)

(iii)

BAFEFAEMEZEREORAT
A

BAFEFAELEZEBENRAT
AREHBE A VEFNE AV EER
BELANKREMERINEMEEIK
AR N R AT EFARMEE
WaEk AT AREBRF BHAE
TTRERHE - RETRAEHBENEE
BABER T EEMDEERE X
HEBEERERT

KEZERATARENRBENASE
I e X st 5. ) R ) i S B X B 2 R B
R BRIERBEABKKRITS WEKRE
FRAS o B B RF ARz [ E AR U A TR
B e

BATFEAABRNEREE
TRHERBEKN AR AFESAR
f 2t 5T E T /T A FER
AR EERGSNEENEREETD
BAFEFABDAE -

BAFEFABZHSHEEN SR
SHRZAFEFE  mAFERS
HEER N IE SR - RBRERK
FWENEEBRE TR EEMMRID
EAR RS E -

Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)
(i) Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

are

subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the equity
instruments at FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to

impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of

will
the

equity investments, and will be transferred to retained

earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instrum

ents

are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends

clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of

the

investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”

line item in profit or loss.

(iii)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being

measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designate
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

d as

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or

losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or

loss

recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or

interest earned on the financial asset.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank
balances and cash) which are subject to impairment under IFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at each reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition.

In making this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following
information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread,

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

—  Past-due status;

— Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

—  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is

credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2023 177



e M RR MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

EXSTHEHME @)

¢RI AEE)

R 175 B9 B B 75 2 & ZE R 2 9 5% 2 77 Bl 18 &F

fh a2 g & Z Bl 1E (&)

(v BEHEEEENENRERE)
AEEFEBABKRAENBSERR
BeRTAMBERSNER HE
5 Ko E A 8 U R TR DA B 1 B 3 B AR FE
EMHMEREERIN  MABRARE
TyiE B BB AR T AR o

BUOEHER M EE
AEEENEERSRENE QERNEM
B M EREERZEEMAENBA
MoRBREORERE S — BRE DU
REMEE °

BUBERLZBHEK AT ENESREER
BERAEECKREERREANNEZER
PIBE R -

BUBERANEE RS ERAKEFRAF
EBff ARLE2E KSR ATARER
ERIRARBEELRFBANRTBRE D
SENOEERG  BESBBREREEN -

178 HE&£EARAT —B-=FF§

Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade and other
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefit

Retirement benefit cost

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employee’s relevant income and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed in the central pension scheme. The Group has no
forfeiture of pension scheme contributions (i.e. contributions
processed by the employer on behalf of the employee who has
exited the scheme prior to vesting of such contributions).
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefit (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost
of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another IFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Share based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share options reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium.
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Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

Shares purchased for employee option scheme

When the Company’s shares are purchased from the open
market for employee option scheme, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented
as shares held for employee option scheme and deducted from
total equity.

The fair value of services received from employees determined
by reference to the fair value of shares granted at the grant
date is expenses on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share option reserve.

At the time when the shares vested, the difference on the
amounts previously recognised in shares held for employee
option scheme and the amount recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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4,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision for ECL on trade receivables

The Group’'s management determines the provision for
impairment on trade receivables based on the expected credit
losses which uses a related loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Management reassesses the provision at the end of each
financial reporting period.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's financial assets,
unquoted equity instruments and unlisted Put Option,
amounting to RMB103,174,000 (2022: RMB152,849,000) and
RMB nil (2022: RMB nil) respectively are measured at fair value
with fair value being determined based on significant
unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. Judgment and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2023, a deferred tax asset of
RMB129,339,000 (2022: RMB85,877,000) in relation to certain
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses has
been recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or
more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes
place.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating
units) and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss/further impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to RMB299,024,000 (2022: RMB299,024,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
note 22.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share
premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.
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Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (continued)

TRAE

(@) Categories of financial instruments
2023 F 2022 4
2023 2022
AR TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost 5,097,281 8,392,053
Equity investments at FVTOCI 103,174 152,849
5,200,455 8,544,902

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 4,096,902 4,729,548

B EKRERE B ZERBEK

FEENIESMTABERSRA
RN HOR - A TER AR RE
W 2 BATE BEME BER
2z ENES  BERRTER
RITHBRESAE SR E RN K
e ER BT BMEERENER
BoiEeRIANEHNARBED
BER (SEARRFIZER) - E8
Al RRBAS AR < RIS AR
MBFEBRARTX - AEEERERE
R BRI SR - ARR R L
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deposit
paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and trade
and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Group’s management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Market risks

(i)

Currency risk

The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar “US$") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while
taking into account its foreign currencies payment
schedule in the near future.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and

BT monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
BE =N
ASSETS LIABILITIES
2023 2022 4 2023 F 2022 F
2023 2022 2023 2022
ARBT T ARET T ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ETT us$ 204,905 767,421 25,949 25,566
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB17,895,600 higher/lower
(2022: RMB74,185,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of US$ denominated bank balances and cash and
trade and other receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The credit quality of customers is assessed
after taking into account the customers’ financial position
and past experience with the customers.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had concentration of
credit risk, 12.80% (2022: 15.05%) of its total trade
receivables were due from its largest customer and
34.24% (2022: 42.21%) of its total trade receivables
were due from its top five customers respectively. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating
o external credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
customer’s ability to meet its obligations

o significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the customer, including changes in
the payment status of customers in the group and
changes in the operating results of the customers.



SABBHEME ”‘E 1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

5. EXEREMERMEEBZRK 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

R objectives and policies (continued)
(b) BIEREKBEEBEREEKE) (b) Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

=B R EF G (&) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
HEPIIVAENEENE S EWIE Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(&) (Continued)
20234 2022612318 - B # The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL
B 5 W RIEE ER 81 B &b & 78 47 for trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 is
FEEEBENERMAET summarised as follows:
72023F12831H As at 31 December 2023

RHEEE IREAE
Expected Gross carrying
Loss rate amount

AR®T R
RMB’000

Current (not past due) BN ER (R ER) - 1,526,444
Within 1 year past due BH—F R 5% 40,067
More than 1 year past due BH—F LAk 100.00% 2,295

1,568,806

M20224%12 A31H As at 31 December 2022

EiEEE
Loss
allowance
AR% T
RMB’000

Current (not past due) BER (R ER) - 2,056,246 -
Within 1 year past due BH—F R 5% 81,128 4,056
More than 1 year past due BAR—F LA 100.00% 2,832 2,832

2,140,206 6,888
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
agencies. Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these counterparties. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for pledged bank deposits and bank
balances by reference to information relating to probability
of default and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external credit rating agencies.
Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances is considered to be
insignificant.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits excluding prepayment,
the management makes periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The management
believes that there is no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed
the ECL for other receivables and deposits are insignificant
and thus no loss allowance is recognised.
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5. EXEREMERMEEBZRK 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

BUR

(b)

(%)

BREBREEBREREEK(E) (b)
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AEENAEER

PRLE-E

A EB1E BRER
Internal credit
rating

Low risk

B2 B
Watch list
BEREEH

Doubtful

Loss
&8

Write-off

i 35

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

B ARG B 1S The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:
Hit &Rl
it B 5 EWRR &E HftEAR
Other financial
Description Trade receivables assets/other items
The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
default and does not have any not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
REEFEHNRARK  BXEEH FERBEHEEEE 2B AR EAE B B 18
8 HA IR — BEERE
Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL

dates but usually settle in full

BBAZRANBHAKERE B8

not credit-impaired

FERNEHREEER 12{A AEREEER

BERENE — EEERE
There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
in credit risk since initial recognition  not credit-impaired not credit-impaired

through information developed
internally or external resources

BEBAEF ﬁ&%%Xﬁmﬁﬂ

FERNEHREEER FEMBEREEER

BN ERAREERREREE —BEERE — BEERE

pll
There is evidence indicating Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

the asset is credit-impaired not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
EEBRTEECEERE FEREBEEER FEBEBEEER

— EEERE — EEERIE

There is evidence indicating that the ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial

difficulty and the Group has no

realistic prospect of recovery

BEBATNMEAENRENHIA SECME Gk A i

% i 7 5% 1 48 IR ) W (Bl SRR
M A 2
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5. EXEREMKEEMEEBZRK 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

R ) objectives and policies (continued)
(b) MEEKEEESERBEEE) (b) Financial risk management objectives and Policies

(Continued)

B E 2 B Liquidity risk

FEERDESRRE  AEBEEE In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors

WHBEEERRETUNENAEEE and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

BRERRERSREEBDFENR adequate by management to finance the Group's

S RERRESBEKF - operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

EREEEEENGRIBER - 742023 Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings. As at

F12R31H  AEERFAMET 31 December 2023, the Group had available undrawn

BEEBE A ARE1,597,000,0007T borrowing facilities of RMB1,597,000,000 (2022:

(2022 F : AR¥1,157,000,0007T) ° RMB1,157,000,000).

ARE  RUBE

i 318 g1 RERE  12B31H
5= 18AR i 2 E5% a8 MEEE
Carrying

Weighted Total  amount at
average lessthan  1-3months 3 monthsto  Over 1year undiscounted 31 December

interest rate 1 month Over Tyear  to5years cash flows 2023

AR®TR  AR®TR  ARBTR ARBTR  AR®TR  ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB000

2023512318 31 December 2023
BHREMBERAFE  Trade and other payables - 1995183 697,143 1,294,906 109670 4,096,094 4,096,902
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5.

EXEREUTERKBREREBEZR 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

(b)

(9]

R objectives and policies (continued)
HHRAKREEEERBER (£) (b) Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)
B E R (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)

202%12A318 31 December 2022

BAREMEMNFE  Trade and other payables - 2526436 814263 1,332,990 55859 4719389 4729548
SRMIAENATETE (c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
HERMBHREESN  AEEXH S ® Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured
TERATVEE - at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

LT ATER  REEFERAEM In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market
BUBERHEE RE=ZEBETAEX observable data to the extent it is available. For
TR BRPGABENITAMS - Al instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
EEEBE- AR MEMETTH level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
B TREHEANAEEZS SR/ perform the valuation. The following table gives
BEMNRFENER - information about how the fair values of these financial

assets are determined.
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5.
i 4C )

(9]

EMIANQVEAER(E)

objectives and policies (Continued)

(9]

(Continued)

EXEREUTERKBREREBEZR 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

BRATEHARMBZE ESui] ¥Em 2B WARE-HEBRLREANR BER SLERAANEECEERETNES BERA/NETHER
WEMBATE BRAIA— RBRAIE— EERRERBARNEREES AR/ METHERRA N T68%Z2985%  RAZHZHERAM
44,447 67,835 LBEAREERENTE (2022 : 7% £10.15%) METHHRGE A

BEmERREMETNRE LEEREREL
HEMETORAERERRELBASHEE
T B20% (20225  20%)

TEER  RZHHR -

Equity instrumentsat ~ Unlisted equity ~ Unlisted equity ~ Level 3 Income approach — discounted cash  Discount rate, taking into account the cost of equity  The lower the COEWACC
FvT0C! instruments = instruments — flow method was used to capture  (COE)Aweighted average cost of capital (WACC) or discount for lack of
44,447 67,835 the present value of the expected ~ determined using a Capital Asset Pricing Model, marketability, the higher
future economic benefits to be ranging from 6.8% t0 9.85% (2022: 7% t0 10.15%).  the fair value, and vice
derived from the ownership of Versa.
this investee, based on an Discount for lack of marketability, determined by a
appropriate discount rate. number of research studies including restricted stock
studies by an independent valuer, of 20% (2022:
20%).
¥Em ¥rm EZE  THEIE—ERRAEENAR AR LARNEERSHE fBRSERES AT
REIE— RAIA— BUm T RENRSEH BEE R2HA A
58,727 85,014 RrmERRtHETOSR FERAEABY  RIZTSTAEMME
EEBEMHRNIMRERRSSAREHRE BE ATPEES R
T A20% (20221 20%) © TR
Unlisted equity ~ Unlisted equity ~ Level 3 Market approach — based on Recent transaction price of the comparable public ~ The higher the recent
instruments —  instruments — trading multiples derived from companies transaction price, the
58,727 85,014 publicly traded companies that are higher the fair value and
similar o the subject company. ~ Discount for lack of marketability, determined by a vice versa. The lower the
number of research studies including restricted discount for lack of
stock studies by an independent valuer, of 20% marketability, the higher
(2022: 20%). the fair value, and vice
versa.
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5. EXAEBEMKEKBEEBEZR 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

i 4C )

(0 EWMIANDTVEAEE)

EZELFEFEHE

objectives and policies (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

7202241818 At 1 January 2022 37,669 390,579
BEIE - Total losses:
—REMEEYRE — in other comprehensive income - (5,830)
— 8% — in profit or loss (37,669) -
BE Purchases - 6,500
REFIE Refund - (238,400)
R2022F12A31B X At 31 December 2022 and - 152,849
20231 H1H 1 January 2023
BEIE - Total losses:
—REMEEWE — in other comprehensive income - (15,449)
—RE&E — in profit or loss - -
& Disposals - (10,671)
BE Purchases - 15,648
RIERIA Refund - (39,203)

M2023412 A31H

At 31 December 2023

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2023

- 103,174

197




rE MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. WEmRkoIWEH 6.
M HE R R T O 2 B R 3

Revenue and segment information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.

6.1 Revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

2023 F 2022 4
2023 2022
ARET T BN
RMB’000 RMB’000
EmmREES Types of goods or service
HEETERD Sales of chemical product
=D FME Polymers 4,552,407 6,487,010
RS H Refrigerants 2,871,580 4,361,050
B HnE Organic silicon 4,862,426 6,648,326
ZE B PVC MR Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali 1,176,824 1,624,811
13,463,237 19,121,197
H 275 Other operations 1,030,086 906,791
4EER Total 14,493,323 20,027,988
WHETLEmR Sale of chemical products

HEEM 2 W (EHRIEER A
HEERE) NERFPRAEEYH
BEHERAOSTREIER — %
BREVERNERPMEFPCEMEY
ABFRE ©

Revenue (net of value added tax or other sales taxes) from
the sale of goods are recognised at a particular point in
time when customers have control of the promised goods,
which is generally the time when goods are delivered to
customers and customers have accepted the goods.
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6. u&:ﬁ DEERE 2
6.2 X WAk

REBEBHIEERMEREID - [
ARRESE (ABEEREAN) ([4
EIERBADREUEE RSB XS
HERRTAENERNEZERRMER
EWEAZS o W AREB 2 EEE

A
IS
=¥

A

ﬂ

— SR -pPvCRER: X

|
5 &

¥ — AERHERRH
%B | FME S - B
%E&—ﬂﬂﬂﬁ PVC K B2
BlER MERZELES

ﬁu“ a/ 5;\

BEY &
Ao

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.2

Operating Segments

The Group’s operations are organized based on the
different types of products. Information reported to the
board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of products and property
development. This is the basis upon which the Group is
organized.

The Group's operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

—  Polymers;

—  Refrigerants;

—  Organic silicon;

—  Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali; and

—  Other operations — manufacturing and sales of
side-products of refrigerants segment, polymers
segment, organic silicon segment and

dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali segment,
property development and rental income.
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HZE2023F 12 A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. WERDHEER 2

6.2 REDI(E)

REBRERIKLE

BEDITIAT

P2 VaN

7 HB EY s B 3

HBZE2023F 12831 BLLEE

External sales
Inter-seqment sales

Total revenue — segment revenue

AREE SEGMENT RESULTS

RARGER Unallocated corporate expenses

HECRAERAEL BB Losses arising from the disposal of
financial asset investments

EEBELR 254 Share of results of associates

BERK Finance costs

Gl Profit hefore taxation

200 =E£EARAF —B-=F%%#

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.2

Polymers
ARBTR
RMB'000

4,552,407

4,552,407

336,766

Operating Segments (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

“ERK
HRH HHE PVCRER Afx% H 2%
Dichloromethane,
Organic PVCand Other
Refrigerants Silicon liquid alkali operations Eliminations Total
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

2,871,580 4,862,426 11176,824 1,030,086 = 14493323
2,608,866 - 29,559 1,182,517 (3,821,002) -

5,480,446 4,862,426 1,206,383 2,212,663 (3,821,002) 14,493,323

310,574 (330,512) 248,359 85,458 650,645

(20,109)
(10,671)

34,965
(1,659)

653,171
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HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. WERDHEER 2

REDE(E)

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)

BZE2022F12A31BLEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HiEE External sales 6,487,010 4,361,050 6,648,326 1,624,811 906,791 - 20,027,983
ABENEE Inter-segment sales - 3034179 - 13560 1,229,607 (4.277,346) -
Bhs— 5 hE Total revenue — segment revenue 6,487,010 7,395,229 6,648,326 1,638,371 2,136,398 (4,277 346) 20,027,988
EES SEGMENT RESULTS 1,989,578 1,021,356 463,465 460,302 32,627 - 3967328
RARLERT Unallocated corporate expenses (26,993)
EATEIABREREE Fair value changes on financal asset

ATEED atFVTPL (37,669)
RELE-FBENTINNE Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 1,212,290
PMEBENAIEE Share of results of associates 25,401
BERK finance costs (15,302)
BianER Profit hefore taxation 5,125,055

DERBREL EDERD LR
BRAVFEFABRSNEREEZ AT
EEH HEBERAREREER
BEzWas/ (BR) RBERKRZIER
T BO BRI EE o L Th A EER
RAZBMMEERD I R RBEFED
FAEEE -AREHMEERAEBEND
BMEMIWIFEMBLERRAZRIAE
BRABEMRBAFENIEE  SHALE

SHREER -

D ESRMHE NIRRT NISBERGRE

Segment results represent the results of each segment
without allocation of unallocated expenses, fair value
changes on financial asset at FVTPL, gain/(loss) on disposal
of associates & financial asset investment and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. No segment information on assets and
liabilities is presented as such information is not reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. WEKkoEER &) 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
63 EREREE 6.3 Entity-wide disclosures
BFHAFEZEEFEH Information about major customers
HE2023F K2022F12 A31HIEF There was no revenue from a single customer that
EMErEE —xXE IS EAER contributed over 10% of the total sales of the Group for
ESEEEAR) 10% A L o the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
A Geographical information
REFEREIKREE T WHIRE S H The Group's revenue from external customers by
ESEMT geographical location of customers is detailed below:
2023 F 2022 4F
2023 2022
AR T T EEUNEH::S
RMB’000 RMB’000
R (EEE) PRC (Country of domicile) 12,295,769 16,561,081
an M (BRAEISN) Asia (except PRC)
— AKX — Japan 316,804 675,589
— — South Korea 341,065 521,284
—HE — India 166,990 177,941
— ¥ — Singapore 33,525 32,363
— &RH — Thailand 39,375 28,954
— PR & B R E — United Arab Emirates 173,348 182,963
— EEHR — Pakistan 48,637 60,333
— BRAE — Malaysia 42,112 69,441
— BEE — Kuwait 12,051 18,395
— DB R A — Saudi Arabia 543 605
— EERREE — Indonesia 26,783 30,168
— & — Israel 1,335 2,111
—JEEE — Philippines 13,852 5,422
— M — Vietnam 51,503 56,149
—THH — Turkey 69,535 124,565
— B NFLEY — Bangladesh 1,618 5,294
— R — Iraq = 5,663
— Hib B — Others countries 15,054 16,890
NET Subtotal 1,354,130 2,014,130

202 HE£EARAT —B-=FFR§



e M RREE

ee P

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. WRRDIHER (&)
63 WEEREHE(H)
HEEH ()

— %8
B

— 87

— FIRE
— BET
—EeE
— mEX
— ABER

America

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.3 Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

— United States of America
— Brazil

— Chile

— Argentina

— Mexico

— Panama

— Canada

— Other countries

2023 &
2023

ARBTR
RMB’000

212,715 599,880
109,761 136,900
289 2,358
255 4,158
10,301 15,764
3,293 3,202
4,859 6,184
20,459 7,187

Subtotal

361,932 775,633

2023 F
2023
AR%T T
RMB’000

146,221 212,462
16,216 19,419
6,291 31,659
84,799 121,943
38,320 39,966
4,584 19,413
87,548 99,870
7,341 17,158

- 18,935

128 7,755

B Europe
— BXRAH — ltaly
— EH — England
— AT — Russia
— = — Germany
— EE — France
— PRI — Spain
— e FIE — Belgium
—KE# — Poland
— 5 H — Finland
— EMEIR — Other countries
N Subtotal

391,448 588,580
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. WERDHESR 2
6.3 EREERFESE)
H B BHR ()

JEM Africa
— South Africa 18,087 21,724

— @3k
— &R
— EB#gE
— HMBER

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.3 Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

2023 F 2022 4F
2023 2022
INGLESA ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

9,592 5,589
51,686 45,639

— Other countries 373 4,446

INEF Subtotal

79,738 77,398

HBEKR, b

Other countries/regions 10,306 11,166

14,493,323 20,027,988

HE2023F12A8318H  "&E=EBS
95% (20224 : 95% ) KISERB & &
(M T ERELERIBEERIN LR
FE - EH - WEREINEREEZE
EIKERBDEENER -

204 mE£EARAT —B-=FFR§

Over 95% of the Group’s non-current assets other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets (2022: 95%)
are located in the PRC as at 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, no information about its non-current assets
by geographical location is presented.
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HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. WamkoEER ) 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
6.4 HftpIER 6.4 Other segment information
8RR
HHE PVCRER Rft%%
Dichloromethane,
Organic PVCand Other
Polymers Refrigerants Silicon Liquid alkali Operations
AE®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BF 2023
HASPERNEE: Amounts included in the measures of

segment profit or loss:

N HERRERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 305,021 315,320 332,709 111,052 121,778
FRESENE Depreciation of right-of-use-assets 3,653 5,297 5,648 1,206 4,890
BRAEER Amortisation of intangible assets 2828 1,550 60 335 2953
BHEUFA(HERD),/WE  (Reversal of impairment)impairment on

trade receivables 455 (1,736) (1,823 481
HERAERAE Research and development cost 399,532 206,845 8083
fAEE Wite-down of inventories 36,207 90314 433
LENZ HERREEAR Loss on disposals of property, plant and

equipment 11,671 39,744 3970
TERETHEBRRAR Amounts regularly provided to the CODM

TRHAAHBENEE but not included in the measure of

segment profit or loss:
HESREEREELNER Losses arising from the disposal of

financial asset investments 10,671 10,671
Eli-HBENAEE Share of resuls of an associate (34,965) (34,965)
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EERE

BV AEEH
BHRIGUERE/ (HERR)

TERAEAA
HAEE
HENE BERRESER

ERRETALERRAR
ERADBRENEE

BOVES\EE SHAR
LTERD
RatE-EREAANRE
Eih-BBENNRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. WERDZHER (&)
6.4 HitmmER (4)

202
Amounts included in the measures of
segment profit or loss:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use-assets
Impairment of goodwil
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impaiment/(reversal of impairment) on
trade receivables
Research and development cost
Write-down of inventories
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM
but not included in the measure of
segment profit or loss:

Fair value changes on finandial asset
atFvipL

(Gain on deemed disposal of an associate

Share of results of an associate

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.4 Other segment information (Continued)

192,463
4,499

12,670

1349
410462

6,167

272,883
11,150

1917
(14
409,501
123,940

8,165

255,684
4,993

184

142
312,476
48,581

94,102
1219

51
@
67,366

4151

5078

89,21
7,853
37,526
878

3198
50,730
5454

1823

37,669
(1,212,290
(25401)

904,313
29,714
31,526
16,220

4,628
1310,535
182,126

123

37,669
(1,212,290
(25401)
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HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

7. HttwARHEHMFEER 7. Other income and other net gains and
losses
2023 2022 6
2023 2022
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Habug A Other income
B 48 Bl (B RE () Government grants (Note (i) 124,522 55,520
WITFEIHAEBA Bank deposits interest income 89,509 80,255
H R S WA (BEFEG)) Other interest income (Note (ii)) 5,420 9,136
HAth Others 60,728 8,120
280,179 153,031
HigE s Other net gains and losses
HERTIEENEBE Loss on disposal of equity investments (10,671) -
ME R ZRFH Exchange difference, net (351) 75,975
(11,022) 75,975
269,157 229,006
B 5 Notes:

(i)

REE2023F 12 A31 BIEFE - AEBELRE
18 75 2% T 58 BUT 7 B A R 44,644,000 7t (2022
& AR18,584,0007T) ° BT #iBh £ ZHEA
SEMTEBI L EWERAAEEREHE
EMEY c AEBETFEERRBHEFSEE
B  BZERTRBER AU -

REZE2023F 12 A3 HILFE  AEEBRR
JiF W Bh A R 79,878,000 7T (20224 : AR
36,936,0007T) * HIEE W R E H E4RE B
KX -AKEARBEANEECEERNWE - K
BRBHEEGSBTMAL - ZE5WANGE WSk
RERDBABETERA - WEHREEEENGT
FRAFHNGAEBRRER

HZE2023F 12 A31BIEFE - 5 AEAMF UL
A A EWEEE S/ F S A R #5,420,000 T
(20224 + AERR#9,136,0007T) °

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
government grants of RMB44,644,000 (2022: RMB18,584,000) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Government grants mainly
represent the expenditure on research activities which are recognised as
expense in the period in which they are incurred by the Group. The Group
recognised these government grants as other income when there were no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
government grant of RMB79,878,000 (2022: RMB36,936,000), which was
released from deferred income to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The Group received subsidies from government in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for manufacturing of
chemical products. Such subsidies are classified as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and will be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets.

Included in other interest income was interests derived from bills receivable
of RMB5,420,000 (2022: RMB9,136,000) for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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HZE2023F 12 A31HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

8. mERAK 8. Finance costs
2023 2022 F
2023 2022
ARET T BN S
RMB’000 RMB'000
ME Interests on:
BERAFAEIHEEZRITE Bank loans wholly repayable within five years 13,046
HEa®E Lease liabilities 2,256
& 5 Z R 55 Exchange difference, net 15,302
9. FBBMAX 9. Income tax expense
2023 F 2022 4
2023 2022
ARET T BN
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BIEATR IR - Current tax:
RERNEMESH ([DEMER])  PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")
— BERFEE — Current year 170,939 813,776
— BAFE (BERE), — (Oven/Under provision in prior years
BHETE (3,596) 4,528
T ER ([ I ER ) Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 40,645 10,126
207,988 828,430
EIEF IR Deferred tax
— R Ef B A G2 IRER — Withholding tax for distributable profits
IR of PRC subsidiaries (148,000) 91,543
— HAtb — Others (17,902) 28,965
(165,902) 120,508
FriSfif X Income tax expense 42,086 948,938

RIS HESBIEARRE R B H
BARMERD A EETRRMER 1B
BRBECEMESRE(REMBEE]D &
TEMEFREERIES  PEKBRAN
& B25% (20224 : 25%)  MHEH TER
B RNt EEENFREWBAR T
ZHEH25%HE 15% W ER BRI

208 HE£EARAF —B-=FFR§

Tax charge mainly consists of income tax in the PRC attributable
to the assessable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2022:
25%), except for certain PRC subsidiaries being awarded the
Advanced-Technology Enterprise Certificate and entitled for a
tax reduction from 25% to 15%.
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HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

gy EE )

ARRREFEEMARIZOME QB ARE
MERMEF AT CEREEERNE?2
BEBEITHNEHE8.25% R X - H#iB2
BEBITA D KRN K12 16.5% TR E -
& ST R AR B B0 5 B B B A ek A
HEBIZ16.5% K& —BLR B o

REFSHESEWHRANESR  ~&EE
FERFAESBEEHNERMER -

HtrrEREL 2 AR ARRAER
BRITHEE -

Income tax expense (Continued)

The Company'’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong is under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET T NS
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 50 A ) Profit before taxation 653,171 5,125,055
LA (25%) (D 2EFTSFFE R+ E K Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate of
B H (ffEta) (25%) (Note a) 163,293 1,281,263
HEERETENMEHROTE  Effect of income taxed on concessionary rate (36,384) (331,930)
AR AT IE & Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose (7,661) (5,280)
AR IESE Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 78,939 3,266
IR S AT R MR R TE BT 18 1Y Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
MIAR & previously not recognised 1,694 -
BEFE (BEEEE), BETR  (Over)under provision in respect of
prior years (3,596) 4,528
R E R R D IRAFIN Deferred tax on distribution earnings of
BT IA (Fiztb) PRC subsidiaries (Note b) (148,000) 91,543
T b IBER (Bt c) LAT (Note c) 40,645 10,126
HAt Others (46,846) (104,578)
REFHRIARX Tax expense for the year 42,086 948,938
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HZE2023F 12 A31HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

9. 8

MisE

(a)

BEX#)

B5%EACEMSRBXEARRATEMNEAR
AILRREAEMHERAR (RERE]D R
WRREMABEXAERAB ([BAEXE] P
BOEMSHRRE - ILREEHAMTHERA
A(EEHAD WRRESHIFHHRERA
ARERDFD RIURREFBENHRG
ERAR ([REARED WAEHBER
15%  JIEAHBIE S RMEEER -

R 95 B I K B R A A% 48 R B A B HH B B [2008]
FHF PEERE2008F1 A1 ARAE
ER AR D IREARE - BREBGINEGIRE D EM
SN ERTIEFUR) B3R 27T IEA R GONFIRE
TEMINEDERBHEE AR E KM
TEBMIERTEH o B A TR D IRAF AEL
TRiEEE, 8 E AR 148,000,000 7T (2022 4F :
AR#91,543,00070) B (5t A) /R FRIEL ©

TS ER R L EE FEIR30% 260%
B R BRI - BIY) 2 85 S TS FOE R AT HR
X BELHERARORAREMERES
ﬁo

BT IBF SN EE21

210 =E£EARAF —B-=F4%§

9.

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union Property
Co., Ltd (“Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of the
Company. The income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Co.,
Ltd. (“Huaxia Shenzhou"), Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Polymers”), and Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials
Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Organosilicon”) is 15% as it obtained the qualification
as a high and new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State Administration
of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, dividend distributed out of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall be subject to
EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law Concerning
Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of
the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income Tax Law for
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred tax
asset/liability of RMB148,000,000 (2022: RMB91,543,000) on the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been (credit)/charged to profit or
loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 21.
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HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

10. &FEimFl
FREFIE MR (GEA)

10. Profit for the year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2023 &
2023
AR¥T T
RMB’000

990,149

231,311
124,218

1,345,678

(@ BIMK (@)  Staff costs
(BEEEH:) (including directors’ emoluments):
I&ERF® Wages and salaries
B IETEAL Discretionary bonus =
RIRET B 3K Pension scheme contributions
Hih 8 T&F Other staff welfare
A8 TR Total staff costs
(b) EHMIEAE : (b)  Other items:

BRAESHE GIAHEERA)

Z R &
ME - WS RRETE

EREEENE
HEMR sk REEBE
BRATEARGZEREE
NEE
RAHE—MBE QR MRS

I8 166 Bh

H Al YRR B

B 5 MENFRRE

ME - Has RRERE

Mo & (Gt ASHERA)

Amortisation of intangible assets
(Included in cost of sales)

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Fair value changes on financial asset at
FVTPL -

Gain on deemed disposal of an associate -

Government grants (124,522)

Reversal on other receivables (1,754)

Reversal on trade and receivables (2,590)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment

Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales)

7,726
2,590

1,185,879
20,694

59,001

49,100

174,668

20224
2022
AR®ETT
RMB'000

1,528,692
15,629
213,755
122,327

1,880,403

16,220
2,566

904,313
29,714

21,233

37,669
(1,212,290)
(55,520)
28,368
4,628

182,126
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

M. EBERFETHAEHH 11. Director’s and chief executive’s emoluments
MEEREBITIA S EMEBT - The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief

executive were as follows:

2023 F 2023

RELEHEZ
ne e BEEA BUHBHRR ARG it EA AR
Pension Equity-settled
Discretionary Schemed  share-based Other
Fees Salary bonus  contributions payment benefits Total
ARMTT ARMTR AR%Tz ARBTR ARMTRT ARMTR AR%TzR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HTES Executive Directors

REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 16,276 22,420
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan _ 144
RERAE Mr. Zhang Jian = 144
REBEE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

THREE Mr. Wang Weildong

BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

TRBRE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

GRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

SEBEE Mr. Ma Zhizhong
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HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1. EERFTETHAEHFMHN @)

11. Director’s and chief executive's emoluments

(Continued)
2022 F 2022
BiEgE
e ¥e WA RKGEGRSE  ARGZE HitiEH X
Pension  Equity-settled
Discretionary Schemed  share-based Other
Fees Salary bonus  contributions payments benefits Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HTES Executive Directors
REREHE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 17,456 - - - 23,600
BERE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
REEXE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - - - 144
REBLE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 144 1,200 10,176 - - - 11,520
RUBRE Mr. Zhang Bishu
(7A2022%6 A21 Aifitt) (passed away on 21 June 2022)
72 - - - - - 72
THERE Mr. Wang Weildong 144 6,000 17,456 - - - 23,600
BUKHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREXE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 429 - - - - - 429
BRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 204 - - - - - 204
SEREE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 120 - - - - - 120
1,545 13,200 45,088 - - - 59,833

EZQIREFERAL  TAARAITR
mE - EXHEENFHEREEERITR
B HERB O FE -

LRATEFHNMES IR EEEEARA
RASEEHAE®RZREMEE - £t
BYFATESOMES IRRFIERES
Prifit c R METE °

FR AEETEREEFRAETSHA
TR ARBEEINBEREE S EAM
AREBEN RS BB EE - HETRE
HA A A EFHERE2023F k2022F
12A31BIEFENEAME -

MiaE - BRISEADREBEENEARAMETE

Mr. Zhang Jianhong, the Chairman of the board of the
directors, is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. His
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. Neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the
directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance of
the directors.
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12. AEBREHEES 12. Five highest paid employees
FA AEBRREGZeH EEREREE The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
FQRF:NEESR) r HBeFBER included four directors (2022: four directors), details of whose
LM c REEHT —5 (2022 F - remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
—RB)IARRBEZTXAFETRABZER remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2022: one)
FEENHFMFBOT highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

2023 &
2023

AR®T R
RMB’000

TERF® Wages and salaries 9,979

I IFIEAT Discretionary bonus

RIRET IR Pension scheme contributions

MR 4 E 2 ARR 19 3K Equity-settled share-based payment
FARAEENERTEEAENMEN The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
FATEE : directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

8,500,001/ 7T, % 9,000,000 % 7T HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000
9,500,001 7L % 10,000,000 7 HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000
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HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

13. BREF

ARARFEAANEBEBRERREERF )
BT IBERE

ARRHEE ANEEFRER
AR ESREARRETRT

13. Earnings per share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the
following data:

2023 &
2023

AR T
RMB’000

Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company, used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculations 707,793

3,855,539

SRR EAREFINF H
gk Bk o

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

2,197,479 2,234,416

HE2023F12A31BHIEFE  ERIEE
TEERR M=t 2185 B 33,923,000 % (2022 £ -
25,974,000 f%) Ei@A% o

Br B TREMRAESTEISN - A QR R E Z=2023
AR FRED (20224 ¢ 1,051,000 &) -

HE2023F K2022F12A31HIEFEDN
REREARBERNM S /L @A ME
FHE T EMBARE AETEE KRG
#“BH -

B ZE2023F K2022F12A31HIEFEE -
AR A WA A R B AT AE SN B TE AR o
HE2023F K2022F12A31HIEFEDN
SR SRS HESRERKIER -

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 33,923,000 (2022:
25,974,000) ordinary shares were purchased under the
employee option scheme.

Other than the employee option scheme, the Company did not
repurchase nor cancel any shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 1,051,000).

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 has been arrived at after
deducting the shares held in trust for the Company.

The Company did not have any potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022. Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are the same as the basic earnings
per share.
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14. RE

2023 F BRI B ¢
2022 FRHEBRR B F A% 0.60/8 7T
(2022 4 : 2021 EREAR B
%0347 L)

Dividends paid during the year 2023:
2022 final dividend of HK$0.60
(2022: 2021 final dividend of
HK$0.34 per share)

14. Dividends

2023 &
2023

ARBT R
RMB’000

1,196,613 625,229

WMEMARE  BREE2023F12A83181F
FE EZELEFFTIR173,271,16478 T
(20224 :1,352,213,00058 7T) (FE R A
R # 155,608,768 70 (20224 : AR ¥
1,196,613,0007T)) &A% 0.10% 7T (2022
F:ZRR0.60EIT) Z RS  HEANE
[ERE ARG R R ER A ER -

216 HE£EARAF —B-=FFR§

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
HK$0.10 per share (2022: HK$0.60 per share), amounting to
HK$173,271,164 (2022: HK$1,352,213,000) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2023, equivalent to RMB155,608,768
(2022: RMB1,196,613,000) has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming general meeting.
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15. Y% -  HWBRRME

15. Property, plant and equipment

BF BERRE AE  BIAREE HEIR ok
Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles and fittings  in progress Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R COsT

®2022%5 1718 At 1 January 2022 2,959,307 7,452,293 56,592 1,083,707 3,275,884 14,827,783
NE Additions 416,861 579,090 7,243 117,655 2,784,225 3,905,074
5 Transfer 1,256,714 2,913,584 - 1,034,295 (5,201,928) 2,665
WEHB AT Acquisition of subsidiaries 178,103 350,963 3,633 13,527 17,717 563,943
HE Disposals (34,185) (440,351) (4,836) (57,888) - (537,260)

R2022F 128318 K At 31 December 2022 and
2023F1 7318 1 January 2023 4,776,800 10,855,579 62,632 2,191,296 875,898 18,762,205
NE Additions 234,675 629,971 5,315 66,301 1,150,616 2,086,878
ELE Transfer 269,442 321,723 - 141,039 (732,204) -
HE—HME AR Disposal of a subsidiary (159,435) (9,146) - (10,683) - (179,264)
& Disposals (116,656) (289,216) (2,844) (38,871) - (447,587)

72023412 4318 At 31 December 2023 5,004,826 11,508,911 65103 2,349,082 1,294,310 20,222,232
RAMERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT

720221818 At 1 January 2022 1,003684 4,717,608 36,672 771,750 - 6,529,714
AEERT Charge for the year 168,908 528,924 6,515 199,966 - 904,313
e 11N Acquisition of subsidiaries 48,820 193,431 1,519 8,063 - 251,833
B 8 Eliminated on disposals (21,341) (398,927) (4,129) (39,801) - (455,198)
R202025 1283181 At 31 December 2022 and

202341818 1 January 2023 1,200,071 5,050,036 40,577 939,978 - 7,230,662
AEERY Charge for the year 222,366 729,549 6,343 227,621 - 1,185,879
FERE Impairment for the year - 49,100 - - - 49,100
HE—HHBAR Disposal of a subsidiary (64,990) (8,485) - (5,749) - (79,224)
HEREH Eliminated on disposals (57,725) (227,046) (2,683) (69,876) - (357,330)

2023612 A31H

At 31 December 2023

REE
®2023%12A318

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2023

20224612 A31H

At 31 December 2022

1,299,722

3,705,104

3,576,729

5,593,154

5,915,757

5,805,543

44,237

20,866

22,055

1,091,974

1,257,108

1,251,318

1,294,310

875,898

8,029,087

12,193,145

11,531,543
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15. Y03 - BRZJE ) 15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

R2023F12A318 REEWNETEF
MANEBESEREZ EFREEAARE

166,588,000 (20225 F : AR

283,057,0007T) ©

ME HEMREBEBESER NI
A A F IR AR RIS EER BT E

25 20F Sk ER (AR & R 4E)

RN ERE 5-104F
RE 54
RILREE 57

BFURFE L ERRIEPEERSS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had not obtained the
building ownership certificates for certain buildings with
carrying values of RMB166,588,000 (2022: RMB283,057,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their

residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings

Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease

medium-term lease.

5-10 years
5 years
5 years

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under

16. EAEEE 16. Right-of-use assets
HEL HEWE 4z
Leasehold Leased

lands properties Total

ARETIT ARETIT ARETIT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 837,540 730 838,720
NE Additions 68,079 10,406 78,485
Ug BE B B A 3] Acquisition of subsidiaries 36,911 - 36,911
HE Disposals (7) (782) (789)
WEEZHA Depreciation charge (25,542) (4,172) (29,714)

MR2022F 12 A31B X At 31 December 2022 and

20231 A1H 1 January 2023 916,981 6,182 923,163
NE Additions 1,351 3,491 4,842
HeE Disposals (33,271) (7,410) (40,681)
TEER Depreciation charge (19,574) (1,120) (20,694)
2023412 A31H At 31 December 2023 865,487 1,143 866,630

218 HES£EARAT —B-=FFR§



E MR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

16. FRAEEE )

16. Right-of-use assets (Continued)

HELEHMURPBEAMLBEAR B
FRFk R T AU ERIS B9 B L 6 R A A
MEIXERMTHERRESOER LI
B -

BELHEREAMHEEBIEE HE
202312 A31H » AEBEHAREE TR
HEABARBEZIIL (2022F : AR
7,919,0007T) MBI B HE T M EBEE -

HZE2023F12A31MBLtEE -HERS
T AasE A AR 16,427,000 7T (2022 4F ¢
AR 85,269,0007T) ©

RREFEFEMSs  AEBRLEHEZ A
MAZE -HEAHNFINECHRA =
SFEQONRFE:—FE=F) -HEKHIR
BRERERRE - WE TR AERRAGHT -
ERTHEHLFHTAIHESEMORE
B AEEEAAANTETETAON
AT T HAPR ©

AEEBREHEEHELHONTMERTA R
WiEZEY g —EFBECRLES -
EEXMOFKAEARTESENBTRLT
ZEEBYMFENHEE LD TS EEIHR -

The leased land is all within the territory of mainland China,
including State-owned land use rights acquired by concession or
transfer and collective land use rights temporarily leased from
industrial parks and villages.

Ownership certificates are available for State-owned land use
rights. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had not obtained
ownership certificates for certain state-owned leasehold lands
with a carrying value of RMB nil (2022: RMB7,919,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total cash outflows
for leases was RMB 16,427,000 (2022: RMB85,269,000).

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
between 1-3 years (2022: 1-3 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group is the registered owner of the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.
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17. REEE AT ESR

17.

Interest in associates

2023 F 2022 4

2023 2022

ARET T BN S

RMB’000 RMB’'000

m1H1H At 1 January 88,034 198,321

JE(RE L N T 2 ELE Share of results of associates 34,965 25,401
ARE B UER 2 % B Dividend received by the Group (6,715) (7,633)
i Acquisition 352,846 -
e Disposal = (128,055)
®12A318 At 31 December 469,130 88,034
TEEE%JCWEK N 3( ERIFLME The following list contains only the particulars of material

XER QWUEAFEMSE f"i)Z A

associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose
quoted market price is not available:

EREB EBERER RIBER TEEENY  FEROER AEERENEMER TEEH
Form of
business Country of Principal place  Class of Registered capital held
Name of entity structure establishment of operation  share held by the Group Principal activity
2023% 20224
2023 2022
EBRBLEERE AREfRRE  PHE RE A ER 51.00% - HERHB
BRAA
Zibo Xiaoshuo enterprise  Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered Commerdial
management limited company capital service
company
KEBRECEXEEERALAT Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise Management Co., LTD.
M2022F 1288  AEBHEEREEE On 8 December 2022, the Group and Qilu Asset Management

BOEE)ARA T/\éﬁijﬁéﬁﬂnﬁﬁ ES

EEEEKE’AT(F/“T@E**EEJ) EMERA
ARBI1BAET ARERBEESARE

450,000 7T * # & 45%
B BmR

P 2022412 A20
o ARBK60,000T #FAE

EIBBERE X EE AR A RIAI51% B

A20234[F - 184 352,846,0007T A
TEBEECEETIE AR AAIA51% KR -

mRASERAAEE

N LRz ]

i%’*&ﬂx%f‘ﬁ& BW—BEES—HBE

NCIPNG

220 =E£EARAT —B-=FF%§

(Zibo) Co., Ltd. jointly established Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise
Management Co., LTD. (Zibo Xiaoshuo), with a registered
capital of RMB1 million. The Group’s subscription amount is
RMB450,000, holding 45%. On 20 December 2022, with an
additional subscription amount of RMB60,000, it holds 51% of
the equity of Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise Management Co., LTD.

In 2023, with capital increase by RMB352,846,000, it still holds
51% of the equity of Zibo Xiaoshuo Enterprise Management
Co., LTD.

Due to the provisions of the articles of association, the Group
cannot control the level of the board of directors and
shareholders, so it is accounted for as an associate.
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17. REFE QRN ER (9 17. Interest in associates (Continued)
HEBECEXEEERAR (&) Zibo Xiaoshuo enterprise management limited company
(Continued)
BEARRAER ERNZEREMBWmE The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these
ABR o IR B BR B 75 R 5 22 B 4R R Y BF 7 consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
BRI EERIIMT - information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with
IFRSs.

2023 &
2023
ARET T
RMB’000

MENE E Current assets 342,508
EmEEE Non-current assets 738,020
mENBE Current liabilities 1,042,001
ERBEE Non-current liabilities 30,280
BEFE Net assets 8,247
Wz Revenue 226,715
H R A Profit for the period 8,238
ZEW AT Total comprehensive income 8,238
FREE 15K - Reconciliation to carrying amount:
EEFAE Net assets
REERMEFIIFRBEER Group's ownership interest in weighted average
REEREE A REZNREME Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in the associate
BRIzt EI T E KB E AR E R EA : Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:
2023 F 2022 F
2023 2022
AR T T BEUNE:S
RMB’000 RMB’000
& E'J* BV RERNMEEAFR  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
A BmERREELMN immaterial associates in the consolidated
financial statements 112,082 88,304
EEELMZEBEATIMNMEELE  Aggregate amounts of the group’s share of
those associates
- FREREER R — Profit from continuing operations 30,349
-ERIEEEEBELEMNTIRIE  — Post-tax profit or loss from
= discontinued operations -
- Hiv2mE s — Other comprehensive income -
- 2HENEERE — Total comprehensive income 30,349
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18 BREEE

18. Intangible assets

HEHM w0 e
Proprietary
technologies Software Total
ARETT AR®BTRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR CoST
M202261A1H At 1 January 2022 134,883 29,034 163,917
NE Additions 3,500 5,178 8,678
HE Disposal - - -
R2022F12A318 K& At 31 December 2022 and
2023F1H18 1 January 2023 138,383 34,212 172,595
NE Additions 198 1,071 1,269
HE Disposal (4,956) (2,316) (7,272)

2023%F12 A31H

At 31 December 2023

133,625

32,967

166,592

BERAE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
M2022F 1818 At 1 January 2022 115,216 17,344 132,560
AEERY Charge for the year 11,321 4,899 16,220
B Impairment - - -
& — BT A A B K 85 Eliminated on disposal of
a subsidiary - - -

R2022F12 A31 8 K At 31 December 2022 and

20231818 1 January 2023 126,537 22,243 148,780
NEFRZ Charge for the year 2,882 4,844 7,726
S B 8 Eliminated on disposals (4,956) (2,303) (7,259)

72023%F12 A31H

At 31 December 2023

REE
2023%F12 A31H

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2023

2022912 A31H

At 31 December 2022

124,463

11,846

24,785

11,969

149,248

23,815

22 HEEEARAT —B-=F£R§



E MR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F 12 A31AILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

18.

19.

BEEE®)
AEEFEBETEELNRNE-TEE -

EERMEEREFFFAELEGRAAE
RFEH - WIREHREDRINSFE10F &3
FESFHH -

EERM
R EK  REBBATAREEN

WA FE26 T ER - B E20234F 12 A 31
HIEFE  AEEeRE S AR 75,725,000
7T M A R # 68,134,000 7T € K # 4R 17 17 3K
EEEE SRlEAENRERKREBTEE
MEZIES o

HZE202F12831HILLFE  AEEEH
A AR ¥ 43,343,000 7T &2 A R ¥ 87,959,000
EHERRTERSERR  2REREN
EBENKREBBEME IR -

18.

19.

Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group’s intangible assets were acquired from third
parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
5 to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

Pledge of assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
pledge of assets:

As described in notes 26, the Group’s pledged bank deposits
amounting to RMB75,725,000 and RMB68,134,000 have been
pledged to secure the bills payable and deposits from presale of
properties, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits amounting to
RMB43,343,000 and RMB87,959,000 have been pledged to
secure the bills payable and deposits from presale of properties
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022.

223
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20. BAFEFAEMEZEKEZR 20. Equity instruments at fair value through

KT H other comprehensive income
2023 F 2022 4
2023 2022
Bt 5 AR Tt NS
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
FLETRAES - Unlisted equity securities,
RAFEHR at fair value
PRERAERERMDAERZAF  China MinSheng Investment Co., Ltd
(rPR®D ("cmiIc") () 10,671
REBEBERBRAA Taihe Asset Management Co. Ltd.
(I&&1) ("Taihe") (b) 44,447 57,163

BEERKREABEE
(BRA%) (IBmEE])

HeAaB X (ARAR)
(DEEBEE]

Hainan Guiji Investment Partnership
(limited partnership) (“Hainan Guji”) (©) 2,958 32,321
ST B EREH MBI E Zibo Runxin Dongyue New Material
Equity Investment Fund Partnership
(limited partnership) (“Zibo Runxin”) (d) 55,769 52,694

103,174 152,849

FliIEFTRATERAEERE TRF
BRI AEBOEE - AAREFRE
BRERERERERBAFEFAE LR
AREABEATE  DTEHRZFRERE
HISRES g mEs A o

MEEFLTRATARFER  A&E
ZEBUSEMGHEMETERMGLE - %2
BMORBEAAKRRERERAEHRE
METRERAIBEE YFBEAEER
ROBRMER HEREREX -BENE
REME  AEZEBINEBEITRERAIR
EEERYTSERNBERTIHIE
ERERNATELUN LT RRNR 5 E
2 MALEMB SRS

224 HEE£EARAT —B-=F£R§

The above unlisted equity instruments represent the Group’s
equity interest in several private entities established in the PRC.
The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI as they are held for
long-term strategic purposes.

In determining the fair value of unlisted equity instruments, the
Group engages an independent professional valuer to perform
such valuation. The amount is determined based on the cash
flow projection for the estimated future cash flow discounted to
its present value and requires the use of key assumptions,
including the discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted
revenue and gross margin taking into account the relevant
industry growth forecasts and financial budgets approved
management’s expectation for the market development and the
market approach, based on trading multiples derived from
publicly traded companies that are similar to the subject
company.
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20. EAFEFAHMEZEKFEZR
KT H#E

P 5T -

(a) FREAZEIEEEE  PEESRIENR
EhE FERERERENEEER -HE
2022F 12 A31 8 REERFREHIFR LG
52.8% °

AAREERA  WRAEEZENBLEEM
ERMFEE » 72 20224F 12 A31 HER AN EER +
REMEBELRFELHAR10,671,0007T » A
I BEREE202F12A31BILEEENEME
HE SR ERAFERBEARKE1,052,0007T °

HE2023F12A31BEFE  AEEEEER
BEHMFRRE28% KM WHE £2023F12A8
BMALEFENBESETPRALEBEERARE
10,671,000 7T °

b)) HFEA HMEPERIHLAEE -FAETEH
EEEEEURTHLREENSROETR
BEMEEREL AEEEAMEERHKT
Kb HiEfE AR A AR 10,000,000,000 7T
HAAEBHENTMELRAABARY
600,000,0007C ' & K FHHER4EFE6% B
£2023F12A310 XEBEEHMEELTEA
R #120,000,0007T (2022412 A318 : ARM
120,000,000 7T) °

HE2022F12A318  ARAEERAE WK
AEBZENE Y SEGEMTE  BRALE
REAEHHRELTFELHARBS7,163,0007T
(2021412 A31H : AK#70,531,0007T) ° &
I HE2022F 128310 BHERAFAFE
EiE 4 AR ¥ 62,837,0007C (2021412 A31 8 ¢
AR 49,469,0007T) °

HZE2023F12A31H  ARAEERE - UK
REBLZENBE L EGEMTME  AEERE
AMEEDNFEDH A ANREE 44,447,000 7T (2022
F12A318 : AR#57,163,0007T) @ W ERE
F2023F 12 A3 ALFENEMEEMASL R
RATEREH AR 12,716,0007T (2022 F -
AR #13,368,0007T) °

20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

CMIC, a private enterprise initiated by the All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce and approved by the State Council of the PRC, is principally
engaged in equity investment and assets management. As at 31 December
2022, the Group has an equity interest of 2.8% in CMIC.

The directors of the Company considered, and as assessed by the
independent professional valuer engaged by the Group, the fair value of
the Group's investment in CMIC of approximately RMB10,671,000 was
recognised as at 31 December 2022. Accordingly, a fair value loss of
RMB1,052,000 has recognised in other comprehensive expense for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposal of its 2.8%
equity interests in CMIC and recognised a loss of disposal of
RMB10,671,000 in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Taihe is a private entity established in the PRC. Taihe was principally
engaged in asset management and bulk transfer of non-performing assets
of financial enterprises in Shandong Province, the PRC. The Group and
other partners jointly established Taihe and the registered capital of Taihe
was RMB10,000,000,000, of which the register capital contributed by the
Group was RMB600,000,000, representing 6% of the total registered
capital of Taihe. As of 31 December 2023, the total capital contribution of
RMB120,000,000 has been paid by the Group (31 December 2022:
RMB120,000,000).

As of 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company considered, and
as assessed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group,
the fair value of the Group’s investment in Taihe of approximately
RMB57,163,000 was recognised (31 December 2021: RMB70,531,000).
Accordingly, as of 31 December 2022, the cumulative fair value loss of
approximately RMB62,837,000 (31 December 2021: RMB49,469,000) was
recognised.

As at 31 December 2023, the directors of the Company considered, and as
assessed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group,
the fair value of the Group's investment of Taihe was approximately
RMB44,447,000 (31 December 2022: RMB57,163,000) and a fair value
loss of approximately RMB12,716,000 (2022: RMB13,368,000) which had
been recognised in other comprehensive expense for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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20. RAFEFAHMEZERE 2R
ARIE#)

P 5T -

(]

(&)

BEEER—HRPEKINEREBEE &
ERBETRERA -

AEEBMEREREFEARE 278,500,000 7T
155 B HPEN89.73% - AR B EH I
ZK EEe 0PN TEHE.L:.%U@@&% il - A<

RRAIBERER  ARREEEGIZAR - RAF)
%%E:e%gﬁqut%xﬁ%amﬁ};?@Tr@ﬁ/\ﬁm
2EBENBRATE  HHRZSREBRER
BERBmMES -

HZE2022F 12831 HILEFE  AEEKEEE
& 73R 3 X8 A R #5 238,400,000 7T © FA It -
AEEBRSHEENRERLEARY
40,100,0007C ° B, = 20224612 A318 * AR 7
EERR WEANEBEZENBE L EEGERT
H REEEAENKREAFEAARE
32,321,000 * W EREZE2022612 A318 1
FENEMZERAITERAFESEBARE
7,779,000 7T °

HZE2023F12A31BILEFE - AEEKEE™E
& H 43R 8 FB A KR #39,203,0007T © EHitt - &
SERNEEEEMNEE R EARE 897,000 7T
HE2023F12A318  ARAIZEERA - UK
ANEBZENB L SEGEMTG  NERER
B E RN TEAARE29580007T @ I ERE
£2023F 12 A31 BIEFEHE b2 HE Uz i
RATEZE AREE 9,840,000 7T °

226 HEEEARAT —B-=FFH§

20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

Hainan Guji is a limited partnership established in the PRC, which is
focusing in the investments in industrial silicon companies.

The Group made capital contribution of RMB278,500,000 to Hainan Guiji,
representing 89.73% of equity interest of Hainan Guiji. As the Hainan Guji
was managed and controlled by a general partner which was not a
company controlled by the Company, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Company was not in a position to exercise control over this
company. The directors of the Company have elected to designate this
investment as equity instruments at FVTOCI as they are held for long-term
strategic purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received refund
from Hainan Guji of RMB238,400,000, accordingly, the Group’s
investment in Hainan Guji reduced to RMB40,100,000. As at 31 December
2022, the directors of the Company considered, and as assessed by the
independent professional valuer engaged by the Group, the fair value of
the investment in Hainan Huji was RMB32,321,000 with the loss in fair
value of RMB7,779,000 had been recognised in other comprehensive
expense for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received refund
from Hainan Guji of RMB39,203,000, accordingly, the Group's investment
in Hainan Guiji reduced to RMB897,000. As at 31 December 2023, the
directors of the Company considered, and as assessed by the independent
professional valuer engaged by the Group, the fair value of the investment
in Hainan Huji was RMB2,958,000 with the change in fair value of
RMB9,840,000 had been recognised in other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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20. BAFEFTAHEMBEEKEZR
RKIE#®)

M RE © (48)

()

EEBER—ERTREKINERERES  H
MIERENELT BHEE BV REER
ESE 3

M2021F1A12E  ARRIHMEHBRQRR
EREMEERERAR(RERERE]D R
WRREEREMBROAERAR ([RERE
M) BRI ECHREAZSEABEERE
ERAR(Ea£E)) KERRBEZERAD
A (SRS P EEREAEEBRAF
([FEREERDIL—HEEhE - RIEEE
HECESHNIOBRIELEARARE
500,000,0007T * BIEAREB ARERER -
REMM BB RSEERIIMESEE
AR % 125,000,0007C + A R # 75,000,000 7T *
AR 125,000,000 7T & A & # 75,000,000 7T -
UREBEBATFEEREAAESTIEAR
#100,000,0007C - E&FEBRIEABHED
B ER 31T ©

HZE2021F 128318 AEEREEBEELE
4% A R #60,000,0007C « 15 S EEERER
33.66% ° A B EE B IER D AT A A
VEBEBATEREH  AAREERAE A
NEVEEESIZ AT c RARERDIBRERILE
BREEAEBEATFTESAEMEEREMNRAL
B TVHRZEREARERERARMES -

HZ2022F 12831 HIEFE  AEEREEHE
5 — 4 FE AR 6,500,000 T © B Z 2022
F12A31B AEELEBRTFAARE
66,500,000 7T, * # A& L1714 36.44% ©

HZE2022F12A31H  ARAIEERAE WK
ANEBEZENE L EEGEMTG  REBRE
BHEENHREATELNARARKS2,694,0007T
WEREE2022F 12 AT ALFENEMEE
M PHERAF(EEEARY7,532,0007T

HZ2023F 12 A31HILFE - AEERETEHE
EEHERREHE AR 15,648,000 0% @ B
F20234F12A318 1L AEEREREAAR
#£82,148,000 7T * AR LL I 5 36.44% ©

HZE2023F12A31H  ARAEERAE WK
ANEBEZENE L EEGEMTG  REBRE
BHEENHTREATELARARKSS5769,0007T
WEREE2023F 12 A3 ALFENEMEE
FS R ERAFEEEHARE12,573,000T ¢

20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Zibo Runxin is a limited partnership fund established in the PRC, which is
expected to primarily invest in fluoro-chemical, organic silicon, membrane
materials and hydrogen-related industries.

On 12 January 2021, Dongyue Fluorosilicone Science and Technology
Group Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology”) and Shangdong
Dongyue Organosilicon Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Organosilicon”), both
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a partnership agreement with
Huantai Province Jinhai Kongyou Capital Operation Co., Ltd. (“Huantai
Jinhai”), Zibo Jugiang Trading Co., Ltd. (“Zibo Jugiang”) and China Capital
Management Co., Ltd. (“China Capital”) in relation to the establishment
of the fund. Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the initial capital
contribution to the fund was aggregately RMB500,000,000, comprising
RMB125,000,000, RMB75,000,000, RMB125,000,000 and
RMB75,000,000 to be contributed to the fund by Dongyue Fluorosilicone
Technology, Dongyue Organosilicon, Huantai Jinhai and Zibo Jugiang,
respectively, as limited partners, and RMB100,000,000 by China Capital as
the general partner. The capital contribution to the fund will be made in
stages in accordance with the partnership agreement.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group made a total capital contribution of
RMB60,000,000 to Zibo Runxin, representing 33.66% of equity interest of
Zibo Runxin. As the Zibo Runxin was managed and controlled by a general
partner which was not a company controlled by the Company, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Company was not in a
position to exercise control over this company. The directors of the
Company have elected to designate this investment in equity instruments
at FVTOCI as they are held for long-term strategic purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made a further
capital contribution of RMB6,500,000 to Zibo RunXin, and as of 31
December 2022, the total capital contribution made by the Group was
RMB66,500,000, with a shareholding ratio of 36.44%.

As of 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company considered, and
as assessed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group,
the fair value of the investment in Zibo Runxin was approximately
RMB52,694,000 with fair value loss of RMB7,532,000 had been
recognised in other comprehensive expense for the year 31 December
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made
supplementary capital contribution of RMB15,648,000 to Zibo RunXin, and
as of 31 December 2023, the total capital contribution made by the Group
was RMB82,148,000, with a shareholding ratio of 36.44%.

As of 31 December 2023, the directors of the Company considered, and
as assessed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group,
the fair value of the investment in Zibo Runxin was approximately
RMB55,769,000, and a fair value loss of approximately RMB12,573,000
which had been recognised in other comprehensive expense for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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21. FEEFIE

AP REFERRERBZBRO T -

BEERIAE E
EERIE A E

Deferred tax assets 129,339 85,877
Deferred tax liabilities (129,481) (251,921)

21. Deferred taxation

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purpose:

2023 &
2023

ARBT T
RMB’000

(142) (166,044)

FRAEBRRNEIBELEHELE (BE)

RHEZEWT -

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon for the year:

R202F1818 At 1 January 2022 (70,899) (167,158) 61,766 29,633 (297) - (6,630) 108,668 (44,917)
BRREEMB Dividend withholding tax paid 30,000 - - - - - - - 30,000
HE/RE—FHBAF Disposaliacquisition of

a subsidiary - - - - - - (6,722) - (6,722)
HWIBE R (M) ZEA  (Charge) credit recognised

in profit or loss (91,543) (102,841) 49,495 1,307 297 - - (1,120) (144,405)
R2022512A318%  At31 December 2022 and

W3E1518 1 January 2023 (13244 (269999 111,261 30940 - - (13352 107548 (166,044)

ERREEDH Dividend withholding tax paid 175,000 - - - - - - - 175,000
TMEZHERR (MBR) AT A (Charge) credit recognised in

profit or loss (27,000) (17,593) (47,409) (11,632) 75,067 - 1,853 17,616 (9,098)

20235124318 At 31 December 2023
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22. B8
RA& CosT
R2022F1A1HR At 1 January 2022 and
2022912 831H 31 December 2022
#2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023

REZE2023F12A31HIEFE  AEE
EEERT IR HREMHERE (2022

XX

B lkE e hiREFEAEARR
BET -sfENREEEECHENTATF
By BEEMNETRSRE RFR X
11.88% (20224 - 11.84% ) 5 - AEH
AR S RERA3% (20224 : 3%) HY
B ERMER -2 ERDENERT
¥EREAN BTBBEBETENEAR
MR - FAHEETENEMEIERR
T (BREEEHEERENREAN) R
CREMHTER ZBRHADEREG K
¥MBARBEREBEEBHMISEENTEA -
EEEMAE ZEBRIULEGELENGE
REHITEEEBENE A R MIRA A
BB ERSEE -

22. Goodwill

W WiE i HHEFEKX
(ChR B B S0 Fob o)

Other

Acquisition immaterial

of Sunshine  Acquisition  Acquisition  acquisition

Silicon of Tangshan of Shenzhou  of business Total
THER FEL FET TER FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

159,519 52,952 84,540 2,013 299,024

159,519 52,952 84,540 2,013 299,024

During the year ended 31 December 2023, management of the
Group determines that there was no impairment of goodwill
(2022: nil).

Sunshine Silicon

The recoverable amounts of Sunshine Silicon have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount rate
of 11.88% (2022: 11.84%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2022: 3%) growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows
which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Sunshine Silicon and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of related subsidiaries to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.
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22,

BHE e
=

BLRAKESENREFEREETEE
TFostENREBEEEEC AN AT
BKHEEMNETRERE REEIR X8.24%
(20224 : 8.80% ) 151t - AF HILAE IR
SREHEA3% (20224 : 3% ) BT E
R - ZERRNENHEBTEERTE
Al BETHBBAEBEITENTHRIIERE -
FREBEFENEMFERERE (BIEE
HHEHELAEMNEREAN) B REMTAE
B ZBEFNDERELNBARBERE
HEHMSEEMNTELN - EEEBMRE &
EREAEHEAELENETREH T EE
BB ARMETAER G KE 2

B2 FHEDE

EE @AM IE SR REEREE
BET MENREEEECHENTESE
By BEEMNEFRAeRE RBHIR X
13.82% (2022 4F : 15%) 5 - AFEIA1E
B & M EIRA 3% (202245 : 3%) MIEE
R R - R R R ERNERT ¥
KRR B THBABBEITENFHREAE
EER - FHEBMAENEMFEZREL M
(BRBEHEELAETNXREAN) B R
BEFTEB ZEMADNIEREESSDN
BEXRRLKEREBYMBEEMNEA - &
BREHEE ZSBREIAVEAELENTM
EHHYTSERNEEMANETOAERA
Hujlg el 458 -
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22. Goodwill (continued)

Tangshan

The recoverable amounts of Tangshan have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
8.24% (2022: 8.80%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2022: 3%) growth rate.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows
which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Tangshan and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of related subsidiaries to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

Polymers segment

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been
determined based on value in use calculation. This calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount rate
of 13.82% (2022: 15%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2022: 3%) growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows
which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Huaxia Shenzhou
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.
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23. BE 23. Inventories

2023 F
2023

AR TR
RMB’000

[RH R K E FE G Raw materials and consumables 739,983 902,166
E&m Work in progress - 5,935
IR Finished goods 806,424 533,611

1,546,407 1,441,712

24. EHERBRZME 24. Properties for sale

2023 F
2023
AR® T
RMB’000

TEREMEBLRE - Properties under development comprise:
—ERTFEME — Completed properties for sale 892,667 577,323
—BEERE BERHFEWE  — Properties held for/under development

for sale 24,649 323,681
—BERENMEEEZHE LM — Leasehold land held for

development for sale 301,337

917,316 1,202,341
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24. FHERBZWE ) 24. Properties for sale (Continued)
FEVMEME Summary of properties for sale:
NEER
EH ik TRIER e k3 BER(FHK) Adlt
Expected % interest
Project Address Stage of completion  completion Usage Gross Area (m?) in property
2W0E
2022
REIRAERL—F— WREEETEAGNRILE 100% B5%EM BIE - BABH B (40,688 7K : A% 100%
ZZREEES BRIGM Fﬁ(11973¥ﬁ¥)?‘7¥
(18487 %) REESS
(143455 75%)
Dongyue Engineering R&D  Liuguan North Road, 100% Completed Hotel, Office premises,  Hotel (40,688 m?); Office 100%
Center — Phase |, Il, &1V Huantai County, Zibo City, Office premises premises (11,973 m?);
Shandong Province Commercial (1, 848 m?) and
car parks (14,345 m?)
RETRAERL—E-8 WREEETEAGNRILE 100% B5%EM ffe mEkEES GEE05436FHK)  BE 100%
(9,658 F 155k RiFE 15
(28,442 F 75 K)
Dongyue Engineering R&D  Liuquan North Road, 100% Completed Residential, Commercial Residential (15,436 m?), 100%
Center — Phase Huantai County, Zibo City, and car parks Commercial (9,658 m?) and
Shandong Province car parks (28,442 m?)
BHmERR W3R & SRR It B 100% B e mEREES EE4899TAK)  BE 100%
58 (55137 K) REES
(9,870 )
Shengyayuan Community, ~ North of Hanhuai Street and 100% Completed Residential, Commercial Residential (148,949 m?), 100%
Yucheng City south of Sugar City Square and car parks Commercial (5,513 m?) and
in Yucheng City, Shandong car parks (9,870 m?)
Province
ERRE WREEERERLRBETE 100% B T BEREES EE(0726FFK) BE 100%
BRERABZHTH (834 F Ak REES
(17,586 F 75 %)
Shengjing Lanting Community To the west of the intersection of 100% Completed Residential, Commercial - Residential (90,726 m?), 100%
Beijing Road and Wangshe and car parks Commercial (834 m?) and
Road in Zhangdian District, car parks (17,586 m?)
Zibo, Shandong Province,
is the Xiaofu River
BRUE —TARE WEREM R TERE U R 100% B7A EE BEREES AT(230480F7K) BE 100%
BENUR (104637 %) kfFER
(38,614 FHK)
Shengjing Yuyuan — North of Hanhuai Street and 100% Completed Residential, Commercial Residential (230,480 m?), 100%
Zhongyang Gongguan West of Tongqu Road, and car parks Commercial (10,463 m?)
Yucheng City, Dezhou, and car parks (38,614 m?)
Shandong
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24. (EHERBEZME =)

24. Properties for sale (Continued)

TEMERE - Summary of properties for sale:
ES Eo
B it THEER RatmA ik 2% (FAK) ARt
Expected % interest
Project Address Stage of completion  completion Usage Gross Area (m?) in property
2025
2022
s WREEMBHTRHEUR 9% B iz AEREES AZ(7464FHK) BF 100%
ZERIERSL (10854 F77K) RFES
(40632 FHK)
Hanlinyuan North of Pengnan Road Extension, 97% Completed Residential, Commercial Residential (174,654 m?), 100%
East of Yuji Road, Yucheng City, and car parks Commercial (10,854 m?)
Dezhou, Shandong Province and car parks (40,632 m?)

RRERE-HE-BR

Xiaoxiang Huafu Phase |
Part 1

RHENE-HE KR

Xiaoxiang Huafu Phase |
Part 2
ThEEE—5

Jiangyuan project Phase |

BEERRRTAEEEZZ B

Province Pengjia Lane
Neighborhood Committee,
Yongding District, Zhangjiajie
City, Hunan Province

BEERRATKERY R HH
&

Pengjia Lane Neighborhood
Committee, Yongding District,
Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province

BEARRRATAERY R B

Pengjia Lane Neighborhood
Committee, Yongding District,
Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province

100% EZ=HK

100% Completed

100% ERH

100% Completed

80% EZRHK

80% Completed

1% BEREES

Residential, Commercial
and car parks

FE BEREES

Residential, Commercial
and car parks

1% BEREES

Residential, Commercial
and car parks

EE(102,660 F 5 5K) - BE 100%
(8795F 5 K)

Residential (102,660 m?), 100%
Commercial (8,795 m?)

E2(108002FFk)  BE 100%
(10,194 F75K) k= &%
(31,58 F 77 3K)

Residential (108,092 m?), 100%
Commercial (10,194 m?)
and car parks (31,524 m?)

EE(75,140F7%) - % 100%
(3T 7K)
Residential (75,140 m?), 100%

Commercial (413 m?)

M2023F 128318 fEHERBR ZEE
MENRDEOAREZIT(2022F : AR
#567,032,0007T) T8 HA #8 7A #k 45 HA SR A 51
FTZEARET -

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB nil (2022:
RMB567,032,000) are expected to be completed within twelve
months from the end of reporting period.
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25. ESREMEKRIRE 25. Trade and other receivables

2023 &
2023

AR®T R
RMB’000

B 5 s (M) Trade receivables (note) 1,568,806 2,140,206
B EEEEEE Less: allowance for credit losses (4,298) (6,888)

1,564,508 2,133,318

R EHER 5KIB Prepayments for raw materials 87,232 95,511
AT Y B 7R I8 Tax recoverable 240,918 245,596

ERMEERES Deposit paid for property development 21,000 21,000
o S B i R R 9 FE LR IR Receivable for disposal of associate = 406,474
e M H b EWFRIE Deposits and other receivables 579,699 138,369

2,493,357 3,040,268

B5E : 7202312 A3 B E SERERIERERKSE Note: Included in the trade receivables are bills receivables amounting to
B AR 1,365,293,0007T (20224 : AR RMB1,365,293,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB1,779,458,000).
1,779,458,0007T) °

AEERTEPZESERKFEEFEERR Customers are generally granted with credit period ranged
BN F30E90R8 - EREE N0 A between 30-90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are
180 H 2| Hf - & 5 fE WK 1B K FE W R & (1 generally due in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging
REEEBRREB REZAHZERITE analysis of trade and bills receivables, net of allowance for credit
AR o losses presented based on the invoice date.

2023 &
2023

ARBT T
RMB’000

90H M Within 90 days 578,032 1,006,429

91 HZE180H 91-180 days 971,570 1,055,095
181 HE365H 181-365 days 16,909 75,419
ESY More than 1 year 2,295 3,263

1,568,806 2,140,206
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25 EZRHEMEWRFRIE ) 25. Trade and other receivables (Continued)
EAREEMAERPA REBEREHE Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts
PREERIGHEEEPNEEEZMNE research on the creditworthiness of the new customer and
EEFPHEREE FEPNEREENE assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
AT RTFEZMWX -99% (2022 F - credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
99% ) AR B ER IR AR B E 2 B 5 FE WG IE K B customers are reviewed twice a year. 99% (2022: 99%) of the
WEBBEEEEAEHRITERTIR K trade and bills receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
SEBTEFPENEE FRAREERH have the high-ranking record attributable under the research on
ZIEEHHE o the creditworthiness. The Group offers various settlement terms

which vary depending on the size of contract credibility and
reputation of the customers.

EEBEREEH Movements in the allowance for credit losses

2023 &
2023

AR®T
RMB’000

FHEER Balance at beginning of the year 6,888
FRNBE Provided during the year (2,590)

FRREER Balance at end of the year 4,298

DRSBTS EE LI TS The Group's trade receivables that are denominated in
BENAEEE S EUGIAESHINOT currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

7R2023412A31H At 31 December 2023 17,308 122,794
R2022% 12 A31H At 31 December 2022 23,481 163,870
B 5 REMERFIBENBETGHFBIHN Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
MIEES © are set out in note 5.

2023 F
2023

AR®T
RMB’000

FYEES Balance at beginning of the year 32,724
FRNEE Provided during the year (1,754)

FIR MR Balance at end of the year 30,970
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26. %?ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi/iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ 26. Plecrllged bank deposits/bank balances and

cas
SHEARITER Pledged bank deposits
REEDEPRITERAAOT - Details of the Group's pledged bank deposits are as follows:

2023 F
2023

ARBT T
RMB’000

ZBERES Bill deposits 75,725

FEEERK Presale of properties 68,134

= Total 143,859
BITHBRERSE Bank balances and cash

REERTEKERSAMOT - Details of the Group's bank balances and cash are as follows:

2023 &
2023
AR® T
RMB’000

H|ITIF N Bank deposits 2,146,976 5,300,698
HihE¥ &S Other monetary funds 400,000 14,805
EFRE Cash on hand 321 491

A&t Total 2,547,297 5,315,994

BRI ER LB TERILFEN N EET S o Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates.

LEBEEEERENIEEEUINGE KT The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies

BEOREERITERIINOAT - other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

M2023F12 A31H At 31 December 2023 11,618 82,288

M2022F12 A31H At 31 December 2022 85,432 594,999

7202312 A31H At 31 December 2023

202212 A31H At 31 December 2022 121,071 108,149
EIERIRITIF R RIT 48 R R (B 5T 1 5 Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits and
BEHAIEES © bank balances are set out in note 5.
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27. B RHAMEN A

27. Trade and other payables

2023 2022 6

2023 2022

AR T T BNE:-S

RMB’000 RMB’'000

B 5 RN IA Trade payables 2,159,485 2,611,778

AHBaE—HELIER Contract liabilities — sale of chemical products 133,904 168,277

EHBE—HEMHE Contract liabilities — sale of properties 269,478 511,263

FE AT T3 BN (R G) Payroll payable (Note (i) 717,997 837,416

WE - R KRR EENRIE Payable for property, plant and

(B &E (i) equipment (Note (ii)) 748,974 766,449

Eh FE T B IR Other tax payables 69,903 57,708
ERERG c EEMERN Construction cost payables for properties

&1~ e TR AR under development for sale 151,731 112,997

H At S S FE 5T FRIE Other payables and accruals 248,812 343,200

4,500,284 5,409,088

GEE

i M2023F 12310 ENBIFMeE -8R
FEHNBARIEEHRESBEARYE
56,840,000 7t (2022 4 : AR #41,123,0007T) ©
BECHEEAEETENEBRQREEMNE L
RESEM  DIEEFEBTRERETE Wi
EHFEURE G E - HREBTIEEER —
FEEMNTFHIE  TEOREMERBTEREM
H)RR ©

i. WS - RN R B RN TR R LR
BREFTKE=BAAXN TN FAREAH
HERTRE -

Notes:

As at 31 December 2023, included in the payroll payable is a provision for
social insurance fund for employees of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB56,840,000 (2022: RMB41,123,000). The amount of the provision
represents the Group’s entire obligation for social insurance fund for
employees of PRC subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant
national regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the basic
counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic counting
unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of an employee in the
preceding year and shall not be less than the minimum limit promulgated
by the local social insurance bureau each year.

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will be
settled three months after the completion of installation of the plant and
machinery which is recorded in the addition of construction in progress
during the year.
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27. EZREMENFIE &)
BHEE —BELIESR
e EAEE TERESMEREFRE -

TREJNEHEECTEREENEESD
BEABNERRANEBEHEEET
MIEHEGHRR o

27. Trade and other payables (continued)

Contract liabilities — Sale of chemical products

The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of chemical products.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities in relation to sale of
chemical products and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

2023 & 2022 F
2023 2022
ARBT T BN S
RMB’000 RMB'000
W1A1A As at 1 January 168,277 232,921
HRMERVTFAELEE Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
FRBAURE DB ER D recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period (4,695,741) (4,801,367)
FAWIMBEEZS D BER Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
B #aEEm receiving sales deposits and instalments
during the year 4,661,368 4,736,723
»12HA31H As at 31 December 133,904 168,277
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27. EZ REMENFIE &)
BHEE — ey

ZEeHEATRBEEMEEEANTEREFLR
T o A2023F 12 A31H 22 sEm DKM
HRITFERA AR % 68,134,000 7T (2022 £F
A FR#87,959,000 7T ) 1EIE I o

TREJEHENEBEENGEBENAE
BHENERBRAREBERECETHE
MEBHRIE -

27. Trade and other payables (continued)

Contract liabilities — Sale of properties

The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC. The amount
was secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB68,134,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB87,959,000).

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities in relation to sale of
properties and how much relates to performance obligations
that were satisfied in prior periods.

2023 £ 2022
2023 2022
NGB ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R1HA1H As at 1 January 511,263 612,994
BMRBERVIGFASHAMEFA  Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
WARB & HaERD recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period (534,327) (496,572)
FRWEHERS R BRAHR Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
B & LaEEM receiving sales deposits and instalments
during the year 292,542 394,841
M12A31H As at 31 December 269,478 511,263
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27. ESREMEMSNRE )

B 5 e B B 1R E AR 76,540,000 70
(20224 : AR¥41,637,00070) 2 JENE
B-EBNEZEmAEENDEMRITER
ERIEHA -

REERNTHEENRIORB -AEEE
HEEEYHREREERR - UWERME
ENREREERRABE -REERAR
B BHRNKENRESITZT

27. Trade and other payables (Continued)

Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting to
RMB76,540,000 (2022: RMB41,637,000). Bills payable are
secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. The
following is an aging analysis of trade payables, presented
based on invoice date:

2023 F
2023

AR®T
RMB’000

30HA Within 30 days 1,207,282 1,621,153
31HZE90H 31-90 days 542,050 699,843
91HZE180H 91-180 days 200,061 137,992
181 HE365H 181-365 days 100,422 96,930
1826 1-2 years 97,417 36,854
A8 2 F More than 2 years 12,253 19,006
®W12A31H As at 31 December 2,159,485 2,611,778

AEBENEBEREBINEERUINZ
ERAENE S REMENFKESKIINT

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

202312 A31H At 31 December 2023

R2022% 12 A31H At 31 December 2022

3,667

25,666
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28. HEAE 28. Lease liabilities
2023 F 2022 F
2023 2022
AR T T BNE:-S
RMB’000 RMB’000
EAHEERE: Lease liabilities payables:
1FR Within one year 5,198 4,894
BHZN 1 FEIBBE2F Within a period of more than one year,
but not exceeding two years 4,759 4,883
RHZ R 2FEIBIBSF Within a period of more than two years,
but not more than five years 22,092 33,857
RERERAS Within a period of more than five years - -
32,049 43,634
B YR RBEETHIFR Less: amounts due within one year shown
B Eg(EE 8 under current liabilities (5,198) (4,894)
FIRIERBIBE THFIE Amounts show under non-current liabilities 26,851 38,740
EAREEEENNETHEERENX The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
N F4.51%%5.13% (20224 : 4.51% & lease liabilities range from 4.51% to 5.13% (2022: 4.51% to
5.13%) ° 5.13%).
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29. IEEWA

ERBAFREWERARKRBRREELS
EEmAYIER ~ HEE MRV HERE o

FRELERANZEENT

29. Deferred income

Deferred income mainly represents government grants received
in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment for
manufacturing of chemical products.

Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:

2023 &
2023

AR®T T
RMB’000

®1A1R At 1 January 371,662 317,025
NE Additions 45,289 91,573
EEEEG Release to profit or loss (79,878) (36,936)
»12H31H At 31 December 337,073 371,662
RBEFENSNAT Analysed for reporting purposes as:

BIEARE 2
FERNEAEE 7

Current portion
Non-current portion

2023 &
2023

AR T
RMB’000

42,858
294,215

83,813
287,849

W12 A31H

At 31 December

337,073 371,662
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30. ®R&

30. Share capital

FREE1ETHZER

BT

2022 1H18
2022412 A31H 20231 A1H

Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each
Authorised:
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022,

1 January 2023, and 31 December 2023

N 2023512 A31H 4,000,000 382,200
EZETRAE - Issued and fully paid:
M2022F181H At 1 January 2022 2,255,190 212,338
188 N s s8R 19 (BT RE () Shares repurchased and cancelled (note (i) (1,501) (142)

M2022F 128318 K
2023F1A1H

e & ¥R

o] B8 X E SR 1

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023

Placing of new shares
Shares repurchased and cancelled

2023%F12A31H

At 31 December 2023

BiESERE B HESEI > B2023F
N2022F ARRIMBARBMERES - &

EHBEARBER LHES

2,253,689

2,253,689

212,196

212,196

Other than as disclosed in the employee option scheme, none
of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold, or redeemed any

of the Company’s listed securities during the years 2023 and

2022.
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30. A (&)

(i) BEARRQFN2021F6 A108 AR ERBE
RERTFHOBRERRE  KARREE2022F12
A31 8 1L F & 22 F S 811,501,000 A% % 5
(20214 : 1,499,000 & B 17) - KA R FEBEH
MAERXGHMARARBEAARNOHABBER
PUlNE

30. Share capital (continued)

0]

Pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 June 2021, the Company
repurchased, on Stock Exchange, 1,501,000 shares during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: 1,499,000 shares). Details of the Company
repurchased its own shares through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited are as follows:

2021912 B 15H
15 December 2021
2021412 A20H
20 December 2021
202241 A5H
5 January 2022
2022%F1H6H
6 January 2022
202241 H7H
7 January 2022

499,000 11.60 11.24 5,688
1,000,000 11.50 11.00 11,201
1,000,000 11.10 10.98 11,043

91,000 11.00 11.82 990

410,000 10.70 10.58 4,370

it EmBR R E AR
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31. FERKRRER

31. Non-controlling interests

R2021F1 A1 H At 1 January 2021 1,988,206
DMEFEEE Share of results for the year 606,702

AEBERBARERMNKZE Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group 289
AEBERBARERMNKZE Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group (80,155)
72021412 A31 B %2022 1818 At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 2,515,042

DR FEEE Share of results for the year 320,578
[ 3 Transfer 111

TR RERTE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 3,500
U B8 — R B JB8 /R R Y BE M 25 Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary (62,671)
AEEHRBARDIRNHRE Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group (365,101)

2022912 31 H 202351318

DEFEERE

B

AEEM B ARSI RS

B R R — B AR A
E—ThEm

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023

Share of results for the year

Transfer

Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group

Acquisition of further interest in a subsidiary
from minority shareholders

7H2023%F12 A31H

At 31 December 2023

2,411,459
(96,708)

107
(55,055)

(115,615)

2,114,188
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32. EXREE 32. Capital commitments
R2023F12A31H AEEHKEEDN At 31 December 2023, the Group had outstanding
APEWT commitments as follows:

2023 &
2023

ARBT T
RMB’000

BERAYE Capital Commitment
BREWEDE  #EREEN Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition

EALH - BRIHERE of property, plant and equipment
IRE B HmER N contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 346,980 433,935
EREAFEFAEME2EWE 2 Capital expenditure in respect of equity
BRATEMEARTE - B4 instruments at FVTOCI contracted for
BRELRE P B @mENEE but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 580,024 740,140

927,004 1,174,075
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33. BB AR 3 33. Related party transactions
FAN-BRESMBRERMHFIIEIN K& Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
B EET ARG Group entered into the following related party transactions

(a)

during the year:

RIRE RE (B ) (a) Future Hydrogen (note)

2023 F
2023

ARBT T
RMB’000

BE B R AR ( Purchase of raw materials 104,231 72,744
(i) EELEER (i) Sales of chemical products 214,843 178,416

iy e A (i) Rental income 1,025
(ivy REETESRWA (iv)  Income from provision of electronic 216
(V) HEZE (v)  Sales of asset -
(vi)y SHE L (vi)  Sales of land -
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33. BB AR 3 (8 33. Related party transactions (Continued)
(b) FEEEAESHMH (b) Compensation of key management personnel
FRN - EEZRHEMETZEEASHBH The remuneration of directors and other members of key
ST management during the year was as follows:

2023 F
2023

AR T
RMB’000

IERH® Wages and salaries 24,658
[SIERCEN Discretionary bonus 41,428
66,086
() FHREERRNBITFRREER (c) Bank deposit placed to major shareholder and
BWA related interest income

2023 F
2023
AR® T
RMB’000

»®12 A31 BRIRITF R Bank deposit at 31 December 309,888 309,888
F AR BWA Interest income during the year - 3,285
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34. RIKEFGTE

35.

AREBEFTBEES T EEE T BA
LENBEFENRENFTEOKE - AEH
AR EH B KIS E B Ot (2 5 B A AN ET
) ERBRENNES - AEBEAME—

RERHZFTEFHEEMHK -

B &R T

R2018%F 12 A278 » " AR EMNEES IE
MR ([ BB ESTE]) Ea %R
FEBEBSF -

BIEEEBERES  ARR2EWEA
AREREREEEERARMEARZTA
(ZREADBEFHEALEEEANRS (4
FEPA P B B8 52 B [ 19 1 15 #8 38 800,000,000
B A EBEERERG  THESS
hENAEEMABREESSERN ((ERES])
B FEZERD -

MR2023F3H28H EEEHEARABIER
[MEEMEARE S FH  BEMBE ARG
ARG ERI0OF T HESCERREE
125 500,000,000 7 7T °

EZgUTH2ENBRER TEAEE
BERMUBEEMEERND ((BRED -2
TTIEME AR BEEBAEEZERE(
BEE Kok (i) B R MR R 1 8 6 (B A% R
BRETEERZHENEZE(WE) BkH
28 -

i

=

34. Retirement benefits plans

35.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of stage-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

Employee option scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee
option scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be
valid and effective for a term of 5 years.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Dongyue
Fluorosilicone Science and Technology Group Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee (the
“Trustee”) will purchase existing Shares from the market out of
cash contributed by the Group of not more than
HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and hold such
Shares on trust for the relevant employees or consultants of the
Group selected by the Board (the “Selected Employees”).

On 28 March 2023, the Board resolved to extend the term of
the Employee Option Scheme for a period of 10 years from the
date of adoption and to increase the maximum amount of
capital contribution by HK$500,000,000.

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
grant to any Selected Employee the right to purchase the
relevant shares (the “Option”). The Selected Employee may,
when exercising the Option, elect the number of shares which
he wishes to (i) be transferred and/or (ii) sell and receive the
difference, if any, between the sale price of the Shares and the
exercise price of the Option.
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35.

250

EERRKRESTE 2

R2021F7 A9R8 » NRF AT MBI HER
MA27 BT EERE 13720 EEE
B BAREATEERBEIIENTES B
A $£62,570,0001) BERE#E - (h AR B
BT AR 3%  RIBREEERES - Z
ERNEBRITAFEALARRMERE Y
HESBEULMAMB LBE - BREHR
20217 R9B MR E2026F7 A8HE M
(BIEZME B ) K5 F IR AT - BFE
REMBERENGFBERAALFAHA
20217 A9HMAE -

BB B BRI T

R2023%
1818
AR BREAH i R AT B
Outstanding
at 1 January
Grantee Date of grant 2023
HTES
Executive directors
REETE 200147R98 -
Mr. Zhang Jianhong 9 July 2021
EERE 202157498 -
Mr. Fu Kwan 9 July 2021
ThREE 200147A98 -
Mr. Wang Weidong 9 July 2021
REELE 2021457798 -
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 9 July 2021
RUBRHE 200147A98 -
(R202246 51 i#fit)
Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 9 July 2021
1 June 2022)
RELAE 20147890 -
Mr. Zhang Jian 9 July 2021

35. Employee option scheme (Continued)

On 9 July 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of
62,570,000 share options at the exercise price of HK$4.27 per
option share, representing 3% of the issued share capital of the
Company, to a total of 1,372 Selected Employees, including
executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
which have been acquired by the Trustee from the open market
by utilizing the contributed amount made available to the
Trustee by the Company pursuant to the Employee Option
Scheme. The share options are exercisable for a term of 5 years
commencing from 9 July 2021 and expiring on 8 July 2026,
both dates inclusive. Details of the share options granted are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 9 July 2021.

Details of the movements of the share options granted are as
follows:

R2023%
12A31H
FREH FRTH i R AT B 1@ TR
Granted Exercised  Outstanding at
during the duringthe 31 December Exercise
year year 2023 price Exercise period
BT (BR)
HKS$ per share
7,000,000 (7,000,000) - 427 201567898 %
202657 R 8H
9 July 2021-8 July 2026
1,000,000 (1,000,000) - 427 202157R98%
202657 A8H
9 July 2021-8 July 2026
7,000,000 (7,000,000) - 427 20167R9A%
202657 R 8H
9 July 2021-8 July 2026
6,000,000 (6,000,000 - 427 202157R98%
202657 A8H
9 July 2021-8 July 2026
300,000 (300,000) - 427 20167R9A%
202657 R 8H
9 July 2021-8 July 2026
300,000 (300,000) - 427 2016789A%
2026567 A8H

9 July 2021-8 July 2026
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35. EERERESE ()

35. Employee option scheme (Continued)

BIFHTES

Independent non-executive directors

TRERE 202157R98 - 500,000 (500,000) - 427 22157A98F
2026%7 A8H

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026

BRBEE 202147898 - 300,000 (300,000) - 427 2021578982
202657 A8H

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026

BERAE 200147 A9H - 50,000 (50,000) - 427 2021F7H9AE
2026%7A8H

Mr. Ma Zhizhong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026

HitES

Other employees

EfhER 202167R98 - 40,120,000 (40,120,000) - 427 202157R98%
2026%7A8R

Other employees 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026

- 62,570,000 (62,570,000) -
MEFHTRE TEA 42TET 42TET TEA
Weighted average exercise price N/A HK$4.27 HK$4.27 N/A
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35.

EERRKRESTE 2

BAENGER R EARKEL EBEN
BUEXGHEMBEFEERERARAE
TeRAFEDEB-BAABREETERRN
MEFE - TREHZEAREK L B HHAA
SEPN PN

RO HERE 9.9978 7T
1TfEE BB RIER R 4.27 BT
TEER R 18 68.32%
B3 A% 1 4F HR 54
TE HARR B Y e & 5.68%
Rk R & 0.54%

AAERREATFEERANZEERBRILE
REFFENREMG - BEKIEDRE
ARRBERIH (HERBRENEGHD
FH)MEL KRR E - BHRBWREEXTS
BERADBAERBIKMNERTE - B
BMETI2ERNHAEBRESOFH—
BHMBAEBRMABESZNE L A SNk EEN
Rz -HEA-—AABERETERAGFEN
BREBEXRNE TEARS (AR AR
ZEABARERHORRRBAZBRERZE
BUELBETEEEMEB) LZER A
METEBRS -
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35. Employee option scheme (Continued)

The valuation of share option was carried out by Hong Kong
Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent professional valuer
which are not connected by the Group. The fair value was
determined using a binomial option pricing model. The
following table lists the significant inputs to the model used at
the date of grant.

Grant date share price HK$9.99
Exercise price HK$4.27 per Option Share
Expected volatility 68.32%
Share option life 5 years
Expected dividend yield 5.68%
Risk-free interest rate 0.54%

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair values
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimates.
Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility
of the Company over the most recent period commensurate
with the contractual life of the share options. Expected dividend
yield is based on the historical dividend payment of the
Company. The risk-free interest rate is assumed with reference
to Hong Kong government bond yield with maturity matching
the contractual life of the share options as at the date of grant.
The value of the share options calculated using the binomial
option pricing model are subject to certain fundamental
limitations, due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty
relating to the assumptions regarding future performance on
which the model is based, and certain inherent limitations of
the model itself.
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35. EERKRESTE @)

35. Employee option scheme (Continued)

HE2021F12A31HIEFE  NEEE
B IR HE B 2 2 362,684,00038 7T (FEE R
AFR#293,774,0007T) ©

HZE2021F12A831MBIEFE AR
20217 A9RREMERESEITE - R
RERITEBRER A THES
EEREREREI TR EMRD

HZE2023F12A3MBLEFE AN
K B #200,365,00078 7T (2022 % :
230,541,0008 L) (HMERO AR
196,816,000t (20224 : AR
204,347,00070) (BIEE#Z E(IHIZ S K A)
WWiE A HEE A QX F 33,923,000 8% B 15
(2022 4F : 25,974,000 A P& 1) -

RUEZSEEMBERIAH  ARAYL
EEBBBER IR TR RITENBAME -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$362,684,000
(equivalent to RMB293,774,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the share
options granted on 9 July 2021 were exercised. Following such
grant and exercise of share options, the Trustee has no longer
held any shares under the Employee Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the trustees
purchased an aggregate of 33,923,000 (2022: 25,974,000)
shares of the Company from the market at a total consideration
of approximately HK$200,365,000 (2022: HK$230,541,000)
(equivalent to approximately RMB196,816,000) (2022:
RMB204,347,000) (including directly attributable incremental
costs).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial

statements, the Company had no share options outstanding
under the Employee Option Scheme.
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36. ZARAREEMBLAFE

() HMERXIAN-—KREHR

RBERRARBAEREMEEFTAZ

MIE AR FEEAMT

RERAT

Dongyue Polymers PRC

REEZ H

Dongyue Salt PRC

REAE ilzi]

Dongyue Fluo-Silicon PRC

HongKong TaiLi International &
Trading Co., Ltd

HongKong Talli International HK
Trading Co., Ltd

REABE H

Dongyue Organosilicon PRC

AEERESERICIERLA el
((hEERELE])

Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak PRC

Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd.
(“Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak”)
HEZABEERAA ilzi]
(IFE£g))
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd, ~ PRC
("Chifeng HuaSheng")
LRREXARMBARAT FE
(Mgl
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine  PRC
Chemicals Co., Ltd.
(“Wenhe Fluorine")

BHER hE
Union Property PRC
LRBARHEREERAA HE
Shandong Boda Real Estate PRC

Development Co., Ltd.

254 BE£EARAFT —B-=FFR

Edip-v

Registered capital
AR
Registered capital
&R
Registered capital
&R

Registered capital

Edip-v

Registered capital

Edip-v

Registered capital

Edip-vy

Registered capital

Edip-v

Registered capital

Edip-vy

Registered capital

HMER

Registered capital

36. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

company

(@) General information of subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set
out below.

AR 6413607
RMBG641,360

AR¥80,0007T
RMB80,000
ARH400,00070
RMBA400,000
5,0007%7T

HK$5,000

AR 650,000
RMB650,000

AR 150,000

RMB150,000

ARH#9,0007

RMB9,000

AR%115,7007C

RMB115,700

ARH80,0007T

RMB80,000

ARH#50,0007C
RMB50,000

89.93

83.22

100.00

57.75

51.00

80.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

HERHERNALH

Manufacture and sale of

polytetrafluoroethylene
EERHEE
Production and sales of salt
RERHETRELY
Manufacture and sales of
methane chloride

HELIER

Sale of chemical products

SERHERRENH
Manufacture and sale of
organosilicon material

HERHERKAND

Manufacture and sale of
anhydrous fluoride

HERHELR

Manufacture and sale of
fluorite

HERHERBE

Manufacture and sale of
silicon rubber

k3 ES
Property development
[RERUES
Property development
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KRR ETEMBRAAFHE @)

() HMEBRRAN-—RER(E

RRRBEEMEREARAA

Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

EAREERESERAR

Huangtai Dongyue International
Trade Co., Ltd.

EgieR

Huaxia Shenzhou

RESREHHK

Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology

RETRKBEERAEAT

Zibo Herun Shuiwu Company Limited.

LRBAENRERAR

Shandong Mingyue Technology
Co,, Ltd.

W B E R AR AR

Sichuan Southwest Sun Shine Silicon
Technology Co. Ltd.

EaBELAEARAT

Huantai Country Tongshan
Thermoelectric Co. Ltd.

WRRESRHEARAE

Shandong Dongyue Refrigerants
Co,, Ltd.

T8
PRC

T8
PRC

T8
PRC

FE

PRC

HE

PRC

8
PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

FE

PRC

)

HER

Registered capital

HER

Registered capital

HER

Registered capital
HfER
Registered capital
aMEx
Registered capital

Edig-vy

Registered capital
AR

Registered capital

Edip-vs

Registered capital

HER

Registered capital

36. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

(a)

ARH80,0007T
RMB80,000

AR#S5,0007T
RMB5,000

AKH#10,0007T
RMB10,000

AR
1,220,520 7T
RMB1,220,520

ARM250007C
RMB25,000

AR #300,0007
RMB300,000

AR
198,444,7707C
RMB198,444,770

ARH
100,000,0007C
RMB100,000,000

AR
100,000,000
RMB100,000,000

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

83.22

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

EESIES
Property development

HELTER

Sale of chemical products

WERHERERA TIH
Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer

BERERERFMHTE

Investment and management
of fluorosilicone
new material industry
KHERRIRAE A
Sewage disposal and
environmental monitoring
BRI E
Chemical technology
research and development
FREESRARE L
EReBRASHEEE
Smelt and sales of high
performance non-tenuous
metal and alloy materials
BN 2N RER
KEERMBEREE
Electricity, heat, gas and
water production and
supply industry
EEREECTER

Production and sales of
chemical products
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36. ARBEEMB QA TFE @)

(@) MEBLXRABN-—RER(E)

EERR LRFIWARBNER
ATIFEFELAEEXEREE-EF
R W EMHE AR AR
KeEFBEEBRITE -

RER - B QA EEITERNER
o MATEMBARNEREALR
%O

(b) EEERFEZERRRESNFEZEM
BRRNFR
TRINTHEAERFZERBRERA
AEEFE2EWBRBNFS

MR LEARK
FTEEXBY
Country of

WEAFER

incorporation and
principal place of

Name of subsidiary business

REFHKE g
(Dongyue Organosilicon) PRC

TXEFN A ERIFZERBRERD
AEEEHBARMNMBERBE
T BERRERETRENLHE
RIEVEER ©
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36. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic
enterprises.

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

FERRREBHAN PRFFERBR
P A R Lk R R R FERRRER
Proportion ownership Profit allocated to Accumulated
interest held by non-controlling non-controlling
non-controlling interests interests interests
2022% 2023 % 20224 2023 % 20224
2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ARBTT PRl AR T T PN
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
42.25% 42.25% (106,012) 215,890 BWHUPRAN 2,152,446

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
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36. XATEEMBARFT @) 36. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

(b) BEEAFERBRREZNWHEZEMR (b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
BATMEE (&) material non-controlling interests (Continued)

BEERFERBRREZNHFEZENBED Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

Gl e material non-controlling interests

2023 F

2023
ARBT T
RMB’000

MEEE Current assets 2,469,247 2,211,961
EMENEE Non-current assets 4,023,710 3,765,415
mEEE Current liabilities (1,495,728) (834,951)
ERBAEE Non-current liabilities (92,825) (43,878)

4,904,404 5,094,547

NARIEE ANELER Equity attributable to owners of the

Company 2,832,294 2,942,101
FEVEAR AR SR 2 PR (G M 2 Equity attributable to non-controlling

interests 2,072,110 2,152,446

4,904,404 5,094,547
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36. ARBEEMB QA TFE @)

BREEXFERRREZNFZENEL
ANEE (&)

36. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

REE#E

®12A31H At 31 December Dongyue Organosilicon
2023 £ 2022
2023 2022
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 4,801,468 6,740,522
F Expenses (5,052,204) (6,229,540)
F 3 F) Profit for the year (250,736) 510,982
KREIER AEML T Profit attributable to owners of the Company (144,724) 295,092

1% B S SR P 2 P A5 04 )

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

(106,012) 215,890

(250,736) 510,982

B SRR R A s M BB

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

50,700 192,660

rEFEDRS ORE) MAFE

activities

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating

(323,843) 154,518

(53,244) (577,910)

(119,592) (453,229)

BEEBRES L F5E Net cash outflow from investing activities
BEEBR ML FE Net cash outflow from

financing activities
W& F5E Net cash outflow

(496,679) (876,621)
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37.

38.

HE—BHEAF
WRRECTERAR

REZE2023F12A31BItFE A& H
Bt LA A R #12,708,000 7T #9 IR 4 £ 18 #5 1L
REECTITAERARNE D EITRAN
EF—ZE=ZFAVESEHE - HEDR
2023F 12 A29H FEAK ° 1 20234F 12 A 29

37. Disposal of a subsidiary

Shandong Dongyue Chemical Co., Ltd

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement relating to the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of Shandong Dongyue Chemical
Co., Ltd, (LB E(L THBR A A)) to a third party, at a cash
consideration of RMB12,708,000. The disposal was completed

HOWEERBEFBHT : on 29 December 2023. Details of the assets and liabilities as of
29 December 2023 are set out as follows:
AREFIT
RMB’000
RITHEER Bank balances 1,344
BATEFABRECEREE Financial asset at FVTPL 200,000
mpAE Intangible assets 5,006
Wz - e kR Property, plant and equipment 100,039
EETIEE E Deferred tax assets 13,637
Ho b e W sk IE Other receivables 110,377
JE AT Ko E b < FRIE Accruals and other payables (417,695)
BEHEFEE Net assets disposed of 12,708
HE—RMEARKNES : Loss on disposal of a subsidiary:
BUWIRERE Cash consideration received 12,708
BEHEFEE Net assets disposed of (12,708)
HEMELENRSRANTE Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
YRS RE Cash consideration received 12,708
B EHERERERIIRESEE Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,344)
11,364

TEFRERS

REZE2023F12831BILFERN - A%
B SN FERRII MO TN HEER
FHooRABHIFERIF NI EMBKE
NEEERARE 2,264,000 T AL
ENEEREAE -

38. Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group enter into
two new lease agreements for the use of office space, the terms
are 3 years and 1 year respectively. At the commencement of
the lease, the Group recognizes the RMB2,264,000 for the right

to use the assets and related leases liabilities.
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39. XAT IR KBR K #HE 39. Summarised statement of financial position
of the Company and reserves

2023 & 20224

2023 2022

AR®T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

KRB RRINKE Investments in subsidiaries 3,818,671 3,818,671
RITEB LA S Bank balances and cash 54,750 125,112
EfhmehEE Other current assets 210,151 148
HEMrneasE Other current liabilities (22,827) (1,472)

4,061,745 3,942,459

A A Share capital 212,196 212,196
{85 (P =) Reserves (Note) 3,848,549 3,730,263
4,061,745 3,942,459

NRAB B AFTER2024F3 A26 A The statement of financial position of the Company was
EFEEMERBERENE - YRATAER approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
REZE: 26 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

RER R g

Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
EF EF
Director Director

200 HE£EARAF —B-=FFR§
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9. AR THMBEARRRE R R FH#E (#) 39. Summarised statement of financial position
of the Company and reserves (Continued)

B3 - Note:

EEEE - Movement in the reserves:

20221818 At 1 January 2022 3,952,498 (270,503) 200,344 414,217 4,296,556
AEEHEFMEEEMSLE  Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 279,916 279,916
EEBEBRETBIETEER®M Purchase of shares under employee

option scheme - (204,347) - - (204,347)
o] B8 I s S AR 19 Shares repurchased and cancelled (16,633) - - - (16,633)
BRERE Dividends paid - - - (625,229) (625,229)
720231418 At 1 January 2023 3,935,865 (474,850) 200,344 68,904 3,730,263
NEEREM L 2EREEHEE  Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year 1,556,147 1,556,147
EERMRETBBEBTEBERND Purchase of shares under employee

option scheme (240,893) - (240,893)
BBRE Dividends paid = (1,196,613) (1,196,613)

7202312 A31H At 31 December 2023 3,935,865 (715,743) 200,344 428,438 3,848,904
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2023 F

2023
ARBT R
RMB'000

E: Revenue 12,958,692 10,044,313 15,843,947 20,027,988 ERLWLERPE]
HENA Cost of sales (9,512,770)  (7,799,717)  (10,626,336)  (13,513,617) RUGPHEYA LR

E Gross profit 3,445,922 2,244,596 5,217,611 6,514,371 2,436,131

Hit A RE oMz REE  Other income and other net gains

and losses 138,523 136,207 182,028 229,006 269,157
AERBEERY Distribution and selling expenses (366,263) (353,683) (336,451) (498,767) (503,038)
TREAMFAY Administrative and other expenses (668,112) (356,845) (913,264) (993,740) (647,286)
BELE—RWEBEARNKE Gainon deemed disposal of

a subsidiary - 40,850 - 1,212,290 -
HE—RNBARMER Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - - (27,377) - -
T %E & A AR Research and development costs (329,242) (590,471) (838,893)  (1,310,535) (935,099)
i NG Share of results of associates - 4,505 20,291 25,401 34,965
BRATEFABZZEMEE  Fair value change on financial asset

ATEZD at fair value through profit or loss

("FVTPL") - (3,978) 21,870 (37,669) -
BB Finance costs (100,528) (104,560) (81,606) (15,302) (1,659)
BB AR R Profit before taxation 2,120,300 1,016,621 3,244209 5,125,055 653,171
FTERmEY Income tax expense (378,019) (113,765) (562,664) (948,938) (42,086)
REERR Profit for the year 1,742,281 902,856 2,681,545 4,176,117 611,085
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2023
2023
AR®T
RMB’'000
Hi2E K& Other comprehensive income
TEEHFBZERMIEL © Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
RATEFAEMZEKE 2  Fair value changes on equity
EaIANRTEED instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (1,119,292) (279,531) (234,098) (5,830) (15,449)
FRE2EKRELHE Total comprehensive income
for the year 622,989 623,325 2,447,447 4,170,287 595,636
THE L EEER Total comprehensive income for
2EKEAE: the year attributable to:
—KDEERA — Owners of the Company 343,682 492,636 1,840,745 3,855,539 707,793
— BRI R ER — Non-controlling interests 279,307 130,689 606,702 320,578 (96,708)
622,989 623,325 2,447,447 4,176,117 611,085
EEBH Total Assets 14,931,339 17,121,859 21,601,226 24,044,949 EwARLEFLE
BELR Total Liabilities (5975,716)  (6,591,347)  (5,962,603)  (6,151,472) BMEEIEED)
ARFHEB ARG ER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 7,880,019 8,542,306 13,123,581 16,082,018 ENLFAELYPA
R EER Non-controlling interests 1075604 1988206 2515042 2,411,459 PSWEIVEEE]
12A318&# Balance at 31 December 8,955,623 10,530,512 15,638,623 18,493,477 BIRELFIE)
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AR ER

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

TRARESERTEZER MBI

REILRS
HIE™
REAEMHEXE

ERATELEME
BA

ERE 185

B E L

1PE261E2621 %

44t

www.dongyuechem.com

B
HITES
REBREE (FEFITHAAE)
BE 4 (R2024F 3 H27 HEHT)
Fmea (1)
REBEA (BIARFEEIMEE)
RiEEHE (R2024 43 H27 AEHE)
EEEZL (AaE)

(R2024 3 F27 HEZET)
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Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in
the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Room 2621, 26/F, Tower 1
Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan (resigned on 27 March 2024)
Mr. Wang Weidong (President)
Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. ZHANG lJian (resigned on 27 March 2024)
Ms. Chung Tak Lai (Company Secretary)

(appointed on 27 March 2024)
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BYFYTES

TRMEE
RS
BEBLE
DEME
EEELt
REAR
EEELt
BEREEY

TRERE (E)
BRBEEL
BEDLELE

B
BB B S ()

TRIBEE
RERTE

REZEY
REESE (T

TRERE
BEBERE

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Company secretary
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Authorized representatives
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Remuneration committee

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
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TRERRES
RRRSE(ER)

THEEAE
SRS A (R20244E3 27 AEZEE)

BREEREEZES

TRIBRE (XRE)
BREBEE
BEREE

ROBFERLAE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

EEROBFELTTRE

BEEFBZLEARATR
BEeE

EREI169R
RESRAPLITE
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Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Weidong
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (appointed on 27 March 2024)

Risk Management Committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyung
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Admiralty, Hong Kong
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Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

2888 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

673 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

456 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC

China Everbright Bank Company Limited Huantai Branch

2277 Suo Zhen Zhongxin Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC
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Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
Room 128, 4/F

9 Queen Central Road
Central

Hong Kong

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong

Stock code
189
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